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INVITATION BY PROSPECTUS BY 
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Registered Office: 15 St. Lucia Way, Kingston 5, St. Andrew, Jamaica | Tel: 876-926-2681 | 
Email: questions@barita.com  ·  investmentbanking@barita.com  ·  retail_sales@barita.com | Website: www.barita.com

INVITING OFFERS FOR THE SUBSCRIPTION
Senior Unsecured Bonds having an aggregate principal amount of 

US$11,000,000.00 and J$2,250,000,000.00 collectively
(with the ability to upsize by inviting offers for an additional US$6,000,000.00 and  J$1,250,000,000.00)

Issued by
Barita Investments Limited
(the “Company” or “Barita”)  

TRANCHE TRANCHE I TRANCHE II TRANCHE III TRANCHE IV TRANCHE V TRANCHE VI TRANCHE VII

Amount

Up to 
US$5,500,000.00 

with the option 
to upsize to 

US$8,500,000.00

Up to 
US$5,500,000.00 

with the option 
to upsize to 

US$8,500,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00 

with the option 
to upsize to 

J$700,000,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00 

with the option 
to upsize to 

J$700,000,000.00

Up to
J$450,000,000.00 

with the option 
to upsize to 

J$700,000,000.00

Up to
J$450,000,000.00 

with the option 
to upsize to 

J$700,000,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00 

with the option 
to upsize to 

J$700,000,000.00 

Tenor Two (2) years Three (3) years Two (2) years Three (3) years Five (5) years Seven (7) years Ten (10) years

Coupon 
Rate

7.00% per 
annum

7.50% per 
annum

9.75% per 
annum 

10.00% per 
annum 

10.50% per 
annum 

10.75% per 
annum 

10.90% per 
annum 

Dated the 14th day of March 2025

A copy of this Prospectus was delivered to the Registrar of Companies for registration pursuant to section 40(2) of the Companies Act 
and was so registered on the 14th day of March 2025. The Registrar of Companies accepts no responsibility whatsoever for the contents 
of this Prospectus.

A copy of this Prospectus was delivered to the Financial Services Commission for registration pursuant to section 26 of the Securities 
Act and was so registered on the 19th day of March 2025. The Financial Services Commission has neither approved the issue of this 
Prospectus nor has the Commission passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a 
criminal offence.

The Invitation is being made in Jamaica as a public offering of securities in accordance with the Companies Act, and the Securities Act in 
each case of Jamaica and is intended for use in Jamaica only and is not to be construed as making an invitation or offer to persons outside 
of Jamaica to subscribe for any New Bonds or other securities. This Invitation is not being made in any jurisdiction in which the offer to 
sell these securities to, or a solicitation of an offer to buy these securities from any person would violate the securities or other relevant 
laws of such jurisdiction. No person is authorized to provide information or make any representation whatsoever in connection with 
this Prospectus, which is not contained in this Prospectus. 
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IMPORTANT NOTICE
TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS

Unless stated otherwise, terms used in this Prospectus shall have the meanings attributed to them in Section 
2 - Definitions of this Prospectus.

Ordinary Shares of the Company are listed on the JSE (as defined herein) and prospective investors are 
invited and encouraged to view all Trade Information relating to the Company published on the JSE’s 
website at www.jamstockex.com.

Investors are also invited to view the 2023 Annual Report for the Company at https://www.barita.com/wp-
content/uploads/2024/05/Barita-Annual-Report-2023.pdf 

A copy of the Audited Financial Statements for the Company for Financial Year ended September 30, 2024 has 
been inserted at Appendix 2 of this Prospectus.

The signatures of the Directors of the Company appear in Section 22 – Signatures of Directors of the 
Company of this Prospectus. The Directors of the Company are individually and collectively responsible for 
the contents of this Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of such Directors, the information 
contained in this Prospectus is factually correct and true and no information has been omitted that would make 
any statement in this Prospectus misleading or that is likely to otherwise materially affect its interpretation.

This Prospectus is issued by the Company to the public in Jamaica only. 
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TIMETABLE OF THE
INVITATION & KEY DATES

The instructions for applications to be used by all Applicants (as defined herein) are provided at Appendix 1 of 
this Prospectus together with notes on how to complete the form. The Invitation will open at 9:00 a.m. on the 
Opening Date and will close at 4:00 p.m. on the Closing Date, subject to the right of the Company to: (a) close 
the Invitation at any time after 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date, once the Invitation is fully subscribed, or (b) 
extend, for any reason, the period during which the Invitation shall remain open. In the case of the extension of 
such period or an early closing, notice will be posted on the website of the JSE at www.jamstockex.com and 
the Company’s website at www.barita.com.

The timetable below is indicative and will be implemented on a best-efforts basis, with the Directors of the 
Company reserving the right, however, to change the dates that the Invitation opens and closes based on 
market conditions and other relevant factors as determined by the Company, subject always to statutory and 
regulatory obligations.

Publication of Prospectus March 19, 2025

Opening Date March 28, 2025

Closing Date
May 26, 2025
Subject to the right of the Company to designate an earlier or 
later date in the circumstances set out in this Prospectus

Expected dispatch of investor 
statements and any refund
(if applicable)

Within 10 business days of Closing Date
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN TO 
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS
DEAR PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS:

Within the context of a complex global and local economy, Barita has delivered exceptional results, maintaining profitability 
while fortifying its commitment to financial prudence. As a testament to our strength, on December 5, 2024, Caribbean 
Information and Credit Rating Services Limited (“CariCRIS”) assigned Barita an Initial Issuer/Corporate Credit Ratings of 
CariBBB+ (Foreign Currency Rating) and CariA- (Local Currency Rating) on the regional scale, and jmA (Foreign Currency 
Rating) and jmA+ (Local Currency Rating) on the Jamaica national scale, with a stable outlook. This investment-grade 
rating underscores Barita’s robust financial foundation, prudent risk management, and resilience in a dynamic market 
environment.

Our recent financial performance further reflects the dedication and strategic execution of our management team and 
employees. Over the past financial year (FY 2024), Barita achieved a net profit after taxation (“NPAT”) of J$3.82 billion, 
reflecting an 11.7% increase relative to FY 2023. This translated into earnings per share (“EPS”) of J$3.17, up 11.2% from 
J$2.85 in FY 2023.

This performance reflects the strategic, transformative leadership of Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited 
(“Cornerstone”), which has supported Barita’s growth since it acquired a controlling stake in 2018. Our growth, anchored 
in client-centric innovation, talent development, and technological advancement, has solidified our position as a market 
leader. We extend profound gratitude to our shareholders, bondholders, clients, and other stakeholders for their 
unwavering trust, which remains pivotal to our continued success.

This bond offering is designed to position Barita to capitalize on high potential opportunities both domestically and 
internationally, while effectively adding capacity to our balance sheet. The proceeds from this bond issuance will be 
allocated toward:

•	 Refinancing existing debt, specifically, J$84.15 million due and owing as at February 28, 2025 on Tranche 1 of 
the Unsecured Fixed Rate Bonds issued on February 28 and March 29, 2023.

•	 Funding strategic asset acquisitions to enhance our investment portfolio totaling J$393.17 million and US$2.20 
million (J$643.17 million and US$3.40 million if upsized).
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•	 Supporting trading of securities and investment banking deal execution to drive higher returns totaling J$786.34 
million and US$4.40 million (J$1.29 billion and US$6.80 million if upsized).

•	 Strengthening our liquidity position to maintain Barita’s position as a prudent capital allocator totaling J$786.34 
million and US$4.40 million (J$1.29 billion and US$6.80 million if upsized).

This risk-measured strategy is aimed at delivering sustained shareholder value while ensuring resilience against potential 
economic fluctuations. As we move forward, Barita remains committed to excellence, innovation, and sound financial 
stewardship, ensuring long-term success for our clients and stakeholders alike. 

We are therefore pleased to extend this Invitation to participate in Barita’s continued growth journey.

HOW TO MAKE AN APPLICATION FOR NEW BONDS

Investors who are interested in subscribing for New Bonds should read this Prospectus in its entirety, inclusive of the Risk 
Exposures detailed at Section 15, the trade information relating to the Company published on the JSE’s website and then 
complete the application process for the New Bonds on the BOSS Platform (see Appendix 1 for details).

All applications for New Bonds shall be made through the BOSS Platform or the online platform of a selling agent for 
the New Bonds. Prospective investors are invited and encouraged to view all trade information relating to the Company 
published on the JSE’s website at www.jamstockex.com.

Best regards,

Mark Myers
Chairman, Barita Investments Limited
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DISCLAIMER & 
ADVISORY ON 
FORWARD-LOOKING 
STATEMENTS
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SECTION 1: DISCLAIMER & ADVISORY ON
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

DISCLAIMER

Neither the Jamaica Stock Exchange (“JSE”), Financial Services Commission (“FSC”), Companies Office of 
Jamaica (“COJ”) nor any other Governmental agency or regulatory authority in Jamaica or elsewhere has made 
any determination on the accuracy or adequacy of this Prospectus.

The members of the Board, all of whose names appear in Section 9, are the persons responsible for the 
information contained herein. Having made all reasonable enquiries, and to the best of their knowledge and 
belief:

(a)	 the information contained in this Prospectus is true and accurate in all material respects and is not 
misleading in any material respect;

(b)	any opinions, predictions or intentions expressed herein on the part of the Company are honestly held 
or made and are not deliberately misleading in any material respect;

(c)	 that insofar as reasonably possible, all proper inquiries have been made to ascertain and to verify the 
foregoing; and

(d)	this Prospectus does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or fail to state a material fact 
necessary in order to make the statements herein, in light of the circumstances under which they are 
made, not misleading.

By submitting an Application, each Applicant acknowledges and agrees that:

(a)	 they have received and have been afforded a meaningful opportunity to review all additional information 
considered by such Applicant to be necessary to verify the accuracy of the information contained in 
this Prospectus;

(b)	they have not relied on the Company nor any persons affiliated with the Company or the legal or other 
professional advisor(s) to the Company in connection with their investigation of the accuracy of such 
information or their investment decision; and

(c)	 no person has been authorized to give information or to make any representation concerning the 
Company or the Invitation comprised in this Prospectus or the New Bonds as may be issued pursuant to 
this Prospectus or to provide information or to make any representation whatsoever in connection with 
this Prospectus (other than as contained in this Prospectus, and information given by duly authorized 
officers and employees of the Company in connection with the Applicant’s verification of the information 
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contained in this Prospectus) and that, if given or made, such other information or representation should 
not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company or any affiliate.

Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor the offering, sale or issue of any New Bonds hereunder shall under 
any circumstances imply that there has been no change in the business, results of operations, financial condition 
or prospects of the Company since the date of this Prospectus.

This Prospectus is not a recommendation by the Company that prospective Applicants should submit 
Applications for New Bonds. In making an investment decision, prospective Applicants are expected to make 
their own assessment of the Company and the terms of the Invitation herein, including the merits and risks 
involved.

No representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is made by any affiliate of the Company, the Arranger or 
by the legal or other professional advisors to the Arranger or the Company as to the accuracy or completeness 
of the information set forth herein, including, without limitation, information with respect to the Company, and 
nothing contained in this Prospectus is, or shall be relied upon, as a promise or representation by them, whether 
as to the past or future. The legal and other professional advisors to the Company have not independently 
verified any such information and assume no responsibility for its accuracy or completeness.

This Prospectus contains summaries believed by the Directors to be accurate with respect to certain terms of 
certain documents, but reference should be made to the actual documents (copies of which will be available 
to prospective investors upon request made to the Company) for complete information with respect thereto, 
and all such summaries are qualified in their entirety by such complete information. Prospective investors are 
not entitled to rely on parts of information contained in this Prospectus to the exclusion of other parts of this 
Prospectus.

Each prospective investor should consult with their advisors as to the legal, tax, business, financial and related 
aspects of subscribing for the New Bonds in this Invitation. Notwithstanding the inclusion in this Prospectus 
of such information with respect thereto, which the Directors believe to be accurate, neither the Arranger nor 
their legal or other professional advisors nor the Company, or any of their respective representatives, is making 
any representation or providing any advice to any Applicant or any other person regarding legal, tax, business, 
financial and related aspects of any person’s subscription for the New Bonds in this Invitation.

This Prospectus is intended for use in Jamaica only, and is not to be construed as extending an invitation 
to persons outside of Jamaica to subscribe for any of the New Bonds. The distribution or publication of this 
Prospectus and the invitation for subscription for the New Bonds outside of Jamaica is prohibited by law. The 
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Company requires that anyone receiving this Prospectus shall inform himself/herself about, and observe, such 
restrictions. This Prospectus does not constitute and may not be used for or in connection with, any offer to, or 
solicitation by, anyone in any jurisdiction other than Jamaica.

ADVISORY ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Save for the historical financial information relating to the Company presented by the Latest Audited Accounts, 
certain material in this Prospectus or referred to herein may contain forward-looking statements including, but 
not limited to, statements of expectations, future plans or future prospects, and financial projections. Forward-
Looking Statements are statements that are not about historical facts and speak only as of the date they 
are made. Although the Board of Directors of the Company believes that in making any such statements its 
expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements may be influenced by factors that could 
cause actual outcomes and results to be different or materially different from those projected. Prospective 
investors in the Company are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, 
which speak only as of the dates on which they have been made. Future events or circumstances could cause 
actual results to differ or differ materially from historical or anticipated results.

Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words such as “believe”, “expect”, “foresee”, “forecast”, 
“anticipate”, “intend”, “estimate”, “goal”, “plan” and “project” and similar expressions of future or conditional 
verbs such as “will”, “may”, “should”, “could” or “would”. When used in this Prospectus, such words and similar 
expressions, as they relate to the Company and its business, or actual or intended business relationships, 
are intended to identify those forward-looking statements. By their very nature, forward-looking statements 
require the maker thereof to make assumptions and are subject to numerous inherent risks and uncertainties, 
which give rise to the possibility that (i) such predictions, forecasts, projections, expectations or conclusions as 
contained in such statements may not prove to be accurate, (ii) these assumptions may not be correct and (iii) 
these forward-looking statements may not be achieved.

Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties. Once this Prospectus has been 
signed by, or on behalf of, the Company, the Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly or revise 
any of the forward-looking statements in light of new information or future events, including changes in the 
Company’s financial or regulatory position, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events (subject to any 
legal or regulatory requirements for such disclosure to be made). There are important factors that could cause 
actual results to differ or differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements, certain of which are 
beyond the Company’s control. These factors include, without limitation, economic, social and other conditions 
prevailing both within and outside of Jamaica. 
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All phases of our business are subject to important uncertainties, risks and other influences, certain of which 
factors are beyond the Company’s control. Any one of these factors, or a combination of them, could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements. These factors include, without 
limitation, the following: 

•	 Economic, social and other conditions in any jurisdiction in which the Company may invest or operate, 
including actual rates of economic growth in such economies, local, regional or global instability, 
interest rate or exchange rate volatility; 

•	 Adverse climatic events and natural disasters;

•	 The Company’s ability to gain access to capital financing at an acceptable cost, or business 
opportunities that meet the Company’s investment criteria;

•	 Changes in regulatory laws or policy adversely affecting the revenues or expenses of the Company or 
the business model expected to be employed by the Company;

•	 Any other factor(s) negatively impacting on the realization of the assumptions on which the Company’s 
financial projections are based; and/or

•	 Other factors identified in this Prospectus.

We caution that the foregoing list of risk factors is not exhaustive and other factors not set out above could 
also adversely affect our results. Prospective investors should carefully consider the foregoing factors and 
other factors set forth in Section 15 “Risk Exposure” before making an investment decision. When relying on 
our forward-looking statements to make decisions with respect to the Company, Applicants and others should 
carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events.
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SECTION 2: DEFINITIONS

WORD OR PHRASE DEFINITION

Allotment The allocation and issuance of New Bonds to successful Applicants

Applicant A person (being an individual or a body corporate) who submits an 
Application

Application An application for New Bonds submitted in the manner set out in 
Appendix 1 to this Prospectus 

Application List The application list in respect of the Invitation

Arranger Barita Investments Limited

Articles The Articles of Incorporation of the Company

Barita Barita Investments Limited

The Board of Directors of 
the Company or The Board

The Board of Directors of the Company whose signatures appear in 
Section 22

Bond Market The trading platform for debt securities established by JSE

Bondholder(s) Registered holder(s) of the New Bonds from time to time

Bondholders’ Majority
At any time, one or more Bondholder(s) holding New Bonds having 
an aggregate principal value of more than 50.0% of all outstanding 
principal value of all the New Bonds

Business Day
A day other than a Saturday, Sunday or public general holiday in 
Jamaica on which banks are generally open for business in Jamaica

Closing Date

The date on which the Invitation closes, being 4:00 pm on May 26, 
2025, subject to the right of the Company to shorten or extend 
the period during which the Invitation will remain open, in the 
circumstances set out in this Prospectus

Company Barita Investments Limited 



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

17

WORD OR PHRASE DEFINITION

The Companies Act The Companies Act, 2004 of Jamaica, as amended from time to time

Directors The Directors of the Company

FSC The Financial Services Commission of Jamaica 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted and applied in 
Jamaica by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica

Invitation The invitation to apply to purchase New Bonds in the Company on the 
terms and conditions set out in this Prospectus

Invitation Price or Price 100.0% of the principal face value of the New Bonds

JCSD

Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the JSE, incorporated under the laws of Jamaica to 
provide depository and settlement services for securities traded 
electronically on the floor of the JSE using a book entry system

J$ or JMD Jamaican Dollars

JSE The Jamaica Stock Exchange

JSE website The website of the Jamaica Stock Exchange at www.jamstockex.com

Latest Audited Accounts The Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended September 
30, 2024 posted on the JSE website

Lead Broker Barita Investments Limited will act on its own behalf in the 
implementation of the Invitation

Maturity Date

Tranche
I

Tranche
II

Tranche 
III

Tranche 
IV

Tranche 
V

Tranche 
VI

Tranche 
VII

Two (2) 
years from 
the Issue 
Date

Three (3) 
years from 
the Issue 
Date

Two (2) 
years from 
the Issue 
Date

Three (3) 
years from 
the Issue 
Date

Five (5) 
years from 
the Issue 
Date

Seven (7) 
years from 
the Issue 
Date

Ten (10) 
years from 
the Issue 
Date
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WORD OR PHRASE DEFINITION

New Bonds

Up to US$11,000,000.00 and J$2,250,000,000.00 unsecured 
bonds available for purchase in the Invitation (with the ability to 
upsize by inviting offers for an additional US$6,000,000.00 and 
J$1,250,0000,000.00)

Opening Date The date on which the Invitation opens, being March 28, 2025

Registrar Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited

Selling Agent(s)
The persons listed in Appendix 3 and any other licensed securities 
dealer approved by the Lead Broker to assist with the implementation 
of the Invitation

US$ or USD United States Dollars
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SECTION 3: SUMMARY OF INVITATION

The following summary information is derived from and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in 
its entirety by, the full text of this Prospectus, including the Appendices and the trade information published on 
the JSE’s website.

Potential investors are advised to carefully read this entire Prospectus and the trade information published 
on the JSE’s website, before making an investment decision about the transactions herein. Each recipient’s 
attention is specifically drawn to the Disclaimer & Advisory on Forward-Looking Statements in Section 1, 
and the Risk Exposure in Section 15 of this Prospectus for purposes of determining whether or not to apply/
subscribe for any New Bonds. 

If you have any questions arising out of this document or if you require any explanations, you should consult 
your stockbroker, licensed investment advisor, attorney-at-law, accountant or other professional advisor.

TABLE 3.1

Issuer Barita Investments Limited

Trustee JCSD Trustee Services Limited

Lead Broker Barita Investments Limited

Issuer’s Credit Rating

The current CariCRIS credit rating for the Issuer is as follows:
•	 jmA+ (National Scale Local Currency)
•	 jmA (National Scale Foreign Currency)
•	 CariA- (Regional Scale Local Currency)
•	 CariBBB+ (Regional Scale Foreign Currency)

Securities to be Issued

Senior Unsecured Bonds with the following tranches:
•	 7.00% USD Senior Unsecured Bonds Due 2027 (Tranche I)
•	 7.50% USD Senior Unsecured Bonds Due 2028 (Tranche II) 
•	 9.75% JMD Senior Unsecured Bonds Due 2027 (Tranche III)
•	 10.00% JMD Senior Unsecured Bonds Due 2028 (Tranche IV)
•	 10.50% JMD Senior Unsecured Bonds Due 2030 (Tranche V) 
•	 10.75% JMD Senior Unsecured Bonds Due 2032 (Tranche VI)
•	 10.90% JMD Senior Unsecured Bonds Due 2035 (Tranche VII)

The Company intends to apply to have the New Bonds issued pursuant to the Invitation 
herein listed on the Bond Market of the JSE
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Table 3.1  (CONTINUED)

Amount

•	 Tranche I  - Up to Five Million, Five Hundred Thousand United States Dollars 
(US$5,500,000.00), with the option to upsize to Eight Million Five Hundred 
Thousand United States Dollars (US$8,500,000.00)

•	 Tranche II - Up to Five Million, Five Hundred Thousand United States Dollars 
(US$5,500,000.00), with the option to upsize to Eight Million Five Hundred 
Thousand United States Dollars (US$8,500,000.00)

•	 Tranche III - Up to Four Hundred and Fifty Million Jamaican Dollars 
(J$450,000,000.00), with the option to upsize to Seven Hundred Million 
Jamaican Dollars (J$700,000,000.00)

•	 Tranche IV - Up to Four Hundred and Fifty Million Jamaican Dollars 
(J$450,000,000.00), with the option to upsize to Seven Hundred Million 
Jamaican Dollars (J$700,000,000.00)

•	 Tranche V - Up to Four Hundred and Fifty Million Jamaican Dollars 
(J$450,000,000.00), with the option to upsize to Seven Hundred Million 
Jamaican Dollars (J$700,000,000.00)

•	 Tranche VI - Up to Four Hundred and Fifty Million Jamaican Dollars 
(J$450,000,000.00), with the option to upsize to Seven Hundred Million 
Jamaican Dollars (J$700,000,000.00)

•	 Tranche VII - Up to Four Hundred and Fifty Million Jamaican Dollars 
(J$450,000,000.00), with the option to upsize to Seven Hundred Million 
Jamaican Dollars (J$700,000,000.00)

Tenor

•	 Tranche I  - Two (2) years, from the Issue Date, subject to the Issuer’s right of 
early redemption

•	 Tranche II - Three (3) years, from the Issue Date, subject to the Issuer’s right of 
early redemption

•	 Tranche II - Two (2) years, from the Issue Date, subject to the Issuer’s right of 
early redemption

•	 Tranche IV - Three (3) years, from the Issue Date, subject to the Issuer’s right of 
early redemption

•	 Tranche V - Five (5) years, from the Issue Date, subject to the Issuer’s right of 
early redemption

•	 Tranche VI - Seven (7) years, from the Issue Date, subject to the Issuer’s right of 
early redemption

•	 Tranche VII - Ten (10) years, from the Issue Date, subject to the Issuer’s right of 
early redemption
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TABLE 3.1  (CONTINUED)

Maturity Date

•	 Tranche I - Two (2) years from the Issue Date 
•	 Tranche II - Three (3) years from the Issue Date
•	 Tranche III - Two (2) years from the Issue Date
•	 Tranche IV- Three (3) years from the Issue Date
•	 Tranche V- Five (5) years from the Issue Date
•	 Tranche VI - Seven (7) years from the Issue Date
•	 Tranche VII- Ten (10) years from the Issue Date

Coupon Rate

•	 Tranche I  - 7.00% per annum
•	 Tranche II -  7.50% per annum
•	 Tranche II - 9.75% per annum
•	 Tranche IV -  10.00% per annum
•	 Tranche V - 10.50% per annum
•	 Tranche VI - 10.75% per annum
•	 Tranche VII - 10.90% per annum

Coupon Payment 
Frequency

Quarterly on an actual/365-day (366 in a leap year) count basis

Flexibility of Tranche 
Amount if the offer is 
oversubscribed:

If any tranche is oversubscribed, the Issuer reserves the right to change the amount 
of each tranche of similar currency such that the aggregate amount does not exceed 
Seventeen Million United States Dollars (US$17,000,000.00) for Tranches I and II 
and Three Billion Five Hundred Million Jamaican Dollars (J$3,500,000,000.00) for 
Tranches III, IV, V, VI and VII, assuming an upsize has occurred.

Invitation Price 100.0% of principal face value 

Minimum Subscription 
Amount

Applicants must request a minimum of US$500.00 for Tranche I and II. Applications 
above this amount shall be in multiples of US$50.00 
Applicants must request a minimum of J$50,000.00 for Tranche III, IV, V, VI and VII. 
Applications above this amount shall be in multiples of J$1,000.00
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Use of Proceeds

Proceeds will be used as follows:
•	 General Corporate Purposes to include:

	– Refinancing existing debt, specifically, J$84.15 million due and 
owing as at February 28, 2025 on Tranche 1 of the Unsecured 
Fixed Rate Bonds issued on February 28 and March 29, 2023; 

	– Fund strategic asset acquisition totaling J$393.17 million and 
US$2.20 million (J$643.17 million and US$3.40 million if upsized); 

	– Support trading of securities totaling J$393.17 million and 
US$2.20 million (J$643.17 million and US$3.40 million if upsized); 

	– Strengthen liquidity totaling J$786.34 million and US$4.40 million 
(J$1.29 billion and US$6.80 million if upsized); and 

	– Support investment banking deal execution totaling J$393.17 
million and US$2.20 million (J$643.17 million and US$3.40 million 
if upsized). 

•	 Settlement of transaction-related fees and costs totaling approximately J$200.00 
million.

Disclaimer: The allocation of net proceeds as set forth in this section titled "Use of Proceeds" 
represents the Company's current intentions based on its assessment of prevailing market 
conditions, operational priorities, and strategic objectives at the time of this offering. Notwithstanding 
the stated allocations, the Company retains full discretion to determine the allocation of funds 
among the identified categories or to apply proceeds toward other corporate purposes, as it deems 
necessary or appropriate, in response to changing market dynamics, regulatory developments, or 
unforeseen business opportunities.
Investors should therefore consider the stated use of proceeds as indicative rather than definitive. 
The Company will exercise its judgment in managing the deployment of capital to align with its 
overarching business strategy and to preserve financial and operational flexibility in the best 
interests of the Company and its stakeholders.

Default Coupon Rate Coupon Rate +2.00% per annum 

Default Coupon 
Calculation:

In the case of a default, the Trustee shall be entitled to calculate coupon payments 
due on a daily basis capitalized with monthly resets, on any payment made after the 
due date. 

Redemption
Mandatory Redemption: 
The Issuer will be obligated to redeem all New Bonds outstanding in full on the 
Maturity Date. 

TABLE 3.1  (CONTINUED)
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TABLE 3.1  (CONTINUED)

Redemption
(continued)

Optional Redemption: 
Tranches I and II: At any time after issuance and before maturity the Issuer reserves 
the option to early redeem the New Bonds in full or in part subject to sixty (60) days’ 
notice to the Trustee on behalf of Bondholders. This optional redemption is subject to 
a minimum of US$700,000.00 and increments of US$50,000.00.
Tranches III, IV, V, VI and VII:  At any time after issuance and before maturity, the 
Issuer reserves the option to early redeem the bonds in full or in part subject to sixty 
(60) days’ notice to the Trustee on behalf of Bondholders. This optional redemption is 
subject to a minimum of J$100,000,000.00 and increments of J$50,000,000.00.

The right to early redemption will be subject to the prepayment penalties outlined 
below:

Redemption 
Period

Prepayment Penalty (% of Nominal)

Tranche
I

Tranche 
II

Tranche
III

Tranche
IV

Tranche
V

Tranche
VI

Tranche
VII

Year 0-1 0.15% 0.30% 0.15% 0.30% 0.60% 0.90% 1.35%

Year 1-2 0.00% 0.15% 0.00% 0.15% 0.45% 0.75% 1.20%

Year 2-3 N/A 0.00% N/A 0.00% 0.30% 0.60% 1.05%

Year 3-4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.15% 0.45% 0.90%

Year 4-5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.00% 0.30% 0.75%

Year 5-6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.15% 0.60%

Year 6-7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.00% 0.45%

Year 7-8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.30%

Year 8-9 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.15%

Year 9-10 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.00%
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TABLE 3.1  (CONTINUED)

Mandatory Principal 
Repayment

Prepayment of the outstanding New Bonds obligations shall be required in full in the 
event of a Change of Control of the Issuer, a Material Adverse Condition or an Event 
of Default.

How Payable

Tranches I and II: In full in United States Dollars through the payment method indicated 
by the investor in the Application.
Tranche III, IV, V, VI and VII: In full in Jamaican Dollars through the payment method 
indicated by the investor in the Application.

Collateral The New Bonds are unsecured.

Financial Covenants

The Issuer will be subjected to testing against the financial covenant outlined below. 
Testing will be done on a semi-annual basis in accordance with IFRS accounting 
standards and to include the following:
•	 The Issuer will maintain the minimum regulatory capital required by the FSC: 

Minimum Regulatory Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: 10.0% 

The cure period to be observed in respect of any breach of the above shall be ninety 
(90) Business Days from the fiscal quarter end in relation to which one (1) or more such 
breaches have occurred.

Governing Law Laws of Jamaica

Taxation

The Issuer will make all payments of principal and coupon in respect of the New Bonds 
in accordance with applicable laws.

Each prospective investor should consult with an independent advisor as to the rate of 
taxes that is applicable to them. 

Tax Status All payments by the Issuer shall be paid net of withholding taxes.

Events of Default

An event of default shall occur where the default (except in the case of non-payment 
of coupon or the principal repayment) is capable of being remedied and has not been 
remedied within ninety (90) Business Days of a written notice from the Trustee (on 
behalf of the Bondholders) to do so, which will result in the Trustee, on behalf of the 
Bondholders, having the right to demand settlement of the outstanding principal and 
any accrued and unpaid coupon in respect of the New Bond(s) from the Issuer. 
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Events of Default
(continued)

The following shall constitute events of default:
a.	 Non-payment of coupon or the principal repayment within seven (7) days of the 

due date in respect of which written notice of the sum due has been given to the 
Chief Executive Officer, and the Senior Vice President, Finance within fourteen 
(14) days of the due date; 

b.	 A change of control (sale of >50.0% shareholding) of the Issuer without the prior 
written consent of a Bondholders’ Majority, such consent not to be unreasonably 
delayed, conditioned or withheld.  This restriction will not apply where any 
change of control with respect to the Issuer is required to facilitate any solvent 
amalgamation, reconstruction or reorganization required in compliance with the 
Banking Services Act, 2014 of Jamaica so long as the ultimate beneficial owners 
of the Issuer after such change shall remain substantially the same as the ultimate 
beneficial owners before the change;

c.	 If the Issuer is bankrupt or insolvent within the meaning of the Insolvency Act or if 
the Issuer gives notice to any of its creditors that it has suspended or is about to 
suspend payment of its debts;

d.	 The Issuer ceasing to operate as a going concern (where applicable);

e.	 Any material misrepresentation by the Issuer in the transaction documentation 
related to the New Bonds;

f.	 The occurrence of a material adverse change in the business environment or 
operations, performance, financial condition or prospects of the Issuer, which has 
had visible, material negative implications for the Issuer;

g.	 The Issuer failing to materially comply with any covenants set out in the transaction 
documentation related to the New Bonds and such default shall be certified by 
the Trustee as being materially prejudicial to the interest of Bondholders; or

h.	 If any amount owing by the Issuer to any financial institution or lender is not paid 
on the due date or becomes due or capable of being declared due before its 
specified maturity date by reason of breach or default under the terms of any 
agreement or instrument creating or evidencing the same or for any other reason 
whatsoever and such event is certified by the Trustee as materially detrimental to 
the interest of the Bondholders.

TABLE 3.1  (CONTINUED)
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Material Adverse 
Condition 

Bondholders reserve the right to demand repayment of the New Bonds where there 
is evidence of a Material Adverse Condition as evidenced by one or more of the 
following conditions: 
i.	 Material non-compliance with terms and conditions of the New Bonds;
ii.	 Significant deterioration in or development of factors that are likely to substantially 

impair the viability of the business of the Issuer as evidenced by one or more 
of the following: cash flows, profits and tangible net worth, change of internal 
controls and management; and

iii.	 Bankruptcy.

Application Guidelines See Appendix 1

Listing of New Bonds on 
JSE

The Company intends to apply to have the New Bonds issued as a result of this 
Invitation listed on the Bond Market of the JSE and intends to make such application 
to the JSE in accordance with the Rules of the JSE as soon as conveniently possible 
following the Closing Date and the allocation of the New Bonds.
This statement is not to be construed as a guarantee that the New Bonds will in fact be 
admitted to trading on the Bond Market of the JSE. 

Gross Proceeds, 
Transaction Costs and Net 
Proceeds

The gross proceeds from the Invitation, assuming that it is fully subscribed and 
not upsized, will be approximately US$11,000,000.00 and J$2,250,000,000.00 
(and, if fully upsized, will be US$17,000,000.00 and J$3,500,000,000.00) of which 
approximately J$200,000,000.00 is expected to be used to pay transaction costs and 
a portion will be used to refinance existing debt. The net proceeds from the Invitation 
are expected to be US$11,000,000.00 and J$ 2,050,000,000.00 (or if fully upsized, 
US$17,000,000.00 and J$3,300,000,000.00).

TABLE 3.1  (CONTINUED)
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TABLE 3.2

Estimated Timetable

The below timetable is indicative and will be implemented on a best-efforts basis, with 
the Directors of the Company however reserving the right to change the dates that 
the Invitation remains open and closes based on market conditions and other relevant 
factors. Notice of any changes in the dates for the opening or closing of the Invitation 
will be given as soon as reasonably practicable via a press release in Jamaica and/
or by posting a notice on the website of the JSE at www.jamstockex.com or at the 
Company’s website at www.barita.com 

Publication of Prospectus March 19, 2025

The Opening Date 9:00 a.m. on March 28, 2025

The Closing Date 4:00 p.m. on May 26, 2025

Announcement of Basis of 
Allotment

Applications will be accepted on a “first come first served basis”. If the Invitation is 
oversubscribed (after the exercise of the option to up-size, where applicable) it is likely 
that the New Bonds will be allocated on a pro rata basis, in which event Applicants may 
be allotted fewer New Bonds than were the subject of their Application(s). However, the 
Company (in the event of oversubscription) reserves the right to allot New Bonds on an 
alternative basis to be determined in its sole discretion including allotting a minimum 
of New Bonds to each Applicant and then allocating the excess on a pro rata basis or 
on such alternative basis as seems justifiable having regard to fairness and efficacy. 

The basis of allotment will be announced within six (6) business days after the Closing 
Date (or the extended Closing Date, as the case may be). All Applicants may refer to 
the confirmation instructions that will be posted on the JSE website 
(www.jamstockex.com) and the Company’s website (www.barita.com).

Returned Applications 
Refunds (if applicable)

Amounts refundable to Applicants whose Application is not accepted, or whose 
Application is only accepted in part, will be refunded (less any applicable bank charges 
and processing fees) and will be returned within ten (10) working days/business days 
of the Closing Date, or as soon as practicable, in the manner set out in Section 20.



PROFESSIONAL 
ADVISORS & 
SERVICE PROVIDERS 
TO INVITATION

29

B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

30

SECTION 4: PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS & SERVICE PROVIDERS TO 
THE INVITATION

LEGAL ADVISORS
MYERS, FLETCHER & GORDON
Attorneys-at-Law
21 East Street
Kingston 

Tel: 876-922-5860

Primary Contacts
Ms. Hilary Reid
Email: hilary.reid@mfg.com.jm 

LEAD BROKER
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Arranger & Lead Broker
15 St. Lucia Way
Kingston 5

Website: www.barita.com
Tel: 876-926-2681

Primary Contacts
Ms. Terise Kettle
Email: t.kettle@barita.com

TRUSTEE
JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Trustee & Paying Agent
40 Harbour Street
Kingston

Tel: 876-967-3271

Primary Contacts
Ms. Andrea Kelly
Email: andrea.kelly@jamstockex.com 

REGISTRAR
JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES
DEPOSITORY LIMITED
Registrar
40 Harbour Street
Kingston

Tel: 876-967-3271

Primary Contacts
Ms. Andrea Kelly
Email: andrea.kelly@jamstockex.com 

AUDITOR
BDO CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Auditor
26 Beechwood Avenue
Kingston 5

Tel: 876-926-1616

Primary Contact
Mr. Balvin Vanriel
Email: balvin.vanriel@bdo.com.jm 
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SECTION 5: THE INVITATION

By a resolution of the Company’s Board dated March 12, 2025 the Company was authorized to invite the public in Jamaica 
to apply to purchase up to US$11,000,000.00 and J$2,250,000,000.00 of New Bonds issued by the Company, subject 
to the terms and conditions of this Prospectus. The New Bonds will, upon issue, rank pari passu to all other unsecured 
indebtedness of the Issuer and senior to any outstanding or future preference & ordinary shares. The Company’s 
borrowing powers are set out at Appendix 5 and the Directors’ Resolution approving the Invitation is amongst the 
documents available for inspection.

TRANCHES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Tranche Tranche I Tranche II Tranche III Tranche IV Tranche V Tranche VI Tranche VII

Amount

Up to 
US$5,500,000.00, 
with the option 
to upsize to 
US$8,500,000.00

Up to 
US$5,500,000.00, 
with the option 
to upsize to 
US$8,500,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00, 
with the option 
to upsize to 
J$700,000,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00, 
with the option 
to upsize to 
J$700,000,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00, 
with the option 
to upsize to 
J$700,000,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00, 
with the option 
to upsize to 
J$700,000,000.00

Up to 
J$450,000,000.00, 
with the option 
to upsize to 
J$700,000,000.00

Tenor Two (2) years Three (3) years Two (2) years Three (3) years Five (5) years Seven (7) years Ten (10) years

Coupon 
Rate

7.00% per 
annum

7.50% per 
annum

9.75% per 
annum 

10.00% per 
annum 

10.50% per 
annum 

10.75% per 
annum

10.90% per 
annum

Maturity 
Date

Two (2) years 
from the Issue 
Date

Three (3) years 
from the Issue 
Date

Two (2) years 
from the Issue 
Date

Three (3) years 
from the Issue 
Date

Five (5) years 
from the Issue 
Date

Seven (7) years 
from the Issue 
Date

Ten (10) years 
from the Issue 
Date

The Invitation will be with respect to up to US$11,000,000.00 and J$2,250,000,000.00 of New Bonds, however, the 
Directors reserve the right to elect to upsize the number of New Bonds made available for subscription by no more than 
an additional US$6,000,000.00 and J$1,250,000,000.00 of New Bonds in the event that the Invitation is oversubscribed. 
The Company also reserves the right to take up any sum less than the offer amount stated above.

The Application List will open at 9:00 a.m. on March 28, 2025 (the “Opening Date”) and will close on May 26, 2025 at 
4:00 p.m. or such other date as may be fixed by the Board, (the “Closing Date”) subject to the Company’s right to close 
the Application List at any time without notice, if Applications have been received for the full amount of the New Bonds 
the subject of the Invitation. Applications are due within the period commencing on the Opening Date and ending on 
the Closing Date.
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Subject to the provisions in this Prospectus, the Company reserves the right to extend the period during which the 
Invitation will remain open. Allocations may be made on a prorated basis, within six (6) business days after the Invitation 
is closed, and an announcement will be made informing successful Applicants of their allocation of New Bonds.

Applications should be made in accordance with the procedure set out at Appendix 1 of this Prospectus and can be 
downloaded from the websites of the JSE at www.jamstockex.com and the Company at www.barita.com. Applications 
submitted prior to the Opening Date will be received, but not processed until the Opening Date, and will be deemed to 
have been received at the commencement of the Invitation.

The Invitation will close at 4:00 p.m. on the Closing Date subject to the right of the Company to: (a) close the Invitation at 
any time after it opens at 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date once the Invitation is fully subscribed; or (b) extend the period 
during which the Invitation will remain open for any reason.  In the case of the extension of such period or an early 
closing, notice will be posted on the website of the JSE at www.jamstockex.com and/or on the Company’s website at 
www.barita.com.

Each Application for New Bonds must be for a minimum of US$500.00 or J$50,000.00 of New Bonds and amounts 
above this shall be in multiples of US$50.00 or J$1,000.00 respectively of New Bonds (depending on the Tranche). Each 
New Bond is priced at 100.0% of the principal face value of the amount applied for and payment for the full amount for 
the New Bond applied for must be remitted to the Lead Broker or Selling Agent, as the case may be, in accordance with 
the procedure for applying for New Bonds and the Terms and Conditions of the Invitation as set out in Appendix 1 and 
Section 20, respectively.

The completed Application must be received by 4:00 p.m. on the Closing Date. Each Application must be accompanied/
supported by payment for the full amount of the purchase price for the New Bonds in the manner set out in Appendix 1. 

It is the intention of the Company to apply to the JSE for the New Bonds to be admitted to trading on the Bond Market of 
the JSE after the close of the Invitation. However, please note that this is a statement of intent and not a guarantee that 
the New Bonds will be so listed. The Company cannot guarantee that any of the New Bonds will be admitted to trading. 
If the application is successful, it is anticipated that the New Bonds will be admitted to trading within twenty one (21) days 
of the Closing Date (or the extended Closing Date, as the case may be).

THE NEW BONDS

On the Issue Date, the Company will issue to the Trustee, which will be deposited with the JCSD, a single Global Bond 
with respect to each tranche of New Bonds in the principal amount purchased by all Bondholders in such tranche up to 
the applicable maximum for such tranche and the JCSD will issue a depository receipt to each Bondholder. If any tranche 
is oversubscribed, the Issuer reserves the right to change the amount of each tranche of similar currency such that the 
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aggregate amount does not exceed Seventeen Million United States Dollars (US$17,000,000.00) for Tranches I and II and 
Three Billion, Five Hundred Million Jamaican Dollars (J$3,500,000,000.00) for Tranches III, IV, V., VI and VII, assuming an 
upsize has occurred. The forms of Global Bonds are set out in Appendix 6 hereto.

TRUST DEED

The New Bonds will be issued pursuant to a Trust Deed between the Company and JCSD Trustee Services Limited. 
Pursuant to the Trust Deed, JCSD Trustee Services Limited (the “Trustee”) has been appointed trustee for the benefit 
of Bondholders. The Trustee’s rights, powers and duties are set out in the Trust Deed and the Trust Deed contains the 
customary covenants of the Issuer to maintain its good standing, pay its taxes, keep proper books of account, and 
provide financial information and reports 60 days after each financial quarter and 120 days in the case of the audited 
financial statements.

INTEREST ON THE NEW BONDS

The New Bonds will bear interest at the Coupon Rates stated above (but during the subsistence of an Event of Default, 
the Default Coupon Rate stated above will apply) with respect to each tranche. The coupon with respect to each tranche 
of the New Bonds shall be paid quarterly in arrears, commencing on the date three (3) months after the Issue Date of 
each New Bond and will be calculated on an actual/365-day (366 in a leap year) count basis, except that the final coupon 
payment will be made on the Maturity Date. In the case of a default, the Trustee shall be entitled to calculate coupon 
payments due on a daily basis, capitalized with monthly resets, on any payment made after the due date. 

PRINCIPAL ON THE NEW BONDS

Principal, together with any accrued interest, will be due and payable on the relevant Maturity Date applicable to each 
tranche of the New Bonds. In addition, prepayment of the outstanding New Bond obligations shall be required in full in 
the event of a change of control of the Issuer, a Material Adverse Condition or an Event of Default.

OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT OF THE NEW BONDS

At any time after issuance and before maturity, the Issuer reserves the option to early redeem the New Bonds in full or 
in part subject to sixty (60) days’ notice to the Trustee on behalf of Bondholders. This optional redemption is subject 
to a minimum of US$700,000.00 and increments of US$50,000.00, in the case of Tranches I and II and a minimum of 
J$100,000,000.00 and increments of J$50,000,000.00, in the case of Tranches III, IV, V, VI and VII. In addition, the right 
given to the Issuer to early redeem the New Bonds will be subject to the prepayment penalties outlined below:
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Redemption 
Period

Prepayment Penalty (% of Nominal)

Tranche I Tranche II Tranche III Tranche IV Tranche V Tranche VI Tranche VII

Year 0-1 0.15% 0.30% 0.15% 0.30% 0.60% 0.90% 1.35%

Year 1-2 0.00% 0.15% 0.00% 0.15% 0.45% 0.75% 1.20%

Year 2-3 N/A 0.00% N/A 0.00% 0.30% 0.60% 1.05%

Year 3-4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.15% 0.45% 0.90%

Year 4-5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.00% 0.30% 0.75%

Year 5-6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.15% 0.60%

Year 6-7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.00% 0.45%

Year 7-8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.30%

Year 8-9 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.15%

Year 9-10 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.00%

COLLATERAL AND RANKING

The New Bonds constitute unsecured obligations of the Company. Consequently, a Bondholder’s right to payment of  
coupon and principal at the scheduled times is not secured against a particular asset of the Company. 

The New Bonds will rank pari passu to all other unsecured indebtedness of the Issuer and senior to any outstanding or 
future preference and ordinary shares.

NEGATIVE COVENANTS

The Trust Deed contains negative covenants usual for bonds of this nature, including, but not limited to, covenants on 
the part of the Issuer that it shall not undertake any of the following without the prior written consent of a Bondholders’ 
Majority, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed:

a.	 Change of control (sale of >50.0% of shareholding) of the Issuer, provided however that this restriction will not 
apply where any change of control with respect to the Issuer is required to facilitate any solvent amalgamation, 
reconstruction or reorganization required in compliance with the Banking Services Act, 2014 of Jamaica so long as 
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the ultimate beneficial owners of the Issuer after such change shall remain substantially the same as the ultimate 
beneficial owners before the change; and

b.	 No additional indebtedness to be undertaken by the Issuer while the Issuer is in breach of any covenants under the 
Trust Deed.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

A summary of the Events of Default which would allow the Trustee, on behalf of the Bondholders, to demand immediate 
payment of all principal and interest on the New Bonds is set out in Section 3 above. 

Except in the case of non-payment of coupon or the principal repayment, the Company has a cure period of ninety (90) 
Business Days of a written notice from the Trustee (on behalf of the Bondholders) to do so, to cure any breach capable of 
being remedied, and if such breach is not remedied within such period, only then will an Event of Default occur.

Upon (i) receipt of a notice or certificate from the Company or a Bondholders’ Majority that an Event of Default has 
occurred and is continuing or (ii) upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default by reason of non-payment 
of any sum payable to the Bondholders or the Trustee as aforesaid (after giving effect to any grace period applicable 
thereto or service of any requisite notice upon the Company or issuing of any certificate), then, the Trustee shall summon 
one or more meetings of Bondholders or otherwise poll Bondholders to determine by Bondholders’ Majority whether any 
one or more or all of the following action(s) shall be taken by the Trustee on behalf of Bondholders:

a.	 making a demand for payment under the New Bonds; and/or

b.	 declaring the principal sum owing on the New Bonds (with accrued interest thereon) and all other amounts owing 
in respect thereof be due and payable forthwith, whereupon the same shall immediately become due and payable; 
and/or

c.	 taking legal proceedings against the Company on behalf of Bondholders; and/or

d.	 taking any one or more Enforcement Actions (including the appointment of a receiver); and/or

e.	 take any other action deemed appropriate.
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SALE AND RESALE RESTRICTIONS

This Prospectus has been registered with the Financial Services Commission on March 19, 2025 and Registrar of 
Companies on March 14, 2025 and is intended for use in Jamaica only and is not to be construed as an invitation to any 
person outside of Jamaica to subscribe or apply for any of the New Bonds. Pursuant to the said Prospectus, the Bonds 
are tradable debt securities that are freely tradable in electronic format to members of the general public who have a 
valid JCSD account in multiples of US$50.00, in the case of Tranches I and II, and J$1,000.00, in the case of Tranches III, 
IV, and V, VI and VII.
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SECTION 6: INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Barita Investments Limited is a publicly traded company on the JSE, 75.7% owned by Cornerstone (as at 
September 30, 2024). Founded by Rita Humphries-Lewin in 1977, the Company has the distinction of being one 
of the oldest stock-broking companies in Jamaica. The Company is licensed by the FSC as a securities dealer 
and a trust services provider, is a member dealer of the JSE and has been designated as a primary dealer by 
the BOJ and licensed by the BOJ as a cambio.

Barita, home of one of Jamaica’s top-performing equity funds, has a legacy of excellence, and is recognized for 
its strong position in the middle market retail segment products and for Unit Trust performance.

Products and services include:

	` CAMBIO TRADING

	` FIXED INCOME TRADING

	` STOCK BROKERAGE

	` POOLED FUNDS MANAGEMENT

	` STRUCTURED PRODUCTS

	` RETIREMENT PLANNING

	` WEALTH MANAGEMENT

	` INVESTMENT BANKING

Through its subsidiary, Barita Unit Trusts Management Company Limited (“BUTM”), Barita currently offers seven 
(7) unit trust products spanning fixed income, equities and real estate. 

Barita serves its clients island-wide through its head office in Kingston and branches in Mandeville and Montego 
Bay. Barita handles over J$404.90 billion of assets under management (“AUM”) as reported in the audited 
financial statements as at September 30, 2024, with a team of approximately 161 full-time staff members across 
its operations island-wide as at September 30, 2024.  
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On December 5, 2024, CariCRIS, the Caribbean’s regional credit rating agency, assigned Initial Issuer/
Corporate Credit Ratings to Barita. The ratings can be found below:

•	 jmA+ (National Scale Local Currency)
•	 jmA (National Scale Foreign Currency)
•	 CariA- (Regional Scale Local Currency)
•	 CariBBB+ (Regional Scale Foreign Currency)

On the foreign currency regional scale, Barita’s level of creditworthiness is deemed by CariCRIS to be 
“adequate” while on the local currency (JMD) regional scale the level of creditworthiness is deemed to 
be “good”. On the national scale ratings (both local and foreign currency) the level of creditworthiness is 
deemed to be “good”. CariCRIS has also assigned a stable outlook on the ratings. 

The factors supporting the ratings include:

•	 STRONG MARKET POSITION
	– Barita is one of the oldest stockbroking firms in Jamaica with operations spanning over 40 years;
	– CariCRIS estimates that as at December 2023, Barita held 14.0% of Jamaica’s securities industry 

assets, making the Company a distinctive player in the local industry; and
	– CariCRIS estimates that Barita is the 2nd largest of the 7 primary dealers designated by the BOJ by 

total assets.

•	 INVESTMENTS IN IMPROVING EFFICIENCY AND CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT
	– In 2019, Barita introduced “Barita BOSS” which was established as a user interface through which 

clients can invest in public offerings;
	– In 2021, Barita launched “Bari the Bot”, an online digital customer assistant, available 24/7 on its 

website, to improve customer engagement with further enhancements being made in 2023 which 
enabled clients to initiate updated and provide feedback;

	– In 2023, the Company launched a revamped “Barita Goal-Setting Products and Services” (“Barita 
GPS”) which recommends an investment portfolio mix to clients based on their personalized 
investment goals and risk appetite; and

	– In November 2022, phase 1 of Barita’s new core implementation project was completed for its 
cambio business. Phases 2 and 3 are currently underway and this entails the implementation of a 
single platform across all business functions. This is expected to be completed by December 2026. 
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Full implementation of Barita’s new core platform is expected to facilitate, amongst other things, 
greater scalability, vulnerability management, deeper analysis, and enhanced reports. 

•	 SUPPORT FROM PARENT COMPANY
	– Barita benefits from receiving strategic support from the Cornerstone Group of Companies. The 

parent company provides support to Barita, including financial reporting, investment management, 
human resource management, legal and compliance functions;

	– According to CariCRIS, in the medium term, Barita is expected to benefit from cost savings in its 
operations through the utilization of shared resources as the Cornerstone Group of Companies 
reorganizes and expands; and

	– The Cornerstone Group of Companies is also able to support Barita through contingency funding, if 
required.

•	 GOOD GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND RISK MANAGEMENT PRACTICES
	– Barita’s Board of Directors comprises of three (3) sub-committees namely: i) Audit Committee, ii) 

Board Investment Committee and iii) Corporate Governance and Conduct Review Committee. Each 
sub-committee is composed of independent directors;

	– Over the last year, the Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) policies and procedures were 
strengthened to support enhanced monitoring and oversight in the areas of market, compliance and 
regulatory risks given the challenges faced in the local and global financial markets;

	– Emphasis has been placed on cybersecurity by updating Information Technology (“IT”) policies and 
procedures, frequent penetration testing to assess vulnerabilities and mitigate against attacks and 
training of staff members; and

	– Barita also adheres to and remains compliant with Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Financing of 
Terrorism and Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act guidelines, which support the maintenance of 
good investment relationships. 

•	 STRONG CAPITALIZATION
	– Barita has maintained a history of good capitalization with regulatory capital adequacy ratios 

in excess of the regulatory minimum of 10.0%. As at September 2024, Barita recorded a capital 
adequacy ratio of 25.5%; and

	– As at December 2023, Barita accounted for approximately 24.5% of the Jamaican securities 
industry’s total capital. 
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SECTION 7:  SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of the Company as at September 30, 2024 is divided as follows:

CLASS AUTHORIZED

Authorized ordinary shares at no par value 14,000,000,000

Authorized Preference Shares   1,000,000,000

Shareholdings in the Company as at September 30, 2024 are as follows:

DESCRIPTION NUMBER OF ISSUED
ORDINARY SHARES

Issued and fully paid Ordinary Shares (converted to stock units) 1,220,388,243

Issued Preference Shares 100,000,000

Total 1,320,388,243
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TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

As at September 30, 2024 the top ten shareholders on the Company’s register of members are as follows: 

TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF SHARES % SHAREHOLDING

Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited 923,560,965 75.68%

First Citizens Investment Services Limited 90,545,154 7.42%

Rita Humphries-Lewin 26,319,240 2.16%

Credit Union Fund Management Company Limited 17,127,519 1.40%

Cornerstone Group Employee Share Trust 14,135,242 1.16%

Tweedside Holdings Limited 14,073,348 1.15%

National Insurance Fund 8,191,553 0.67%

Trevor Heaven Holdings Limited 7,787,075 0.64%

Barita Unit Trusts Management Company Limited 6,274,458 0.51%

Karl P. Wright 6,217,218 0.51%

Sub-total 1,114,231,772 91.30%

Other Shareholders 106,156,471 8.70%

Total 1,220,388,243 100.00%
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SECTION 8:  DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company is guided by the FSC’s regulatory minimum capital adequacy ratio requirements in making 
any dividend declaration. Dividend considerations are supported by rigorous risk-based impact analyses on 
the Company’s financial health to include solvency, capital adequacy and liquidity risk impact along with the 
Company’s position relative to internal and regulatory capital thresholds. Dividend declaration considerations 
are also in keeping with the Companies Act.   

The record of dividends declared to the Company’s ordinary shareholders is as follows (information for financial 
years 2018-2024 is in respect of the ordinary shares of the Company):

FINANCIAL YEAR J$ GROSS DIVIDEND 
DECLARED

J$ DIVIDEND DECLARED 
PER SHARE

2018 - 2019 1,311,900,000.00 2.197

2019 - 2020 1,828,207,000.00 2.216

2020 - 2021 4,098,152,000.00 3.775

2021 - 2022 3,692,895,000.00 3.026

2022 - 2023 0.00 0.00

2023 - 2024 4,394,618,063.00 3.601
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SECTION 9: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

An astute businessman, Mark is the Managing Director of Restaurants of Jamaica 
Ltd. Mark holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Operations, Transportation and 
Distribution Management from Syracuse University’s School of Management. A believer 
in contributing to the development of his country, he has served on several boards 
to include the BOJ, Jamaica Trade and Invest and the Jamaica Observer. Mark is the 
recipient of the Commander of the Order of Distinction for his contribution to the 
business sector of Jamaica.

M A R K  M Y E R S  C D

Chairman

PAU L  S I M P S O N  C D,  M B A

Deputy Chairman

Paul is the Founder, President and CEO of Cornerstone. He is an Investment Banker 
with over 18 years’ experience having worked in the Caribbean, the United States and 
Europe in various roles. He has a track record of driving transformational growth through 
entrepreneurship, value creation, mergers & acquisitions, founding successful local and 
regional companies, and guiding portfolio companies from launch to full actualization of 
their intrinsic value. He has served on various government, private and charity boards 
including the Youth Arm of UNESCO, YMCA and the Jamaica Tourist Board where he 
was the Chairman of the Finance and Audit Committee.

Paul’s exceptional contributions to the Jamaican banking sector have earned him the 
distinguished honor of being conferred with the Order of Distinction at the Rank of 
Commander (CD) by the Jamaican Government.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree (double major) in Computer Science and 
Geology and an MBA in General Management from the University of the West Indies.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)

D U N C A N  S T E WA R T
Director | Chairman
Investment Committee

Duncan is the General Manager of 
Stewart’s Motors Limited and he is 
also involved in leading related family 
businesses, Stewart’s Auto Sales Limited 
and its affiliated companies, Stewart’s 
Auto Paints Limited, Tropic Island Trading 
Company Limited and Silver Star Motors 
Limited. Duncan is also a director of the 
Automobile Dealers Association and the 
Richard and Diana Stewart Foundation. 
Currently, he is a sponsor of the family 
charity, Kind Hearts, which is run by his 
children and their cousins.

P H I L L I P  L E E
Director

Phillip is Group Managing Director for 
the companies owned and operated 
by the Lee family. These include 
Labels & Boxes Limited and Rotoflex 
Jamaica Limited which are the leading 
manufacturers of labels and packaging 
materials in Jamaica. Phillip has over 
30 years of experience in the industry 
and his companies supply many of the 
largest Jamaican manufacturers, including 
GraceKennedy Limited, Red Stripe and 
Salada Foods Jamaica Limited. He has 
been involved in numerous successful 
packaging projects for these companies 
and continues to be consulted by the 
owners of major brands for his expertise.

JA M E S  G O D F R E Y
Director

James is the Co-Founder and Managing 
Director of S&G Road Surfacing 
Materials Limited. With over 30 years 
of entrepreneurial experience, James 
has built the entity into one of Jamaica’s 
leading asphalt manufacturing and road 
work solutions companies. Since its 
inception, S&G Road Surfacing Materials 
Limited’s portfolio of completed projects 
includes parking lots, driveways, 
multipurpose courts, roadways, 
roundabouts and related infrastructure 
projects in partnership with the National 
Works Agency, Gore Development 
Ltd. and China Harbour Engineering 
Corporation.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)

JA S O N  C H A M B E R S
Director 

Jason is the Chief Investment Officer 
of Cornerstone Group. He has over 
23 years of experience, spanning the 
range of securities trading, investment 
and treasury management, corporate 
finance, and corporate banking. Most 
recently, Jason held the position of Vice 
President of Investment Management 
at the GK Capital Management Ltd., a 
member of the GraceKennedy Group. 
Jason also headed the Corporate 
Banking Unit within First Global Bank 
Ltd. and was also a member of the senior 
management teams of the securities 
dealing subsidiaries of Guardian 
Holdings. Jason is a graduate of the 
University of the West Indies, where 
he obtained degrees in Economics and 
Business Administration. Jason has also 
obtained a Master of Science degree 
from the University of London.

R O B E R T  D R U M M O N D
Director

Robert is a business executive and 
management consultant with over 30 
years of experience leading and advising 
organizations through major strategic 
transformations. He has held executive 
appointments at prominent companies 
in Jamaica and the US, including First 
Global Financial Services Limited, NIKE, 
American Express and ITT Sheraton. As 
a strategy implementation specialist, he 
has contributed significantly through 
his research and publications including 
“Managing Resistance to Change” and 
“Organizational Turnarounds”. He holds 
an MBA from Harvard Business School.

C A R L  D O M V I L L E
Director | Chairman
Audit Committee

Carl is the former Chief Operating Officer 
and Group Treasurer of the Seprod 
Group of Companies. A Chartered 
Accountant, he is a trustee of the 
Seprod et al Superannuation Scheme. 
He is also a former President of the 
Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union 
League Limited, a former Chairman of 
The Gleaner Company (Media) Limited 
and a former director of Radio Jamaica 
Limited (“RJR”).
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S T E P H A N I E  S T E R L I N G
Company Secretary

Stephanie joined Barita in March 2020 
as Legal Counsel and is now Group 
Head of Legal. Prior to being called 
to the Bar, Stephanie gained financial 
advisory experience as a Consultant at 
PricewaterhouseCoopers and garnered 
commercial law experience as an 
Attorney-at-Law at Myers, Fletcher, & 
Gordon and Debbie-Ann Gordon & 
Associates. She holds a BA (Economics 
and History) from Stanford University, 
LLB (Hons) from the University of London 
and a Legal Education Certificate 
from the Norman Manley Law School. 
Stephanie has also obtained a Master 
of Laws (Banking and Finance Law) 
(Merit) from the University of London. 
Currently, Stephanie is the Chairperson 
of the Jamaica Business Development 
Corporation and the National 
Compliance Regulatory Authority.

P E T E R  G O L D O S N
Director | Chairman
Corporate Governance & 
Conduct Review Committee

Peter is the Senior Partner at Myers, 
Fletcher & Gordon, one of Jamaica’s 
premier law firms with over thirty-five 
(35) years’ experience in the profession.  
He is a well-respected commercial 
attorney with a broad experience across 
several areas including mergers and 
acquisitions, hotel developments and 
sales, capital markets and advising on 
regulatory matters.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)
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PAU L  S I M P S O N  C D,  M B A

Founder, President and Chief Executive Officer 
JA S O N  C H A M B E R S  M S c .

Group Chief Investment Officer

Paul is the Founder, President and CEO of Cornerstone. 
He is an Investment Banker with over 18 years’ experience 
having worked in the Caribbean, the United States and 
Europe in various roles. He has a track record of driving 
transformational growth through entrepreneurship, value 
creation, mergers & acquisitions, founding successful local 
and regional companies, and guiding portfolio companies 
from launch to full actualization of their intrinsic value. He 
has served on various government, private and charity 
boards including the Youth Arm of UNESCO, YMCA and 
the Jamaica Tourist Board where he was the Chairman of 
the Finance and Audit Committee.

Paul’s exceptional contributions to the Jamaican banking 
sector have earned him the distinguished honor of being 
conferred with the Order of Distinction at the Rank of 
Commander (CD) by the Jamaican Government.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree (double major) in 
Computer Science and Geology and an MBA in General 
Management from the University of the West Indies.

Jason is the Chief Investment Officer of Cornerstone Group. 
He has over 23 years of experience, spanning the range of 
securities trading, investment and treasury management, 
corporate finance, and corporate banking. Most recently, 
Jason held the position of Vice President of Investment 
Management at the GK Capital Management Ltd., a 
member of the GraceKennedy Group. Jason also headed 
the Corporate Banking Unit within First Global Bank Ltd. 
and was also a member of the senior management teams 
of the securities dealing subsidiaries of Guardian Holdings. 
Jason is a graduate of the University of the West Indies, 
where he obtained degrees in Economics and Business 
Administration. Jason has also obtained a Master of 
Science degree from the University of London.

SECTION 10: THE MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

EXECUTIVE SUPPORT FROM THE PARENT COMPANY (CORNERSTONE 
FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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Dane has over 20 years of experience in the financial 
industry with extensive experience in Market Risk, 
Strategy and Business Intelligence. Dane was Regional 
Director, Market Risk Management at Scotiabank, with 
responsibility for the governance of market risk exposures 
throughout the English-Speaking Caribbean. Dane earned 
undergraduate degrees in Mechanical Engineering and 
Economics & Business from Lafayette College and an MBA 
from the University of New Orleans. He earned the CFA 
Charter in 2006, the Financial Risk Manager designation in 
2007, and the Chartered Alternative Investments Analyst 
designation in 2019. Dane is the founding Vice President 
of CFA Society Jamaica and has been a CFA exam tutor 
at B&B University College since 2010 in the areas of 
Corporate Finance, Derivatives, and Quantitative Methods.

DA N E  B R O D B E R  C FA ,  C A I A ,  F R M ,  M B A 

CEO Designate Financial Holding Company & Acting CEO,
Cornerstone Trust and Merchant Bank Limited

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)

Gavin has over 23 years of accounting and financial 
management experience, spanning the financial services, 
food manufacturing and distribution sectors. Gavin is the 
Chief Operating Officer for the Cornerstone Group, prior 
to which he served as Group Chief Financial Officer. Prior 
to joining Cornerstone, Gavin spent in the USA as Chief 
Financial Officer for GraceKennedy’s North American 
operations. He was the CFO for GraceKennedy Foods 
(USA) and Divisional CFO, GK Foods before that. At 
GK Foods, Gavin provided financial leadership to the 
subsidiaries in the Foods Division both locally and 
internationally; supported the development of the division’s 
strategy and the evaluation of various strategic initiatives. 
Gavin was also Finance Director and Company Secretary 
of Carreras and CFO of First Global Bank, where he was 
ultimately responsible for the day-to-day operations of the 
accounting and financial reporting functions. Gavin holds a 
BSc. in Accounting and Economics from the University of 
the West Indies, a Master of Science degree in Financial 
Management from the University of London and is also 
a Certified Public Accountant. He is a member of the 
American Institute of the Certified Public Accountants and 
the Colorado State Board of Accountancy.

G AV I N  J O R DA N  M S c . ,  C PA

Group Chief Operating Officer
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S T E P H E N  P H I L L I B E R T  M B A ,  C FA 

Group Chief Financial Officer

Stephen recently joined Cornerstone as CFO. In this 
capacity he is responsible for the financial operations of the 
group, including financial reporting, capital and operational 
budgeting, tax management and financial controls. Stephen 
provides support on projects of strategic significance. Prior 
to joining the group, Stephen held a number of senior roles 
during a combined tenure of approximately 16 years with 
two other well-known Jamaican corporate entities, primarily 
in the areas of finance, strategy, mergers & acquisitions. He 
holds an MBA from the University of Toronto as well as the 
Chartered Financial Analyst designation.

S T E P H A N I E  M U R D O C K  M S c . ,  P M P,  S M C

Chief Human Resource Officer

Stephanie joins us from the National Export Import 
Bank of Jamaica Limited where she was General 
Manager, Corporate Services with responsibility for HR, 
Administration, Procurement and IT. She was the Director, 
HR Management at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs & 
Foreign Trade. With 20 years’ experience in the areas of 
HR, Change Management, Leadership Development and 
Industrial Relations, Stephanie pursued undergraduate & 
graduate degrees at the University of the West Indies and 
Post Graduate Certification in Public Policy from Peking 
University, China. She also has the Project Management 
Professional (PMP) designation. In 2015, Stephanie was 
recognized as one of seven Jamaicans to participate in the 
Advanced Leadership Development Programme – Canada 
Caribbean Emerging Leaders Dialogue, sponsored by 
McGill University.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

56

Percival holds two key roles: Data Insight and Impact 
Leader at the Cornerstone Group and acting Chief 
Operations Officer for Cornerstone Trust & Merchant Bank. 
With over 20 years of experience in the financial sector, 
he has worked in various positions including: Economist 
and Senior Risk Manager at top institutions. Percival’s 
educational journey includes a program in Artificial 
Intelligence from the University of Oxford, England. He 
also studied Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning 
at the University of Texas, Austin. He is also certified 
as a Financial Technology Professional by the Global 
Academy of Finance and Management and completed the 
Leadership and Organizational Development Program at 
the NCB Group. 
He earned his degrees - a Bachelor of Science in 
Economics and Statistics (first class honours), and a Master 
of Science in Economics (distinction) - from the University 
of the West Indies, Jamaica. Beyond his professional life, 
Percival co-founded Integrated Diaspora Services Limited, 
IDS LLC, and IDF Foundation, focusing on serving the 
Jamaican Diaspora and boosting economic growth

P E R C I VA L  H U R D I T T  M S c . ,  P G P -A I M L ,  C h F P

Group Data Insight & Impact Leader

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)

S T E P H A N I E  S T E R L I N G  L L B ,  L E C ,  L L M

Group Head of Legal, 
Cornerstone United Holdings Jamaica

Stephanie joined Barita in March 2020 as Legal Counsel 
and is now Group Head of Legal. Prior to being called to 
the Bar, Stephanie gained financial advisory experience 
as a Consultant at PricewaterhouseCoopers and garnered 
commercial law experience as an Attorney-at-Law at Myers, 
Fletcher, & Gordon and Debbie-Ann Gordon & Associates. 
She holds a BA (Economics and History) from Stanford 
University, LLB (Hons) from the University of London and 
a Legal Education Certificate from the Norman Manley 
Law School. Stephanie has also obtained a Master of Laws 
(Banking and Finance Law) (Merit) from the University of 
London. Currently, Stephanie is the Chairperson of the 
Jamaica Business Development Corporation and the 
National Compliance Regulatory Authority.
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Sebrena joined us from Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica 
Limited where she served as the Director of Operational 
Risk, Caribbean (North & Central). Her experience in 
financial services spans more than twenty (20) years in 
the areas of Non-Financial Risk Management, Financial 
Accounting & Internal Audit. She holds an MSc. in 
Enterprise Risk Management from Mona School of 
Business and Management (Distinction), a Bachelor of 
Business Administration (BBA) in Finance, and International 
Business (Hons.) from the University of Technology and 
earned the Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) 
and the Certified Risk & Information Systems Control 
(CRISC) designations in 2011 from the Information Systems 
Audit & Control Association (ISACA).

Wahed joined the Cornerstone team in 2023 and is an 
experienced finance professional with a demonstrated 
history of working in the financial services industry. Skilled 
in US GAAP, Budgeting and Forecasting, SQL Server, 
Securities, Portfolio Analytics & Reporting, Partnership 
Tax, Systems Implementation, Investor Relations, Investor 
Reporting, Operational Risk Management and SEC 
Compliance. Wahed holds the CFA and CPA professional 
certifications.

S E B R E N A  F R E E M A N  M S c . ,  C I S A ,  C R I S C ,

Group Chief Audit Executive
WA H E D  K H A N  C FA ,  C PA

Deputy Chief Financial Officer

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)
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An entrepreneur with over 10 years’ experience translating 
business needs to tangible technological solutions, Stefano 
is leading innovation efforts at CTMB. He is a former CTO 
in FinTech start-ups and a Director for Digital Channels 
solutions for the Financial Services Industry. 

Stefano holds an MBA from Kellogg School of Management 
and a BSc. in Computer Engineering from Universidad 
Simón Bolivar.

S T E FA N O  D ’A M B R O S I O  M B A 
Director Digital Strategy and Innovation

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY  (CONTINUED)
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Ramon is currently the Chief Executive Officer, Barita 
Investments Limited & Managing Director, Barita Unit 
Trusts Management Company Limited. He joined the 
Cornerstone Group in 2019 as VP, Asset Management 
& Research at Barita Investments Limited from the 
Jamaica National Group where he was Chief Investment 
Strategist and Head of Research at the Group’s investment 
subsidiary. His professional background spans the areas 
of Investment Research, Treasury & Portfolio Management, 
Corporate Strategy and Investment Banking. He currently 
serves as a Director on the Investment Advisory Board 
of the Salvation Army Caribbean Territory, a member of 
the Board and the Chairman of the Audit & Compliance 
Committee of the Council of Voluntary & Social Services, 
the umbrella arm for charities in Jamaica, and is an 
Alternate Director of the Jamaica Stock Exchange. He is 
also the sitting President of the Jamaica Securities Dealers’ 
Association (JSDA), the industry level group for investment 
banks in Jamaica. Mr. Small-Ferguson has earned the 
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), Chartered Alternative 
Investment Analyst (CAIA), and Certified Financial Risk 
Manager (FRM) designations. He also holds a Bachelor of 
Business Administration (BBA), Finance & Marketing (Hons) 
from the University of Technology, Jamaica and a Masters 
of Science in Quantitative Management (MSQM) from NYU 
Stern Business School, New York University.

R A M O N  S M A L L- F E R G U S O N
C FA ,  F R M ,  C A I A ,  M S c . ,
Chief Executive Officer

S O N I A  OW E N S  M B A

Vice President, Treasury and Financial Institutions

Sonia joined Barita Investments in 1984 and held several 
positions over the years including Trading and Investments 
Manager, culminating in her most recent promotion to Vice 
President, Treasury & Financial Institutions. She holds a 
B.Sc. in Banking and Finance from the University of the 
West Indies, has attended several professional training 
courses with JIM, JIB, Cl Financial and Euro Finance and 
has completed an MBA at Edinburgh Business School.

THE BARITA LEADERSHIP TEAM
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R I C H A R D O  W I L L I A M S  M S c .

Vice President,  Asset Management and Research

Richardo is Vice President at Barita Investments Limited 
with responsibility for Asset Management and Research. 
In this role he leads a team that supports all the revenue 
generating business lines and clients by providing research 
insights and analysis. He also has strategic responsibility 
for Barita’s Off-book business. His roles at Barita have 
included AVP Investment Strategy and Portfolio Advisory 
and Head of Investment Research and Portfolio Advisory. 
Prior to Barita, he worked as an assistant investment 
manager with the ATL Group Pension Fund, research 
and structured products analyst and a Corporate Wealth 
Advisor, both at NCB Capital Markets. His experience 
also spans ICT communications regulation and policy as 
an economist at the Broadcasting Commission, as well 
as an economist with the Ministry of Tourism where he 
did significant preparatory work for the Tourism Workers’ 
Pension Scheme. He has an MSc in Economic Development 
Policy and a BSc in economics and statistics.

A N M A R I E  WA L K E R  C ATO  M B A ,  F C C A

Senior Vice President, Finance 

Anmarie has spent much of her life cultivating expertise 
across multiple areas of finance and accounting. Today 
she stands as our Senior Vice President, Finance, having 
also held the positions of Assistant Vice President, Finance 
at Proven Wealth Limited, Senior Manager – Financial 
Control at First Global Bank Limited (FGB) and many more. 
A highly-qualified businesswoman, Annmarie holds a B.Sc. 
in Accounting and Management Studies from UWI, an MBA 
from Florida International University (FIU) and is an ACCA-
certified Chartered Accountant.

THE BARITA LEADERSHIP TEAM (CONTINUED)
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I A N  A N D E R S O N  M B A

Vice President - Information Technology

Ian joined Barita as Head, Non-Financial Risk & Enterprise 
Risk Management on June 1, 2020. Prior to his posting at 
Barita, Ian spent the majority of his career at Scotiabank 
Jamaica, where he served in varying capacities for over 
seventeen years. Ian earned an MBA in Management 
Information Systems from the Mona School of Business 
and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science 
from the University of the West Indies.

T E R I S E  K E T T L E  M B A

Senior Vice President, Investment Banking

Terise is the Senior Vice President, Investment Banking 
at Barita Investments Limited, where she leads a team 
focused on raising capital and providing strategic advice 
to local, regional and international clients. With over 
20 years of experience in the financial sector, she has 
successfully executed several monumental transactions 
over her career. Terise began as an external auditor at 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) and has held several 
key positions at the National Commercial Bank Jamaica 
Limited, RBC (Jamaica) Limited and prior to joining 
Barita, she held the position of Assistant Vice President, 
Corporate & Commercial Banking at Sagicor Bank Jamaica 
Limited. Terise holds an MBA (Distinction) in Banking and 
Finance from the University of the West Indies, along with 
a Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Management Studies 
and Accounting. Additionally, she has also successfully 
completed several post-graduate certifications in 
Project Management, Portfolio Management, Credit Risk 
Management and Advanced Credit Certification including 
Financial Accounting for Lenders and Complex Accounting 
for Corporations. Outside of her professional pursuits, 
Terise serves as a Director of the Student Loan Bureau 
(SLB) since 2019 and enjoys swimming and running.

THE BARITA LEADERSHIP TEAM (CONTINUED)
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G E O F F E RY  R O M A N S  A S A ,  M B A ,  C F C I

Senior Vice President, Risk Management

Geoffery is a senior Risk Management executive with over 
10 years risk management experience within the Caribbean 
Region. His vast risk management experience spans 
banking, insurance, treasury operations, off-shore banking 
and investment for multiple entities. He is formerly from 
the Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited and a founding 
member of Scotiabank’s English Caribbean Market Risk Unit 
where he served in varying roles such as Senior Manager 
Interest Rate Risk and Balance Sheet Management and 
most recently, Regional Director, Market Risk Management. 
He earned his MBA in Financial Management Specialty 
from Heriot-Watt University, Scotland, UK and his BSc in 
Mathematics (1st Class Hons) from the University of the 
West Indies.

S A R A  H E N R I Q U E S  M B A

Senior Vice President, Operations

Sara joined Barita on October 1, 2020 as Head of 
Operations. Prior to joining Barita, Sara garnered a wealth 
of experience in Treasury & Asset Management Operations 
within the financial services sector. She holds an MBA and 
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from 
the University of Technology both with a major in Finance.

THE BARITA LEADERSHIP TEAM (CONTINUED)
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DAV E  D I XO N  M B A ,  F C I B

Senior Vice President, Sales and Services

Dave joined Barita, with over 25 years in the financial 
industry. Prior to joining Barita Dave was the Director for 
Sales and Service at Scotia Investments Jamaica Limited 
having progressively been entrusted with increased 
responsibilities for leading sales teams at Scotia Group 
in the last fifteen years. Dave brings to the role significant 
experience in sales leadership, wealth management and 
distribution of Mutual Funds and Unit Trusts, business 
development along with strong leadership skills having 
led multi-functional sales teams. Dave is responsible 
for leading Barita’s retail branch network, customer 
experience, and developing retail strategic sales plans 
based on the company’s goals. Dave is a Fellow of the 
Institute of Canadian Bankers ( F.I.C.B ) and holds a Master 
in Business Administration with a specialism in finance 
from the Heriot-Watt University.

THE BARITA LEADERSHIP TEAM (CONTINUED)

S A N C I A  T H O M P S O N  M B A

Vice President, Premium Wealth & Corporate Solutions

Sancia joined Barita, with over 20 years in the financial 
industry. Her sales career commenced as a Financial 
Advisor at JN Fund Managers Limited, where she grew her 
assigned portfolio through consultative selling and portfolio 
advisory services. She has held several leadership roles 
within Sagicor Group Jamaica Limited and more recently 
as Regional Manager at NCB Capital Markets Limited. 
Sancia brings to the role significant experience in wealth 
management and distribution, new product development, 
business development along with strong leadership skills 
having led multi-functional teams. She is responsible for 
developing strategic sales plans based on the company’s 
goals by creating bespoke sales experiences delivered by 
an innovative and passionate team. She holds a Bachelor in 
Business Administration from the University of Technology 
and attended Florida International University where she 
attained a Master in Business Administration.
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K E R R I E  B AY L I S  L L B

Vice President, Strategic Business Development and 
Investor Relations

Kerrie is the Vice President of Strategic Business 
Development and Investor Relations at Barita Investments 
Limited, where she leads efforts to drive growth, build 
strategic partnerships, and enhance investor relations. 
Kerrie holds a Law Degree with honors from the University 
of Surrey in the United Kingdom. She has over 12 years 
of industry experience, having begun her career into 
finance with early mentorship and training at Morgan 
Stanley. Kerrie joined Barita in 2019 during a pivotal period 
of growth, where she launched the company’s Wealth 
Management division. Under her leadership, the division 
grew from a small client base to Barita’s top-performing 
unit in just two years, solidifying her reputation as a results-
driven leader. In her current role, Kerrie collaborates with 
various departments including sales, investment banking, 
and asset management to identify key relationships and 
business opportunities for Barita while also supporting on 
broader business development initiatives for the wider 
Cornerstone Group. 

THE BARITA LEADERSHIP TEAM (CONTINUED)

L E R O N E  PA L M E R  M S c .

Head, Compliance 

Lerone holds a significant position in the financial 
industry. He serves as the Head of Compliance at 
Barita Investments, where he utilizes over 15 years of 
experience in compliance roles, including previous work 
at Scotiabank. His expertise is crucial in ensuring that the 
institution adheres to regulatory requirements, thereby 
safeguarding client investments and maintaining financial 
integrity. Lerone has also pursued academic excellence, 
having completed a Masters with distinction in Enterprise 
Risk Management from the University of West Indies and 
holds other postgraduate certifications.



GOVERNANCE 
FRAMEWORK

B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

65



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

66

SHAREHOLDERSRegulators

Internal Audit

Risk

Compliance

External
Auditors

Management
Investment

Committees*

Leadership
Team

CEO

Non-Financial Risk 
Committee

Board
Investment 
Committee

IT Steering 
Committee

Audit
Committee

Corporate 
Governance & 

Conduct Review
Committtee

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Our Governance Framework

*The Management Investment Committees consist of the On-Book Investment Committee and Off-Book Investment Committee.
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The Board is the primary decision-making body of the 
Company charged statutorily with setting and directing the 
strategic course of the Company and advising, supervising 
and monitoring the work of the Management team against 
approved objectives and their effectiveness. The day-to-
day management functions of the Company are delegated 
to the Management team, including implementing the 
key strategic objectives of the business. The Board 
also delegates some of its decision-making authority to 
its various committees, which are required to operate 

within prescribed terms of reference and parameters, to 
facilitate focus on technical or specialized matters. The 
Board remains ultimately responsible to stakeholders for 
the performance of the Company and for ensuring the 
Company operates within the parameters of applicable 
laws and regulations and in accordance with sound 
business practices.

The responsibilities of the Board include the following:

Board of Directors’ 
Responsibilities

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

GOVERNANCE: •	 Overseeing the Company’s approach to corporate governance and approving the 
development of principles and guidelines consistent with regulatory requirements 
and international best practices; and

•	 Ensuring adherence to corporate governance policies and guidelines and codes 
of conduct as well as regulatory and statutory requirements.

STRATEGY: •	 Assisting with the development of the Company’s vision and mission;

•	 Overseeing the implementation of the Company’s strategic plan, the organizational 
structure, and succession planning for senior management; and

•	 Reviewing and approving the Company’s business plans and forecasts and 
reviewing actual performance against plans and forecast/budgets.
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FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE:

•	 Evaluating financial results and ensuring that reports in respect thereof are 
produced in keeping with international standards so as to give a fair and accurate 
report of the Company’s performance; and

•	 Agreeing on the objectives of the Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer and 
reviewing their performance.

HUMAN 
RESOURCES:

•	 Retaining the authority to appoint and remove the Managing Director/Chief 
Executive Officer as well as other senior executives; and

•	 Ensuring the development of a succession plan for the Managing Director/ Chief 
Executive Officer and other senior executives.

RISK 
MANAGEMENT:

•	 Approving the Company’s risk framework and policies and ensuring alignment 
with the Company’s business strategy and goals;  and

•	 Identifying the principal business risks and ensuring the implementation of 
appropriate systems to mitigate and manage the key risks and to enable 
compliance with such policies.

INTERNAL 
CONTROLS:

•	 Assessing and reviewing the adequacy and integrity of internal systems and 
controls generally; and

•	 Evaluating and reviewing the adequacy of the Company’s compliance with 
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

COMMUNICATIONS: •	 Reviewing the Company’s communications framework to ensure the dissemination 
of information and required disclosures in a timely and fulsome manner with 
stakeholders; and

•	 Ensuring the development of infrastructure to facilitate timely and accurate 
disclosure of information required to be disclosed.
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Board and Management-
Level Committees

Management-Level Committees

Board – Level Committees

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

MANAGEMENT
INVESTMENT 
COMMITTEES

BOARD INVESTMENT 
COMMITTEE

NON-FINANCIAL RISK 
COMMITTEE

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE & 

CONDUCT REVIEW 
COMMITTEE

IT STEERING 
COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides guidance and oversight on financial reporting and risk issues in accordance with its terms 
of reference. The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in overseeing the financial and operational 
reporting process, assessing the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management systems as well as overseeing 
the external and internal audit processes. The Audit Committee also has responsibility for reviewing and recommending 
to the Board for approval policies and procedures which touch and concern its areas of responsibility, as well as ensuring 
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. It serves as a conduit between our internal auditors and the Board 
regarding the strengthening and maintenance of internal processes via internal controls and operating compliance. 

It also interacts directly with the External Auditor on matters involving the preparation of the audited financial statements. 
Activities of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to the following:

•	 Reviewing Internal Audit Plan;

•	 Receiving Risk Reports and approve the revision of limits;
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•	 Reviewing of quarterly unaudited financial statements and the audited financial statements with members of the 
Management team and recommending approval of their release to the JSE to the Board; and

•	 Reviewing AML/CFT Policies and Procedure

Members of the Audit Committee include:

•	 Carl Domville (Chairman)

•	 Robert Drummond

•	 Duncan Stewart

•	 Phillip Lee

BOARD INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Board Investment Committee has strategic oversight of the investment and funding activities of the Company as well 
as the management of the various risks inherent in these activities. Its responsibilities include: 

•	 Overseeing the development and maintenance of the investment policy and to ensure alignment of the investment 
policy with the Group’s risk appetite, as well as the prevailing and expected business and economic climates;

•	 Ensuring the adequacy of the governance structure of the investment processes of the Company as well as the 
various systems and internal controls designed to ensure the investment portfolios are managed according to the 
investment policies as well as within various internal and regulatory limits and guidelines;

•	 Periodically reviewing the organization, strategy and effectiveness of the Company’s investment function; and

•	 Overseeing of the Company’s funding strategy and policies to include but not be limited to matters surrounding share 
issuance or repurchase, debt issuances, dividend policy setting and the initiation or amendment of terms of revolving 
credit facilities.

Members of the Board Investment Committee:

•	 Duncan Stewart (Chairman)

•	 Jason Chambers

•	 Paul Simpson

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & CONDUCT REVIEW COMMITTEE

The following areas fall under the purview of the Corporate Governance & Conduct Review Committee pursuant to its 
terms of reference:

•	 Reviewing Board procedures to ensure compliance with international corporate governance best practices and 
business trends;
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•	 Identifying and managing conflicts of interest which may arise from transactions conducted with related parties;

•	 Engaging independent consultants to undertake board evaluation; and

•	 Considering matters relating to the appointment, orientation, training, conduct, compensation and tenure of Directors 
of the Board.

Members of the Corporate Governance & Conduct Review Committee:

•	 Peter Goldson (Chairman)

•	 Carl Domville

•	 Phillip Lee

MANAGEMENT-LEVEL COMMITTEES

In addition to the Board-Level Committees, the Barita Governance framework is supported by three standing committees 
which also act as escalation bodies along with other ad hoc management committees. These committees act as a 
complement to the Board-Level Committees and enable more comprehensive governance of risks. 

MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT COMMITTEE (“MIC”)

The MIC standing membership comprises a mix of persons including the Group Chief Investment Officer who chairs the 
committee, the CEO Designate, Barita Financial Group, the Group Chief Risk Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice 
President, Finance and Senior Vice President, Operations. The committees meet a minimum of once per month or as 
required by the Chair and is responsible for providing strategic direction and setting appropriate limits within the parameters 
determined by the Board in the management of investment related risks but with specific focus on the following matters:

•	 Capital structure and related matters; 

•	 Funding Risk; 

•	 Liquidity Risk; 

•	 Interest Rate Risk; 

•	 Credit Risk; 

•	 Net Interest Margin on the Company’s Assets and Liabilities; 

•	 Foreign Exchange Risk; 

•	 Pricing of assets, liabilities and funding products; and

•	 The development and execution of investment strategies designed to maximise portfolio returns within stated risk 
limits.
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IT STEERING COMMITTEE (“IT STEERCO”)

The IT SteerCo membership comprises the Group Chief Operating Officer, who chairs the committee, the Group Chief 
Investment Officer, the Chief Executive Officer of Cornerstone Trust and Merchant Bank Limited (“CTMB”) and Barita, the 
Chief Technical Officer for CTMB, the Vice President of Information Technology for Barita, the Head, Project Management 
Office, and two external subject matter experts. The committee meets monthly or as required by the Chair and its role 
includes:

•	 Approving Group and subsidiaries’ IT strategy; 
•	 Ensuring that there are adequate policies and procedures in place to provide for data security of customer and 

company information; 
•	 Ensuring IT capabilities are sufficiently monitored and reviewed to ensure the infrastructure is capable of meeting the 

demands of the Group and subsidiaries; 
•	 Overseeing the IT practices to ensure the Group’s and subsidiaries’ priorities are met; 
•	 Contributing to and approving strategic and operational plans for IT resources which align with the Group’s mandate;
•	 Identifying and considering strategic IT initiatives required for the Group and subsidiaries to meet their strategic 

objectives; 
•	 Reviewing and approving IT Investments which align with strategic and operational priorities; 
•	 Reviewing the IT workforce capability and recommending strategies for development if required to ensure the Group 

and subsidiaries’ priorities can be delivered; and 

•	 Reviewing progress and approving final deliverables for all projects.

NON-FINANCIAL RISK COMMITTEE (“NFRC”)

The NFRC’s membership comprises a mix of persons including the heads of businesses and executives of Cornerstone. 
The committee’s role is as follows:
•	 Policy Management; 

	– Creating, reviewing, and providing recommendations to the Board on policies addressing non-financial risk     
categories; 

	– Approving/recommending risk assessment outputs as requested by the Chair; 
•	 Promote and embed the enterprise-wide risk culture; 
•	 ERM Framework Monitoring; 

	– Making recommendations on changes to the ERM Framework; 
	– Monitoring Key Risk Indicators and Risk Appetite; 

•	 Ensuring sound identification, assessment, and management of existing and emerging risks (internal and external) to 
the enterprise; and

•	 Approving New Initiatives Products or Business Changes (“NIPC”) Risk Assessments and provide advice and counsel 
on NIPC proposals.
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SECTION 12:  AUDITOR'S REPORT

Prospective investors are invited to view the latest audited financial statements, for the Auditor’s Report on the website of 
the Jamaica Stock Exchange at www.jamstockex.com and at Appendix 2 herein.
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SECTION 13: PRESENTATION OF CURRENT & HISTORICAL FINANCIAL  
INFORMATION

The Company’s latest audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2024 are annexed in Appendix 
2. Additionally, prospective Investors may also view the audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 
2024 concerning the Company on the website of the Jamaica Stock Exchange at www.jamstockex.com. This Prospectus 
is to be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the Company for the year ended September 30, 
2024. The financial statements can also be viewed at Barita’s registered office located at 15 St. Lucia Way, Kingston 5, St. 
Andrew, Jamaica from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  

The following is a presentation of the key financial data (in JMD) for the Company for each financial year in the 6-year 
period September 30, 2019 to September 30, 2024.
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AUDITED KEY FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE 6-YEAR PERIOD SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 TO 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Consolidated Income Statement 
(in J$)

2019 
$’000

2020
$’000

2021
$’000

2022
$’000

2023
$’000

2024
$’000

Revenues

Net interest income 650,999 882,589 1,541,340 1,672,170 581,191 646,217

Fees & commission income 693,273 1,827,376 3,119,153 3,022,287 3,403,170 3,708,502

Dividend income 30,670 8,677 1,054 31,842 86,771 117,223

Foreign exchange trading & translation 
gains 353,503 978,451 1,846,551 791,514 604,319 593,917

Gain on sale of investments
and trading profits 1,873,298 1,412,958 1,580,546 3,361,280 4,356,726 4,871,584

Other income 378,031 103,918 27,618 72,640 61,971 60,531

NET OPERATING REVENUE 3,979,774 5,213,969 8,116,262 8,951,733 9,094,148 9,997,974

Expenses

Staff costs 553,550 846,090 1,254,306 1,710,201 1,735,769 1,660,759

Administration 896,738 1,151,116 1,790,780 2,091,226 2,873,530 2,682,352

Impairment of available-for-sale 
investment 75,162 110,794 6,447 3,985 325 640,954

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,525,450 2,108,000 3,051,533 3,805,412 4,609,624 4,984,065

Share of results of investment
in associated company - - 57,144 96,167 95,028 24,078

Total operating expenses 
(exc. impairment) 1,450,288 1,997,206 3,045,086 3,801,427 4,609,299 4,343,111

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2,454,324 3,105,969 5,121,873 5,242,488 4,579,552 5,037,987

Taxation 741,543 347,440 1,063,276 1,021,226 1,164,552 1,222,338

NET PROFIT 1,712,781 2,758,529 4,058,597 4,221,262 3,415,000 3,815,649
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Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position (in J$)

2019 
$’000

2020
$’000

2021
$’000

2022
$’000

2023
$’000

2024
$’000

Assets

Cash and bank balances 787,920 5,277,608 3,816,326 1,027,765 1,969,835 1,418,377

Resale agreements 14,678,974 8,039,603 8,872,136 2,608,878 564,013 5,772,918

Investment aecurities 11,042,562 13,939,095 14,128,717 24,285,629 22,331,633 18,982,704

Pledged assets 10,928,445 35,425,728 50,293,982 61,603,598 83,717,008 89,568,260

Investment in associates - - 2,053,423 2,186,695 2,281,723 2,305,801

Receivables 748,517 2,986,408 1,081,304 3,101,644 2,866,597 7,321,501

Taxation recoverable  - 183,299 - 479,552 398,511 453,035

Loans receivables 751,846 1,717,229 5,911,713 10,606,593 11,127,097 13,345,684

Due from related companies 1,624,584 1,979,035 2,518,556 938,835 753,516 1,400,119

Property, plant and equipment 353,275 609,821 1,014,416 993,654 943,136 836,782

Intangible assets 33,531 18,399 19,478 14,777 21,501 402,093

Investments 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000

Investment property - 203,400 210,000 214,200 225,000 235,857

Deffered tax assets - - - 1,351,993 687,797 -

Right of use assets - 256,588 233,974 231,882 252,274 216,918

TOTAL ASSETS 41,004,654 70,691,213 90,209,025 109,700,695 128,194,641 142,315,049



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

79

Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position (in J$)

2019 
$’000

2020
$’000

2021
$’000

2022
$’000

2023
$’000

2024
$’000

Liabilities

Bank overdraft 71,819 8,720 8,635 11,587 45,109 14,108

Short term loans/Notes payable - 611,947 1,022,055 11,204,694 5,940,517 2,516,170

Repurchase agreements 24,092,810 34,446,619 45,592,518 59,653,515 76,546,630 84,332,260

Other debt facilities - - - - 8,300,997 13,953,557

Lease liability - 282,298 274,840 287,207 308,395 265,537

Payables 1,739,686 6,970,314 2,627,411 3,271,454 1,466,664 5,247,416

Dividend payable - - 3,288,292 3,026,563 - -

Due to related parties 77,711 273,744 144,013 62,197 199,726 189,316

Taxation payable 730,500 943,708 - - -

Deferred tax liabilities 622,850  616,891 61,237 - - 494,285

TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,335,376 43,210,533 53,962,709 77,517,217 92,808,038 107,012,649

Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital 10,699,381 24,146,554 33,135,904 32,389,351 32,814,050 32,830,110

Capital reserve 111,466 111,466 122,073 148,655 175,988 175,988

Fair value reserve 685,248 25,054 (256,512) (4,068,759) (4,535,805) (3,956,320)

Capital redemption reserve 220,127 220,127 220,127 220,127 220,127 220,127

Retained earnings 1,953,056 2,977,479 2,937,924 3,307,820 6,689,943 6,002,155

Stock option reserve - - 86,800 186,284 22,300 30,340

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY 13,669,278 27,480,680 36,246,316 32,183,478 35,386,603 35,302,400

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 41,004,654 70,691,213 90,209,025 109,700,695 128,194,641 142,315,049
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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – DECEMBER 2024
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SECTION 14: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion & Analysis (“MD&A”) focuses on the financial years ended September 30, 2019 to 
September 30, 2024 and the quarter ended December 31, 2024.

INTRODUCTION – GLOBAL AND LOCAL BACKDROP

Since the advent of the COVID-19 pandemic, the world has experienced an almost complete shutdown in trade, soaring 
levels of inflation, rising geopolitical risks in Europe, North America, and the Middle East, and consecutive interest rate 
hikes at a pace not seen in decades. Globally, central banks rapidly increased benchmark rates during 2022 and 2023, 
with developed economies beginning their rate hike cycle later than most emerging market economies. This policy action 
by monetary authorities around the globe came in response to rising inflation, which at first was deemed to be ‘transitory’, 
leading to the late response by many developed economies. The aggressive rate increase observed in most economies, 
along with other monetary policy tightening actions, had various effects on financial markets worldwide. Fast forward 
to 2024 and we had begun to see a change in this monetary policy posture. Currently, most advanced economies have 
released economic data that broadly suggest a full rebound in economic activity, with growth rates in many developed 
and emerging market economies now returning to their long-run averages. Consistent with this, the most recent core 
personal consumption expenditure (“PCE”) point-to-point inflation rate (January 2025) of 2.6%1, down from a high of 5.6% 
(February, March and September 2022) in the world’s largest economy, the United States of America, indicates that the 
inflation rate in the United States has materially decreased and has trended towards the Federal Reserve’s (“the Fed”) 
target of 2.0% over time. Notwithstanding, the most recent Headline Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) outturn for January 
2025 increased slightly by 3.0%, relative to January 2024, which suggests that there are some lingering upward price 
pressures. While the Fed acts on core PCE inflation, the CPI result, which precedes the PCE result, does give some 
insight. Notwithstanding the slight uptick, the general trend of inflation in recent months has led to the Fed deciding to 
cut its policy rate, for the first time since 2020, by 50 basis points (“bps”) at its Federal Open Market Committee meeting 
in September 2024 and by a further 25 bps each in November 2024 and December 2024.2

Similarly, the same obtains on a worldwide basis with the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) projecting global inflation 
to fall to 5.0%3 by the end of 2024, down from 8.8% in 2022 and 6.1% in 2023.

Locally, the point-to-point inflation rate has significantly improved recently, with point-to-point inflation rate of 4.7% as at 
January 2025, compared to 7.4% as at January 20244.  This rate is within the BOJ’s target of 4.0% - 6.0%. Occasionally, 

1 Source: Personal Income and Outlays, January 2025 | U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA)

2 Source: Fed cuts by a quarter point, indicates fewer reductions ahead

3 Source: World Economic Outlook Database

4 Source: Statistical Institute of Jamaica
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the rate has breached the upper limit of the BOJ’s target but this has largely been momentary spikes caused by specific 
idiosyncratic issues, such as the passing of hurricane Beryl. With that said, on balance, inflation has fallen markedly as 
noted earlier. As a result of this recent trend in Jamaica’s inflation rate and the BOJ’s inflation rate forecasts, the BOJ 
decided to cut its policy rate, for the first time since 2019, by 25 bps in August 2024, followed by additional cuts of 25 
bps in September 2024, November 2024 and December 20245, respectively. 

MARKET REVIEW

United States – Economic Growth, Inflation and Unemployment

The US economy continues to experience positive real GDP growth despite contending with relatively high interest 
rates (though the trajectory has begun to shift downwards) not seen since the Global Financial Crisis, some sixteen (16) 
years ago. According to the Bureau of Economic Analysis, real GDP grew by 2.8% in calendar year 2024, compared to 
an increase of 2.9% in 2023.6  This was largely supported by strong consumer spending, exports, investment and federal 
government spending. Strong consumer spending also continued to support job gains, as the US unemployment rate 
stands at 4.1%, according to the February 2025 report.7  The Bureau of Labor Statistics (“BLS”) outlined that employment 
gains in the month were primarily concentrated in 
health care, financial activities, transportation and 
warehousing, and social assistance. With the US 
unemployment rate near historic lows and consumer 
demand remaining strong, point-to-point inflation 
continued to trend slightly above the Fed’s target 
range, with headline PCE inflation for January 
2025 at 2.5%. On a month-over-month basis, PCE 
inflation rose 0.3% in January 2025 after rising by 
0.3% in December 2024, reflecting continued price 
pressures in goods. On a year-over-year basis, core 
inflation (all items less food and energy) rose 2.6% 
in January 2025, largely reflecting continued price 
pressures in services.8

UNITED STATES INLFATION RATE (YOY)
SOURCE: IMF
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5 Source: Monetary Policy Decisions & Schedule

6 Source: Gross Domestic Product, 4th Quarter and Year 2024 (Advance Estimate)

7 Source: Employment Situation Summary

8 Source: Personal Income and Outlays, November 2024 | U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA)
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JAMAICA – ECONOMIC GROWTH, INFLATION AND UNEMPLOYMENT GROWTH

The Jamaican economy, like much of the global 
economy, has also recovered from the negative 
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, experiencing 
record value-added growth in 2021 and 2022 as 
the economy rebounded from a significant fall-off 
in economic activity. While growth in 2023 largely 
began to moderate, gradually returning to its long-
run trend, economic activity across some industries 
remains buoyant. 

More recently, the Statistical Institute of Jamaica 
(“STATIN”) reported that the real value added for 
the Jamaican economy declined by 3.5% in the 
third quarter of 2024 relative to the third quarter 
of 2023. The real GDP decline was primarily driven by the decline in the Goods Producing Industries and Services 
Industries. Within the Goods Producing industries, the Agriculture, Forestry & Fishing industry’s real value added fell 
by 12.5% while the Mining and Quarrying industry’s real value added fell by 17.4% year over year.  Within the Services 
industries, all the industries recorded a decline in real value added, except for the Finance & Insurance Services and the 
Transport, Storage and Communication industries.  

Ultimately, these declines can be attributed to the passage of Hurricane Beryl in July 2024 which impacted the 
performance of the economy, particularly the Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing and the Mining & Quarrying industries. 

Additionally, significant damage to the Jamaica Public Service Company Limited’s infrastructure caused delays in 
power restoration across several parishes, resulting in reduced electricity and water consumption. This, therefore, also 
negatively affected the performance of both the Electricity and Water Supply and Other Services industries.9  

Over the ensuing years, between 2024 and 2029, the IMF projects that Jamaica’s real GDP growth rate will grow by 
1.3% Year over Year (“YoY”) in 2024, 2.1% YoY in 2025 and 1.6% by 2029.10 This suggests a period of stable growth that 
significantly outpaces the average growth rate during the pre-pandemic era of 0.7% from 2000 to 2019. 

JAMAICA ANNUAL REAL GDP GROWTH (YOY)
SOURCE: IMF
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9 Source: Statistical Institute of Jamaica

10 Source: World Economic Outlook Database
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INFLATION AND UNEMPLOYMENT

Inflation has now reverted to the BOJ’s target range, 
falling in recent months to 4.4% on a point-to-point 
basis as at February 2025, considerably lower than 
its peak of 11.8% in April 2022.11 This marks the fifth 
consecutive month that the inflation rate has remained 
within the BOJ’s target inflation range of 4.0% to 6.0%. 
This has supported the BOJ’s decision to cut its policy 
rate. Jamaica’s unemployment rate also continues 
to decline, falling to a record low of 3.5% in October 
2024, as reported by STATIN. This is a stark contrast 
to the pandemic peak of 12.6% reported in July 2020, 
and is significantly better than the pre-pandemic 
low of 7.2% reported in October 2019, underscoring 
Jamaica’s strong economic recovery. 11

GLOBAL CREDIT POSITIONING

Jamaica’s improving economic performance has caught the attention of the most prominent international credit rating 
agencies, with Fitch Ratings upgrading Jamaica’s Long-Term Foreign Currency and Local Currency Issuer Default Ratings 
(“IDR”) to ‘BB-’ from ‘B+’ in March 2024. Fitch’s rationale for this rating uplift included Jamaica’s declining debt trajectory, 
prudent fiscal management, strengthening monetary policy framework, and sound banking sector, among others. The 
outlook remains positive, reflecting Fitch’s expectation of continued improvement in the country’s debt metrics and 
further deepening of the policy framework over the next few years.12 Similarly, in October 2023, Moody’s Investors 
Service upgraded the Government of Jamaica’s long-term issuer and senior unsecured ratings from ‘B2’ to ‘B1’ and 
revised the outlook from Stable to Positive. On September 13, 2023, Standard and Poor’s Global Ratings (“S&P”) revised 
its outlook and credit rating on Jamaica’s sovereign bonds, moving the Government of Jamaica’s Long Term Foreign 
and Local Currency IDR from ‘B-’ to ‘BB-’ with a stable outlook. More recently, on September 24, 2024, S&P revised 
Jamaica’s outlook from stable to positive. The general rating rationale from the international credit ratings agencies is the 
positive trajectory of the Jamaican economy, marked by continuous downward trend of the country’s debt-to-GDP and 
the improvement in the country’s fiscal position. S&P expects the country’s debt-to-GDP to continue its downward trend, 
improving fiscal surpluses over the medium term.13

JAMAICA INFLATION RATE
SOURCE: IMF

Averatge CPI (YoY) End of Period CPI (YoY)

2018

0.0%

9.4%

2.4%

6.9%
5.0%5.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

2019
2020

2021
2022

2023

2024E

2025E

2026E
2027E

2028E

2029E

11 Source: Statistical Institute of Jamaica

12 Source: Fitch Upgrades Jamaica to ‘BB-’; Outlook Positive

13 Source: Jamaica Long-Term Ratings Raised To ‘BB-’ From ‘B+’ On Improved Finances; Outlook Stable
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The Jamaican economy’s positive trajectory provides a robust and conducive environment for Barita to thrive in its 
role as a securities dealer. With increasing investor confidence, and a stable macroeconomic framework, Barita is well-
positioned to capitalize on emerging opportunities. This favorable climate enhances the Company’s ability to offer 
innovative financial solutions, attract diverse clientele, and drive sustainable value creation for all stakeholders.

FIXED INCOME MARKET

While changes in interest rates have a significant impact 
on markets at large, the fixed income market has arguably 
been the most directly impacted by the trend of interest 
rates throughout the local economy. Given the restrictive 
policy stance of the BOJ during 2022 and 2023, yields on 
fixed income securities repriced aggressively during those 
years, mirroring the path of the BOJ’s policy rate which was 
increased from 0.5% in September 2021 to 7.0% in November 
2022. 

The effect on the market can be viewed from two perspectives:  
the investor’s and the borrower’s perspective. With investors 
largely pivoting to fixed income instruments to exploit higher 
rates of returns, while borrowers experienced a considerable 
increase in their funding costs. 

Inflationary pressures have largely subsided since then and 
central banks across the globe have begun cutting their policy 
rates. While inflation continues to trend lower, the Federal 
Reserve, in September 2024, made the decision to cut its 
policy rate by 50 bps, the first time the Fed had cut rates 
since March 2020 and cut by a further 25 bps in November 
and December 2024, respectively. Locally, the BOJ has cut 
rates four times in 2024. The BOJ first decided to cut rates 
in August 2024 by 25 bps, then again in September 2024 by 
25 bps. In November 2024, rates were cut once more by another 25 bps, followed by another 25 bps rate cut to 6.0% in 
December 2024. There has been an immediate impact with money market rates, primarily represented by Treasury Bill 
(“T-Bill”) and Certificate of Deposit (“CD”) yields falling significantly. The 90-day T-Bill average yield in February 2025 was 
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5.9%, down from a yield of 7.9% in November 2022. Similarly, the 180-day T-Bill rate was 5.9% in February 2025, down 
from 8.3% in November 2022.14  These changes in T-Bill yields are consistent with the movement of the BOJ’s policy 
benchmark rate, which stood at 6.0% in December 2024, down from 7.0% in November 2022. 

Corporate bond yields have been less responsive but there have been signs of lowering yields for those instruments as 
well and we foresee that this will continue. Within this context, fixed rate bonds have become more attractive.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE MARKET

The local foreign exchange (“FX”) market remains well-funded, supported by strong remittance inflows, and a buoyant 
tourism sector which has collectively resulted in record levels of Net International Reserves (“NIR”) of US$5.60 billion 
as at October 31, 2024, the highest in Jamaica’s history, but falling slightly to US$5.47 billion as at February 28, 2025, 
consistent with the fact that the NIR balances fluctuate from month to month depending on the BOJ’s use of these 
reserves. The strong NIR acts as a buffer for external shocks, supports the stability of the local currency and of course, 
support Jamaica’s important requirements. Therefore, with Jamaica’s NIR hovering at all-time highs, there is greater 
stability throughout the economy.

Consistent with the backdrop outlined thus far, there has been greater stability in the long-term movement of the local 
currency. Specifically, based on weighted average sell rates published by the BOJ, between 2022 and 2024, the 
Jamaican dollar has depreciated by approximately 0.9% relative to the US dollar. This compares to a depreciation of 
9.2% over the four (4) years prior to 2020, i.e., 2016 to 2019, indicating that while we continue to witness a depreciation 
in the local currency, post-pandemic, that depreciation has slowed. 

On balance, the state of the Jamaican dollar relative to the US dollar presents a story of increased stability, backed by 
an economy that, as projected by the IMF, is expected to grow at a pace that exceeds pre-pandemic levels. This stability 
fosters business growth through capital formation which Barita is well positioned to contribute to via a myriad of financial 
services.

LOCAL EQUITIES

The local equity market has not fared well since the advent of the Covid-19 pandemic, with the JSE Combined Index 
falling by 31.1% between the end of 2019 and the end of 2024. After peaking at its highest year-end value in 2019, the 
Combined Index fell sharply in 2020 as a result of deteriorating investor sentiment driven by the pandemic. While 
the index experienced a small rebound in 2021, spurred by multiple public offerings on the Junior Market, the market 

14 Source: Bank of Jamaica
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has generally trended downwards thereafter, as 
evidenced by the negative YoY returns of 8.1% and 
8.0% for 2022 and 2023, respectively. In 2024, 
the Combined Index posted a positive return of 
2.6%15, rebounding slightly from the performance 
over the previous two years. Downward pressures 
on equity prices coincided with rising interest 
rates in the local market as the BOJ embarked on 
its most aggressive rate hiking cycle in decades, 
resulting in a cumulative increase of 650 bps in 
the benchmark policy rate from September 2021 
to November 2022, a period of just 15 months. 
While the policy rate increases stopped at the end 
of 2022 and throughout 2023, the rate plateaued 

at a high point which, while positive for fixed income markets, simultaneously reduced the attractiveness of the local 
equities market. 

The underperformance of the local equities market in general underscores the less-favorable operating environment in 
which most companies have operated while the rates, and therefore, the cost of borrowing trended up and remained at 
peak levels. This, in turn, led to reduced profitability for several companies, including financial services entities. Depressed 
asset prices have also affected most financial companies’ dividend-paying ability, further deteriorating investor sentiment 
as financial institutions contend with higher unrealized losses in other comprehensive income. It is important to note that 
the financial services industry has generally accounted for the majority of the JSE’s total market capitalization, relative to 
other industries and as such, an underperformance in that industry affects the entire combined index.

However, with inflation trending within the BOJ’s inflation target range and the Central Bank having begun their transition 
to a more expansionary monetary policy stance by cutting its policy rate in consecutive months, equity price growth in 
the local market is expected to be supported.

COMBINED INDEX YEARLY RETURNS
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BARITA’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
SIX YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
INCOME STATEMENT

Over the past six (6) financial years, Barita has improved 
its financial performance with both top and bottom lines 
growing over the period. Net operating revenue grew 
from J$3.98 billion in FY 2019 to J$10.00 billion in FY 
2024, a compounded annual growth rate (“CAGR”)
of 20.2%. This has largely been driven by the growth 
of the fee and commission line item which grew by a 
CAGR of 39.9% over the review period, which can be 
attributed to the growth of Barita’s investment banking 
and asset management units as well as its investment in 
alternative assets. The Company’s investment banking 
division was started in December 2018 and has grown in 
size and scale over the past six (6) financial years. Since 
its inception, the Investment Banking Unit has raised 
approximately J$133.40 billion of both debt and equity capital for its clients, spanning multiple industries including, but 
not limited to, financial services, manufacturing, distribution, construction, and real estate. Furthermore, the Company’s 
assets under management have also increased over the review period. As at the end of FY 2019, the Company had 
approximately J$181.77 billion of assets under management (including both on and off-balance sheet assets) and the 
Company grew these assets to J$404.90 billion as at the end of FY 2024. The growth in these assets under management 
also supplemented the growth in fee income over the review period. In FY 2024, the largest contributor to revenue was 
gains on investments which accounted for 48.7% of revenue (up slightly from 47.1% in FY 2019). This line item is primarily 
comprised of unrealized fair value gains on various investments. These investments will be discussed in further detail in 
the balance sheet discussion below. The second largest contributor to revenue for FY 2024 was fees and commission 
income, accounting for 37.1% of revenue (up from 17.4% in FY 2019). 

The Company’s operating expenses for the year totalled J$4.98 billion, a CAGR of 26.7% over the review period. One 
of the largest contributors to this increase over the review period is the growth of administration costs, which grew 
by a CAGR of 24.5% over the period as Barita continues to fund its initiatives to spur growth and value creation. Staff 
costs also contributed to the growth of operating expenses, recording a CAGR of 24.6% over the period, driven by the 
Company’s continuous investment in its human capital. Impairment losses on financial assets increased over the review 
period, moving to J$640.95 thousand in FY 2024. This increase in impairment losses on financial assets was due to a 
prudent adjustment of loss provisioning for securities with adverse indicators.

NET OPERATING REVENUE
(J$ 'BILLIONS)

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

4
5

8
9 9

10
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In FY 2021, Barita purchased a 20.0% stake 
in Derrimon Trading Company Limited 
(“Derrimon”), a publicly listed company. Given 
the percentage of shares owned, Barita records 
a share of Derrimon’s profit on its income 
statement. This share of profit decreased from 
J$57.14 million in FY 2021 to J$24.08 million in 
FY 2024. After accounting for taxes, Barita’s 
net profit improved from J$1.71 billion in FY 
2019 to J$3.82 billion in FY 2024, a CAGR of 
17.4%. 

BALANCE SHEET

As at September 30, 2024, Barita’s asset base stood at J$142.32 billion, recording a CAGR of 28.3% over the review 
period. In large part, the change in the total asset position of the Company reflects a significant increase in investment 
securities (both those that have been pledged and those that are unencumbered) which grew to J$108.55 billion as 
at FY 2024, representing a CAGR of 37.6% over the review period. The Company’s investment portfolio spans equity, 
debt and mezzanine securities. As at FY 2024, the Company had approximately J$9.49 billion worth of quoted equities 
in its portfolio (approximately 8.7% of the portfolio as at FY 2024, up from 4.6% as at FY 2019). The vast majority of the 
investment portfolio is, however, allocated to debt securities, both government and corporate-issued debt securities. 
Government-issued debt securities were the largest portion of the investment portfolio as at FY 2024, accounting for 
38.8% of the portfolio (down from 70.1% as at the end of FY 2019). Government-issued securities include both Government 
of Jamaica debt securities, as well as foreign government debt securities. The second largest contributor to the size of 
the investment portfolio as at FY 2024 was corporate bonds, which accounted for 31.4% of the total portfolio (up from 
16.8% as at FY 2019). The remainder of the investment portfolio includes, amongst other things, investments in unit 
trusts and other funds, and preference shares. Over the review period, the investment portfolio has become much more 
diversified, particularly on the debt securities side. This provides a better balance of protecting the downside with the 
government-issued securities while participating in the ‘upside’ with higher-yielding corporate bonds. Additionally, Barita 
has grown its loan book substantially, growing from J$751.85 million as at FY 2019 to J$13.35 billion as at FY 2024, a 
CAGR of 77.8%. These largely represent loans to corporate clients as well as margin loans to the Company’s wealth and 
retail clients. 

NET PROFIT AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

FY 2019 FY 2020
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The asset base of the Company was fuelled by the growth of both its debt and equity capital. Firstly, on the debt side, the 
Company’s stock of repurchase agreements rose by a CAGR of 28.5% over the review period. Repurchase agreements 
are the Company’s primary source of debt capital/funding, accounting for 78.8% of total liabilities as at the end of FY 
2024 (down from 88.1% as at the end of FY 2019). Other items that make up the Company’s debt funding base include 
short-term and long-term loans/notes which include bonds that were issued in FY 2023 via private placement. The 
Company’s debt funding, while primarily being short-term in nature at the moment, is being diversified into longer-term 
and more stable funding. This will assist with improving the cash flow management of the Company. Total shareholders’ 
equity as at the end of FY 2024 stood at J$35.30 billion, representing a CAGR of 20.9% over the review period. This 
increase is largely driven by the multiple equity raises 
that the Company conducted over the review period, 
including two Rights Issues in 2019, an Additional Public 
Offering (“APO”) in 2020, and another APO in 2021. 
Additionally, the increase in the equity base was driven 
by growth in retained earnings over the review period as 
the Company remained profitable. 

Barita’s leverage ratio is lower than that of most peers in 
the local securities dealer industry. Specifically, leverage, 
as measured by the equity multiplier ratio (total assets/
total shareholders’ equity), totalled 4.03x as at the end 
of September 2024. This compares favourably to the 
aggregate securities dealer’s industry leverage as at 
June 2024 which stood at 6.60x16 Additionally, as at the 

TOTAL ASSETS
(J$ 'BILLIONS)

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

4.1

71

90

110

128

142

TOTAL LIABILITIES
(J$ 'BILLIONS)

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

27

43
54

78

93

107

EQUITY MULTIPLIER (LEVERAGE) RATIOS

FSC Minimum
Benchmark

Industry 
Aggregate

(June 2024)

BIL’s Equity
Multiplier Ratio
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17x

7x

4x

0x

2x

4x

6x

8x

10x

12x

14x

16x

18x

16 Source: https://www.fscjamaica.org/securities-report-june-2024/
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end of September 2024, the Company boasted 
a capital adequacy ratio of more than two and a 
half times the minimum requirement set by the 
Financial Services Commission of 10.0%. These 
factors provide further evidence of the relative 
strength of the Company’s balance sheet. 

Over the past six (6) years, since Cornerstone 
acquired a majority stake in Barita, the Company 
has consistently grown both its top and bottom 
lines, as well as its balance sheet. The numerous 
capital raises during this period have enabled 
Barita to rapidly expand its assets. Not only 
did these capital raises facilitate quick asset 
growth, but the funds were also effectively 
deployed to drive revenue and profit growth. 
This demonstrates that Cornerstone, along with the senior management team of the Company, has been a responsible 
steward of capital, successfully transforming raised funds into real, tangible value.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Barita recorded cash flow from operating activities 
(“CFO”) totalling -J$5.56 billion in FY 2024 from -J$9.04 
billion in FY 2019. The improvement in the CFO over 
the review period was driven primarily by the amount 
of securities purchased under resale agreements (cash 
outflow) increasing by a larger amount in FY 2019 than 
in FY 2024, as well as the large purchase of other 
investment securities in FY 2019 which was not repeated 
in FY 2024. This large cash outflow from CFO in FY 2019 
was due to the Company’s expansion of its asset base 
following its rights issue. 

The Company’s cash flow from investing activities (“CFI”) 
totalled J$1.45 billion in FY 2024 which is an improvement 
compared to the -J$140.49 million recorded in FY 2019. 

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
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This improvement in the CFI over the review period is largely due to the cash inflow from the reduction in investment 
securities throughout FY 2024 which did not occur in FY 2019. 

The Company recorded cash flow from financing activities (“CFF”) totalling J$3.58 billion in FY 2024 which was down 
from the J$9.56 billion cash inflow recorded in FY 2019. The reduction in CFF in FY 2024 was largely due to the large 
cash inflow from the issuance of shares by virtue of the rights issues conducted in FY 2019. There were no similar share 
issuances in FY 2024. 

Barita ended FY 2024 with a cash balance of J$1.40 billion, up from the J$716.10 million cash balance at the end of FY 
2019. 

QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 (UNAUDITED)
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

For the quarter ended December 31, 2024 (Q1 
2025), Barita Investments Limited generated J$1.44 
billion in net operating revenue, reflecting an 8.7% 
YoY increase compared to December 31, 2023 (Q1 
2024). This growth was primarily driven by higher net 
interest income, fees and commission income, and 
gains on investment activities.

•	 Net interest income rose by J$22.04 million 
(15.0%), benefiting from declining market rates, 
which reduced interest expenses on borrowed 
funds while interest income remained stable due 
to Barita’s predominantly fixed-rate asset base.

•	 Fee and commission income grew by J$92.74 
million (11.4%), driven by higher earnings from the investment banking and asset management segments.

•	 Gains on investment activities surged by J$180.89 million (56.0%), primarily due to securities trading gains, which 
rebounded from a J$137 million loss in Q1 2024 to a J$385 million gain in Q1 2025.

Operating profit for the quarter increased to J$675.40 million, up 7.7% YoY from J$626.87 million, reflecting higher 
revenues and lower staff costs following a strategic restructuring exercise in the 2024 financial year. As a result, staff 

Q1 2024 Q1 2025

INCOME STATEMENT SUMMARY
(J$ 'BILLIONS) 

Operating
Profit

Net Operating
Revenue

Profit Before
Tax

Net Profit

1.32
1.44

0.63 0.68 0.66 0.69
0.48 0.55
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costs declined by 17.0% YoY.

After factoring in the share of results from associate companies and taxation, net profit for Q1 2025 stood at J$551.21 
million, marking a J$71.89 million (15.0%) YoY increase.

UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

As of Q1 2025, total assets grew to J$139.60 billion, reflecting an 8.4% YoY increase from J$128.73 billion in Q1 2024. This 
growth was primarily driven by increases in pledged assets 
and marketable securities:

•	 Pledged assets rose by J$8.79 billion (10.6%).

•	 Marketable securities grew by J$6.68 billion (34.7%).

Total liabilities increased to J$104.15 billion, up 13.2% YoY 
from J$92.03 billion in the prior year. This increase was 
largely attributed to higher debt financing and repurchase 
agreements:

•	 Other debt facilities, which include bonds, notes, margin 
loans, and structured loans, increased significantly by 
J$4.44 billion (39.8%).

•	 Repurchase agreements rose by J$8.83 billion (11.6%).

Total shareholders’ equity declined slightly by J$1.25 billion (3.4%), reaching J$35.45 billion. This decline was driven by:

•	 A reduction in the fair value reserve, which decreased from J$-3.71 billion in Q1 2024 to J$-4.36 billion in Q1 2025.

•	 A decline in retained earnings, which fell from J$7.17 billion to J$6.55 billion, reflecting dividends declared during 
the 2024 financial year.

BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY
(IN J$ 'BILLIONS)

Total LiabilitiesTotal Assets Total Shareholders’
Equity

129
140

92
104

37 35

Q1 2024 Q1 2025
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UNAUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 

In Q1 2025, Barita recorded CFO of J$13.26 billion, a 
significant improvement compared to a CFO outflow 
of J$-4.70 billion in Q1 2024. This increase in CFO 
was primarily driven by:

•	 Securities purchased under resale agreements, 
contributing J$5.18 billion to CFO; and

•	 Loans, which added J$7.43 billion to CFO during 
the quarter.

CFI for Q1 2025 recorded a net outflow of J$-10.23 
billion, compared to an inflow of J$6.77 billion in 
Q1 2024. The primary driver of this outflow was the 
purchase of marketable securities, totalling J$10.15 
billion, compared to J$6.76 billion in inflows from the 
sale of marketable securities in Q1 2024.

CFF totalled J$-3.37 billion in Q1 2025, a slight decline from J$-3.32 billion in Q1 2024. The CFF outflow in Q1 2025 was 
primarily due to:

•	 Dividend payments, amounting to J$2.40 billion; and

•	 Repayments on other debt facilities, totalling J$0.87 billion.

As at Q1 2025, the Company had a cash balance of J$1.07 billion, up from J$0.69 billion in Q1 2024.

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED - OUTLOOK

Jamaica’s economic landscape is marked by resilience having rebounded strongly from the pandemic. Inflation rates 
have fallen steadily, now comfortably within the BOJ’s target range, while unemployment has plummeted to historic lows, 
reflecting a robust recovery and a strengthening labour market. Credit rating improvements from prominent agencies like 
Fitch, Moody’s, and S&P highlight Jamaica’s prudent fiscal management, improving debt metrics and robust monetary 
policy framework. In addition, interest rate cuts by the BOJ are expected to support business and consumer borrowing as 
loan rates eventually begin to decline. With near record-high Net International Reserves, Jamaica is better positioned to 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT SUMMARY
(IN J$ 'BILLIONS)

-4.70

13.26

6.77

-10.23

-3.32 -3.37

1.070.69

CFO CFI CFF Net cash at
end of period

Q1 2024 Q1 2025



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

103

buttress external shocks and with greater currency stability, Jamaica has established a foundation for economic resilience, 
fostering investor confidence and paving the way for increased business activity and financial market performance. 
Together, these developments paint a compelling picture of Jamaica’s promising economic future. The IMF is forecasting 
Jamaica’s real GDP to grow by 1.3% YoY in 2024, followed by another year of growth to the tune of 2.1% in 2025.18 The 
reduction in interest rates and further expected growth of the economy is anticipated to lead to an increase in capital 
market transactions as companies raise capital to take advantage of opportunities. This should supplement the already 
robust Investment Banking deal pipeline. Moreover, as clients’ income increase, as is expected within a stable macro 
environment, the asset management line of the business is also expected to record growth in its AUM as clients allocate 
a portion of their increased disposable income to investments. 

As we expect the economy to remain stable over the upcoming years, the environment will be favourable for Barita to 
foster value creation for shareholders and stakeholders through various means:

•	 Equities: With interest rates trending downwards, Barita’s equities portfolio may benefit greatly from a knock-on 
positive impact on stock valuations which redounds to the benefit of shareholders. Improved equity valuations also 
suggest greater trading among investors which positions Barita, as a securities dealer, to trade on behalf of clients. This 
not only supports client portfolio growth but also enhances shareholder returns through higher commission income. 
Importantly, if stock valuations do not rise despite lower interest rates, alternative strategies are in place to ensure the 
equities portfolio still benefits.

•	 Fixed Income: Declining interest rates also drive higher prices for fixed income instruments which will positively 
impact Barita’s income statement. As is consistent with the securities dealer business model, the Company has greater 
exposure to fixed income assets than equities which means even greater return potential from rising fixed income 
prices. Separately, we expect the rates on the Company’s fixed income liabilities to decline much faster than the rates 
on fixed income assets. This will therefore lead to an improvement in net interest income.

•	 Structured Finance and Investment Banking: The structured finance and investment banking segments will also 
benefit from a stable economic environment coupled with lower interest rates. Lower rates and greater economic 
stability incentivize both borrowing and raising of equity which presents greater opportunity for these business 
segments.

Overall, Barita is poised to capitalize on the upcoming phase of the interest rate cycle and raising additional capital at 
this inflection point only serves to enhance the earning potential described above, across business lines. Both the Board 
of Directors and the management team will maintain a sharp focus on enhancing the Company’s financial performance, 
while prioritizing risk management to steer clear of undue risks. Our goal remains to grow the business while upholding 
our reputation as one of Jamaica’s most financially stable and secure securities dealers.



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

104

RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND RISK EXPOSURE
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SECTION 15: RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK EXPOSURE

RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of Barita’s risk management programme is to ensure that risk-taking activities are aligned with its strategy 
and consistent with its risk appetite. Through an active and effective Risk Management process, Barita’s Board of 
Directors commits to ensuring: 

•	 The right risks are taken; 

•	 The right amount of risk is taken; 

•	 There is an appropriate reward for the risks being taken; and

•	 Risks that are inherent to the strategy, as well as those that could threaten the strategy, are proactively identified 
and appropriately managed.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Barita’s ERM Framework is multi-dimensional and aims to provide a suite of policies, limits and tools to identify, assess and 
manage risks. It is underpinned by developing a risk culture through active involvement and training of the various risk 
owners across all the functional areas of the organization. The framework, including the governance structure through 
which it is executed, is continually reviewed and designed to ensure the confidence of Barita’s clients, shareholders, 
employees and other stakeholders as the Company executes on its strategy and takes advantage of opportunities.  

GOVERNANCE: The Board has ultimate responsibility for risk management within Barita and delegates this function to 
the Audit Committee and Board Investment Committee. The Board, through these committees, reviews and approves the 
associated policies, limits, and risk appetite levels, based on the advice and counsel of various Management committees. 

The Management Investment Committee is responsible for the oversight of Barita’s asset and liability management and 
trading activities and the associated risk exposures, including any contingent exposures from off-balance sheet activities, 
and provides advice and counsel on financial risk related policies and limits.

The Company has also established a Non-Financial Risk Committee, which is mandated to elevate the awareness of 
existing and emerging risks across the organization and highlight their effect on the ability to achieve strategic objectives 
and carry on daily operations. The committee, which comprises senior team members from the functional areas of the 
Company, provides advice and counsel on non-financial risk related policies and new product or initiative proposals. 

RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK: Barita’s Risk Appetite Framework (“RAF”) articulates the amount of risk it is willing 
to take to meet its strategic objectives. The RAF includes risk tolerances, targets, measures, and limits. This, along with 
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the broader suite of Key Risk Indicators, are key components in the cultivation of Barita’s risk culture and ensure that 
Barita remains within appropriate risk boundaries and efficiently manages risk to find the optimal balance between risk 
and return. The risk appetite is continuously reviewed and updated as the Company’s strategy and operations evolve. 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:  A critical dimension of the Risk Management Framework is the establishment of 
robust and appropriate policies and procedures. These include, but are not limited to, policies related to various financial 
risk exposures, internal control, compliance, IT, business continuity and product development. Having been given a real-
world test through the COVID-19 pandemic, Barita has developed its business continuity policy and updated its business 
continuity plans. These have been tested and improvements made where necessary, ahead of operationalization in 
preparation for both potentially plausible and less probable threats and other business disruptions during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT TOOLS: Having identified and prioritized existing and emerging risks, several risk tools have 
been built and deployed within the organization to manage these risks. These include an enterprise risk assessment 
exercise and our third-party risk assessment framework, which will be a necessary complement to our strategic priorities 
for the coming financial year. 

Our tools are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure effectiveness and relevance to Barita’s business and financial 
strategies. 

STRONG AND PERVASIVE RISK CULTURE: Strengthening Barita’s risk function also includes cultivating a strong 
risk culture where the risk framework is an enabler to strategy through the collective understanding, engagement, and 
accountability for the key risks relevant to Barita’s strategic objectives and the corresponding risk appetite throughout 
the organization. 

Barita’s risk governance structure actively supports the development of a strong risk culture. Risks are managed within 
the framework of policies and limits that are approved by the Board of Directors. At least on a quarterly basis, the 
Board reviews key current and emerging risk exposures and performance against approved limits and the Board’s Risk 
Appetite. Senior management committees, including the Management Investment Committee and Non-Financial Risk 
Committee, meet more frequently to review the state of the various risks; while the Risk and Compliance functions 
provide independent oversight of the significant risks of the Company on a continuous basis.

THE CULTURE IS ALSO SUPPORTED BY THE THREE-LINES-OF-DEFENCE MODEL. WITHIN THIS MODEL:

•	 The various business lines that actively take these risks, and the units that support them are the risk owners and 
act as the First Line of Defence by actively managing these risks. This is the primary conduit through which the risk 
culture is cultivated. 

•	 Risk and other control functions act as the Second Line of Defence by objectively challenging the First Line; providing 
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independent oversight over risk taking activities; and developing and executing the frameworks to measure, monitor, 
report and control risk. 

•	 Internal Audit acts as the Third Line of Defence by testing to provide independent assurance of the effectiveness of 
the First and Second lines of defence.

RISK EXPOSURE

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of risks.  

In addition to other information set forth in this Prospectus, prospective investors should, before subscribing for New 
Bonds, carefully consider the risks described below. These risks are not the only ones facing prospective investors. 
Additional risks not presently known to the Directors or that the Directors may presently consider to be immaterial may 
also impair the Company’s operations.

This Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual 
results could differ materially from those anticipated as a result of certain factors, including the risks faced by the 
Company described below and elsewhere in this Prospectus.

PRIMARY RISK FACTORS

By its nature, the Company’s activities are principally Equities Trading, Fixed Income Trading, Unit Trusts, Pension Fund 
Management, Asset Management, Investment Banking and FX Trading. The Company’s activities therefore expose it to a 
variety of financial risks: Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk, Market Risk, as well as operational and other non-financial risks. The 
aim is therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and control potential adverse effects on the 
Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set appropriate risk limits 
and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. 
Included in this framework are the functions performed by the Management Investment Committee and Non-Financial 
Risk Committee of the Company. These Management Committees oversee the Company’s compliance with the risk 
management policies and procedures approved by the Board; review the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company and provide advice and counsel on policies, limits, risk appetite levels, and 
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new product proposals.

In addition to this, the Board of Directors has established the Audit Committee, which is responsible for assisting the 
Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for:

•	 The implementation of the risk management framework in accordance with the ERM Policy and review and 
recommendation for approval of risk appetites and limit frameworks prior to submission to the Board;

•	 The integrity of the Company’s Financial Statements;

•	 The Company’s policies, programs and procedures to ensure compliance with the relevant legal and regulatory 
requirements, the Company’s Code of Ethics and Conduct and other relevant standards and best practices;

•	 The Company’s efforts to comply with legal obligations arising from material agreements and undertakings;

•	 The qualifications and independence of the Company’s external auditors; and

•	 The performance of the Company’s internal audit function and its external auditors.

THE KEY RISKS TO WHICH THE COMPANY IS EXPOSED AND THE MANNER IN WHICH IT 
MANAGES THEM ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Market Risk: Market Risk is the risk of loss due to changes in market prices and rates (including interest rates, credit 
spreads, equity prices, and FX rates), the correlations among them, and their levels of volatility. 

Market Risk is monitored through the Management and Board Investment Committees. Various exposures are monitored 
daily and controlled through Board approved limits; which control the individual and aggregate impact of the various 
Market Risk factors on earnings and capital. This is supported by extensive research and continuous monitoring of the 
price movement and fundamental factors affecting financial assets on the local and international markets. 

Liquidity Risk: Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from 
its financial liabilities or other cash requirements. Liquidity Risk may also result from an inability to sell a financial asset 
quickly at, or close to, its fair value. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its obligations when due under both normal and stressed conditions. 



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

109

The Company’s liquidity management process includes:

•	 Forecasting cash inflows and outflows by currency to anticipate emerging liquidity needs and conducting regular 
stress tests to assess the vulnerabilities inherent in its balance sheet structure and the adequacy of liquidity 
resources under stressed conditions;

•	 Maintaining a pool of highly liquid, unencumbered assets that can be readily sold, or pledged to secure borrowings 
under stressed conditions;

•	 Managing the structure of its funding relative to its liquidity position to ensure that it is sufficiently diversified by term 
and type of client;

•	 Maintaining, testing and updating its contingency funding plan, which outlines the necessary responses to varying 
levels and stages of stressed conditions; and

•	 Proactively identifying, building and securing alternative sources of funding to ensure the adequacy of its contingency 
options and position itself to take advantage of material opportunities.

CREDIT RISK: Credit Risk is the risk of default by, or material decline in credit worthiness of, an obligor. Credit Risk may 
be disaggregated into three (3) types of risks:

•	 Default (Counterparty) Risk

The possibility that the issuer/borrower will fail to meet its payment obligations or other contractual covenants. 
Technical default may occur due to the issuer’s/borrower’s violation of other agreed terms (e.g. failure to maintain a 
certain financial ratio at/above a pre-determined level).

•	 Credit Spread Risk

Measured by the amount of yield differential above the return on a benchmark, default-free security (e.g. T- Bills) 
demanded by investors to compensate for buying the riskier security. The risk is that the riskier security might offer 
a lower than required premium. 

•	 Downgrade Risk

Risk that a bond will be reclassified as a riskier security by a credit rating agency (e.g. Standard & Poor’s). A 
downgrade in the rating of a security usually leads to a fall in its market price. 

To control Credit Risk exposure, the Company manages the minimum credit quality, asset class and concentration of all 
issuers/borrowers in its portfolio and continuously monitors the financial status of each obligor.
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OPERATIONAL RISK: Operational Risk is the risk arising from execution of an enterprise’s business functions and 
particularly the risk of loss resulting from internal processes, people and systems, or from external events such as:

•	 Internal Fraud
Misappropriation of assets, tax evasion, intentional mismarking of positions, bribery; 

•	 External Fraud 
Theft of information, hacking damage, third-party theft and forgery;

•	 Employment Practices and Workplace Safety
Discrimination, workers compensation, employee health and safety;

•	 Clients, Products, & Business Practices
Market manipulation, antitrust activities, improper trades, product defects, fiduciary breaches, account churning;

•	 Damage to Physical Assets:
Natural disasters, terrorism, vandalism;

•	 Business Disruption & Systems Failures:
Utility disruptions, software failures, hardware failures;

•	 Execution, Delivery, & Process Management:
Data entry errors, accounting errors, failed mandatory reporting, negligent loss of clients’ assets.

The Company has established frameworks to capture, prioritize, manage, track and report on the most important 
operational and other non-financial risk exposures. This is complemented by the tracking of key risk indicators to identify 
emerging risks.  These activities are reinforced through the Non-Financial Risk Committee where the status of these risks 
and their strategic implications are highlighted. Due to the nature of the Company the most material among these are 
Systems, Processes, People and Customer Risks. 

SYSTEMS AND CYBER RISK:  Systems Risk refers to the likelihood of vulnerabilities related to the IT environment 
including security, data governance and integrity, reliability and necessary supporting infrastructure to handle 
business requirements. These are inherent in the technology-driven nature of Barita’s business.

Robust technology planning and development processes ensure that technological capabilities are adequate to 
support the strategic requirements of the organization. This is supported by the continuous and proactive evaluation 
and updating of the security environment to minimize exposure to cyber-attacks and other current and potential IT 
security exposures. Employees and customers are consistently sensitized to ensure they understand current and 
evolving IT security risks, and to reinforce the desired behaviours.
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PROCESSES: The risk associated with processes refers to the exposure to control weaknesses in various 
processes and instances where policies and procedures may be less than effective in embedding and establishing 
the required governance, limits, controls and practices for the execution of tasks.

Barita mitigates this risk through its ERM Framework and policies and procedures that establish the governance, 
authority levels, and required controls for various processes and operations, and prescribes a framework for 
identifying and managing the various inherent risks. This is complemented by continuous review of the various 
processes to improve efficiency, strengthen controls, and manage residual risks.

PEOPLE: People Risk refers to the likelihood that Barita does not adequately attract, retain and develop employees 
with the requisite knowledge and aptitude to meet the strategic needs of the organization and fill key roles as they 
emerge or become vacant. People Risk also refers to the likelihood that the culture does not sufficiently instill the 
desired level of performance and conduct.

Barita is focused on building its talent pool to support its growth. There is a focus on ensuring the development 
of resources to fill key current roles, should they become vacant; as well as to fill roles that will emerge in the 
future. The people strategy is supported by building a culture of high performance and accountability; this is also 
embedded within its appraisal and compensation structure.

CUSTOMER: Customer Risk refers to possible reduction in customer engagement and loyalty, changes in 
customers’ behavior and their perception of Barita; as well as risks that Barita sells products to customers that may 
not be suited to their circumstances. 

Barita mitigates this risk through the various customer feedback mechanisms embedded in its marketing strategy 
and customer service delivery. Customer circumstances and risk appetites are established at initiation and through 
ongoing interaction, with investment recommendations with respect to risk and return profiles supported by the 
research team.

DATA PROTECTION AND PRIVACY RISK: Data Protection and Privacy Risk arise from failure to comply with all 
the laws and regulations governing the privacy of customer data which may lead to reputational damage and legal 
actions.

The Company seeks to safeguard customers’ information while adhering to all the relevant regulations that govern 
Data Protection and Privacy. 

COMPLIANCE RISK: Compliance Risk is the possibility of internal, regulatory, statutory or legal non-compliance 
and associated risks from engagement with third parties.

The Company seeks to comply with all relevant legal and statutory requirements and is supported by strong 
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institutional governance and management to ensure a culture of compliance and ethical conduct.

STRATEGIC RISK: Strategic Risk refers to the possibility that strategic choices may be adversely affected by 
changes in the business and competitive environment and could cause other material risk exposures. This includes 
the impact of changes resulting from strategic choices throughout the organization, new products and initiatives 
that do not meet desired objectives, and robustness of the supporting governance and performance management 
environment to ensure effectiveness. 

Barita and its affiliates have a robust process for strategy formulation and execution. This includes processes 
surrounding the identification of opportunities in the context of the competitive environment, current and prospective 
market developments, and lifestyle trends. The strategy is approved by the Board and ownership and accountability 
for strategy implementation is supported by communication of the strategy to all employees and the alignment of 
strategy to individual objectives through key performance indicators. Major risks associated with the strategy are 
also continuously monitored through selected key risk indicators which are subject to review at least on a quarterly 
basis. Implementation is also closely monitored and managed at the Barita and Cornerstone Executive levels, with 
quarterly updates provided to the Board. 

REPUTATIONAL RISK: Reputational Risk is the exposure to negative perception, whether true or not, of the 
Company/Group by regulators, service providers, customers, employees, brokers, shareholders, and other key 
stakeholders, which may impair the performance, risk profile and strategic objectives of the Company. 

Barita manages its Reputational Risk through its Code of Conduct, governance practices, risk management programs, 
and policies and procedures.  This Risk is a key consideration in the strategy formulation process and in its day to 
day operations. 

RANKING OF BONDS: The New Bonds will constitute the unsecured obligations of the Company. Accordingly, 
the New Bonds will not be secured by specific assets of the Company. In the event that the Company is declared 
bankrupt, becomes insolvent, is liquidated or re-organised, secured debt will be entitled to be paid ahead of the 
New Bonds including from the proceeds of the collateral securing such debt before any payment from the proceeds 
may be made with respect to the New Bonds. Bondholders will participate rateably with all holders of unsecured 
indebtedness that are deemed to be of the same ranking as the New Bonds, and potentially with all of the Company’s 
other general creditors. In an insolvency event, the Company may not have sufficient assets to pay amounts due on 
the New Bonds. As a result, Bondholders may receive less, rateably, than holders of secured indebtedness.

EARLY REDEMPTION OR PREPAYMENT RISK: The Company may by giving sixty (60) days’ notice to the 
Trustee, choose whether to wholly or partially redeem the New Bonds. As a result (particularly in a declining interest 
rate environment), a Bondholder may not be able to reinvest the proceeds received from the redemption in a 
comparable security at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the New Bonds. In an increasing 
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interest rate environment, the Company would be unlikely to redeem the New Bonds early.

RISK OF FINANCIAL DISTRESS: The Company’s ability to make payments on (or to refinance) indebtedness 
including the New Bonds and to fund its business will depend upon its ability to generate cash from operations in 
the future. The Company’s operational performance is subject to general economic conditions, financial, legislative 
and regulatory factors that are beyond its control. Consequently, there is a risk that the business may not generate 
sufficient cash flow from operations or financing to enable it to pay its indebtedness, including the New Bonds, or 
to fund its other cash needs. In such case the Company may need to sell assets, seek additional equity, reduce, 
restrict or delay the implementation of strategic business initiatives. There is also a chance that the Company may 
be declared bankrupt, become insolvent, liquidate or otherwise reorganise or restructure its indebtedness.

The Bonds include the Financial Covenant (referenced in Section 3) that restricts the Company’s ability to incur 
further indebtedness while the Company is in breach of any covenants under the Trust Deed. The Financial Covenant 
should also act as an early warning sign that the business of the Company is deteriorating by giving the Bondholders 
an opportunity to take action early.

OTHER RISK FACTORS

REGULATORY UNCERTAINTIES: Changes in the approach by the Company’s regulators in relation to existing 
regulatory requirements or the introduction of new regulations, may affect the Company’s operations and its profitability.

TAXATION UNCERTAINTIES: The tax structure which provides one of the advantages of investing in the Company 
(to Applicants who are resident in Jamaica or other CARICOM states that are parties to the CARICOM Double Taxation 
Treaty), may be subject to change in the future, a factor over which the Company has no control.

BOND PRICE VOLATILITY: The New Bonds may experience significant volatility in price, which may extend beyond 
the short term and which may be dependent on the Company’s performance, investors’ confidence and other factors 
over which the Company has no control.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK FACTOR: Investors in the New Bonds shall assume and bear the full FX rate risk. An 
investor’s investment, if made in USD, may be eroded, in JMD terms, if the JMD was to appreciate against the USD.

LIQUIDITY OF THE BONDS: Investors may not be able to sell their bonds, when desired, at prevailing market rates. 
Market conditions could be such that fewer investors have demand for the New Bonds or the demand at prevailing prices 
may be represented by small volumes. This may cause investors to have to sell at a discount to market values to get 
liquidity from their bonds.
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SALES OF LARGE VOLUMES OF BONDS: The sale of large volumes of bonds by other investors can affect the 
market value of the remaining bonds. This can occur due to the need to accept lower bids to sell higher volumes, as well 
as the signal that the sale of large volumes, or the sale of bonds by large investors, can have on the market’s perception 
of the Company.  

DELISTING OF THE BONDS: The Directors of the Company may choose hereafter, subject to the Bondholders’ 
approval, to delist the Company’s bonds from the JSE; or the Company’s bonds could be delisted for non-compliance 
with the exchange rules. If this happens investors will not have access to the general bond market to sell their bonds in 
the future. This will typically impact the value of their investment.

MACRO-ECONOMIC POLICIES: Changes in fiscal and monetary policies may create opportunities as well as 
challenges for the Company. 

NEW ACCOUNTING RULES OR STANDARDS: The Company may become subject to new accounting rules or 
standards that differ from those that are presently applicable. Such new accounting rules or standards could require 
changes in the way the Company reports its financial position, operating results or cash flows. Such changes could be 
applied retrospectively. 

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH INTERNATIONAL CONDITIONS: The Company’s financial results may be adversely 
affected by international risks, such as: 

•	 International political and economic conditions; 

•	 Changes in government regulations in various countries; 

•	 Trade barriers; and

•	 Adverse tax consequences.

The list of risks mentioned in this Section is not to be taken as being exhaustive of all the possible risks that may affect 
the Company and its business.
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SECTION 16: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s related party transactions are disclosed in the Notes to its Latest Audited Accounts annexed in 
Appendix 2.
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SECTION 17: STATUTORY & GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a company duly incorporated under the Companies Act and a securities dealer and trust services 
provider, licensed by the FSC. The Company is also the holder of a cambio licence issued by the BOJ and has been 
designated as a primary dealer by the BOJ. Statutory Information required to be set out in this Prospectus by section 41 
and the Third Schedule to the Companies Act and other general information are as follows:

1.	 The Company was incorporated on September 2, 1977 and its registered office is located at 15 St. Lucia Way, 
Kingston 5, St. Andrew.

2.	 The Company has no founders, management or deferred shares.

3.	 The Articles fix no shareholding qualification for directors and none have been otherwise fixed by the Company 
in general meeting. The Articles contain the following provision with respect to the remuneration of the Directors.

Article 71 - “The directors’ fees for their services as Directors shall from time to time be fixed by the Directors, and 
shall be included in the Audited Accounts of the Company which is laid before the Annual General Meeting for 
approval by the shareholders. The directors may also be paid travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred 
by them in attending and returning from meetings of the directors or any committee of the directors or general 
meetings of the Company or in connection with the business of the Company.”

4.	 The Opening Date is March 28, 2025 and the Closing Date is May 26, 2025. The Company reserves the right to: (i) 
close the Application List at any time without notice if Applications have been received prior to the Closing Date for 
the full amount of the New Bonds available for subscription, provided that any such early closure of the Application 
List shall not occur prior to the end of a period of seven (7) days following the Opening Date. If the Company closes 
the Application List prior to the Closing Date, the Company will provide notice of such closure via a press release 
and by posting a notice on the website of the Jamaica Stock Exchange at www.jamstockex.com or (ii) extend such 
closing beyond the abovementioned date, with notice of such extension being given to Applicants via a press 
release to be issued by the Company as soon as reasonably practicable upon such extension being granted. 

5.	 All Applicants will be required to pay in full, on Application, the Invitation Price per New Bond. No further sum will 
be payable on Allotment.

6.	 Up to Up to US$17,000,000.00 and J$3,500,000,000.00 (if the option to up-size is exercised) in New Bonds are 
being made available for subscription by prospective investors.

7.	 The names and descriptions of the Directors of the Company are indicated in the Latest Audited Accounts and in 
paragraph 23 below.
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8.	 Shares are not being offered by the Company to the public for subscription. Accordingly, paragraph 2 and paragraph 
3(2) of Part 1 of the Third Schedule to the Companies Act (the “minimum subscription”) do not apply.  

9.	 No person has, or is entitled to be given, any option to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures of the Company.

10.	 No previous invitations/offers with respect to shares in the Company have been made by the Company to the public 
other than, pursuant to:

(a)	 A Non-Renounceable Rights Issue for the allotment of 262,280,484 ordinary shares, each at J$15.50, where the 
Circular Letter was registered on January 29, 2019 and executed during the first quarter of 2019. The ordinary 
shares were subsequently listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange;

(b)	 A Renounceable Rights Issue for the allotment of 77,897,303 ordinary shares and upsized to 116,845,955, each 
at a price of J$45.00 where the Circular Letter was registered on August 21, 2019 and executed during the third 
quarter of 2019. The ordinary shares were subsequently listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange;

(c)	 An Additional Public Offer for the allotment of 260,599,830 ordinary shares, each at a price range of between 
J$49.00 and J$52.00, where the Prospectus was registered on July 31, 2020 and executed during the third 
quarter of 2020. The ordinary shares were subsequently listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange; and

(d)	 An Additional Public Offer for the allotment of 134,785,150 ordinary shares at a price of J$80.00 where the 
Prospectus was registered on August 26, 2021 and executed during the third quarter of 2021. The ordinary 
shares were subsequently listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange.

11.	 Details as to investments, bank loans and any other indebtedness of the Company (if any) are indicated in the Latest 
Audited Accounts.

12.	 No property has been or is proposed to be purchased or acquired by the Company, which is to be paid for wholly or 
partly out of the proceeds of the Invitation, as prescribed by paragraphs 6-9 (inclusive) of Part 1 of the Third Schedule 
of the Companies Act.

13.	 The proceeds from the Invitation will be paid to the Company. The Company expects to pay the expenses of the 
Invitation out of the proceeds of the Invitation, and the Company estimates that such expenses will not exceed 
J$200,000,000.00 (inclusive of brokerage fees, legal fees, marketing expenses, Companies Registrars’ fees, initial 
fees and GCT).  

14.	 The name and addresses of the auditors to the Company are as set out in the Latest Audited Accounts.
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15.	 This Prospectus is issued more than two (2) years after the date on which the Company was entitled to commence 
and actually commenced business. Accordingly, paragraph 13 of Part 1 of the Third Schedule of the Companies Act 
does not apply.

16.	 As far as the Company is aware, the Company is not engaged in any material litigation, nor is it aware of any pending 
litigation.

17.	 The amount for goodwill, patent, or trademarks shown in the Latest Audited Accounts is nil.   

18.	 No amount is currently recommended for distribution by way of dividend. The Company’s dividend policy is 
described in Section 8 of this Prospectus.

19.	 No real property is currently proposed to be purchased or acquired by the Company and paid for wholly or partly 
out of the proceeds of this Invitation for the purposes of paragraphs 6 to 9 (inclusive) of Part 1 of the Third Schedule 
of the Companies Act.

20.	 Save as set out in paragraph 14 above, within the two (2) preceding years, no commissions have been paid, nor will 
any be payable to anyone for subscribing or agreeing to subscribe or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions 
for any shares or debentures of the Company.

21.	 The following are the material contracts of the Company, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of 
business or entered into more than two (2) years before the date of this Prospectus: 

•	 Lease Agreement dated November 18, 2024 between Pan Jamaica Property Company Limited and the 
Company.

22.	 BDO has given and has not withdrawn their consent to the issue of this Prospectus with the inclusion of the Latest 
Audited Accounts, and their name in the form and context in which it is included (a copy of which Consent is 
attached as Appendix 4).

23.	 The names, description and addresses of the Directors, who have given and have not withdrawn their written 
consent to the issue of this Prospectus and the inclusion therein of all material facts relevant to the Company as 
required by the Companies Act are as follows:
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DIRECTOR OCCUPATION ADDRESS

MARK MYERS (CHAIRMAN) Business Executive 2D Valentine Drive, Kingston 19

PAUL SIMPSON (DEPUTY CHAIRMAN) Business Executive 15 St. Lucia Way, Kingston 5

JAMES GODFREY Businessman Lot 1, Dunsinane, Mandeville, Manchester

DUNCAN STEWART Business Executive 49 ½ South Camp Road, Kingston 4

PHILLIP LEE Businessman 3 Norwood Avenue, Kingston 5

CARL DOMVILLE Accountant 15 St. Lucia Way, Kingston 5

ROBERT DRUMMOND Management Consultant 15 St. Lucia Way, Kingston 5

JASON CHAMBERS Investment Banker 15 St. Lucia Way, Kingston 5

PETER GOLDSON Attorney-at-Law 21 East Street, Kingston
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SECTION 18: SECURITY INTERESTS REGISTERED AGAINST ASSETS OF 
THE COMPANY 

As at January 31, 2025 the following security interests remain registered against assets of the Company:

DATE REGISTERED PLACE OF 
REGISTRATION

SECURED PARTY COLLATERAL 
DESCRIPTION

JUNE 20, 2023 Jamaica JCSD Trustee Services Limited Pulse Investments Limited 
Ordinary Shares

JUNE 20, 2023 Jamaica JCSD Trustee Services Limited Derrimon Trading Company 
Limited Ordinary Shares

JUNE 20, 2023 Jamaica JCSD Trustee Services Limited Future Energy Source Company 
Limited Ordinary Shares

OCTOBER 31, 2023 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Caribbean Cement Company 
Limited Ordinary Shares

OCTOBER 31, 2023 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Pulse Investments Limited 
Ordinary Shares

OCTOBER 31, 2023 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

PROVEN Investments Limited 
Ordinary Shares

OCTOBER 31, 2023 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Derrimon Trading Company 
Limited Ordinary Shares

OCTOBER 31, 2023 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

JMMB Group Limited Ordinary 
Shares

OCTOBER 31, 2023 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Future Energy Source Company 
Limited Ordinary Shares

DECEMBER 30, 2024 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Jamaica Stock Exchange 
Ordinary Shares

DECEMBER 30, 2024 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Seprod Limited Ordinary
Shares

DECEMBER 30, 2024 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Sagicor Group Limited Ordinary 
Shares

DECEMBER 30, 2024 Jamaica National Commercial Bank 
Jamaica Limited

Scotia Group Limited Ordinary 
Shares
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SECTION 19: DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the head office of Barita Investments Limited at 15 St. Lucia Way, 
Kingston 5, St. Andrew, Jamaica between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Mondays to Fridays, up to and including 
the Closing Date (or the extended Closing Date as the case may be): 

1.	 This Prospectus;

2.	 The Articles of Incorporation of the Company; 

3.	 Copy of the Latest Audited Accounts for the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024;  

4.	 Copy of the unaudited financial results for the Three Months ended December 31, 2024 with respect to the Company 
with accompanying Management, Discussion and Analysis;

5.	 Copies of the last five (5) annual reports for the years ended September 30, 2019 to September 30, 2023;

6.	 The Written Consent of the Auditors, BDO;

7.	 Written Consent of the Directors;

8.	 The Trust Deed and the form of Global Bonds;

9.	 Resolution of the Board of Directors authorizing the Invitation dated March 12, 2025;

10.	 Copy of the last registered prospectus issued by the Company being August 26, 2021; and

11.	 The material contracts referred to in Section 17.
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SECTION 20: CONDITIONS OF INVITATION

1.	 Each Application for New Bonds must be for a minimum of US$500.00 for Tranches I and II and J$50,000.00 for 
Tranches III, IV, V, VI and VII of the New Bonds. Applications above this amount for Tranches I and II shall be in 
increments of US$50.00 and for Tranches III, IV, V, VI and VII shall be in increments of J$1,000.00.

2.	 Payment for the full amount of the Invitation Price for the New Bonds applied for must be remitted to the Lead Broker 
or Selling Agent, as the case may be.

3.	 An Approved Payment Method shall be any of the following:

(a)	 Manager’s cheque payable to the Applicant’s stockbroker for amounts less than J$1.00 million;

(b)	 Cleared funds held in an equity/investment account in the Applicant’s name at Barita supported by an 
authorization from the Applicant instructing Barita to transfer the payment to their Barita JCSD account;

(c)	 Transfer from the Applicant’s account held with the Applicant’s stockbroker; 

(d)	 Transfer in the Real Time Gross Settlement (“RTGS”) system to the Applicant’s stockbroker; or

(e)	 Transfer via the Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) to the Applicant’s stockbroker.

A fee of J$5,000.00 is imposed by commercial banks in Jamaica in respect of cheques (including manager’s 
cheques) tendered for payment in an amount greater than or equal to J$1,000,000.00.

4.	 The Company reserves the right to (i) close the Application List at any time without prior notice if Applications have 
been received prior to the Closing Date for the full amount of the respective New Bonds available for subscription 
or (ii) extend such closing beyond the above-mentioned date. In either case, the Company will provide notice as 
soon as reasonably practicable via a press release and/or by posting a notice on the website of the JSE at www.
jamstockex.com and on the Company’s website at www.barita.com. In addition, the Company may elect, in its sole 
discretion, to reduce the amount of New Bonds available for subscription, in which case the Company will issue a 
press release as soon as reasonably practicable upon such decision being made.

5.	 Please follow the instructions set out in Appendix 1 which detail how to use the BOSS website to submit applications. 
Your Application will be deemed incomplete if the required supporting documents are not included. 

6.	 The Board, in its sole discretion, may accept (in whole or in part) or reject, in whole or in part, any Application to 
subscribe for New Bonds, even if the Application is received, validated and processed. Accordingly, the amount of 
New Bonds allocated to you may be reduced.
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7.	 Neither the submission of an Application by an Applicant nor its receipt by the Company will result in a binding 
contract between the Applicant and the Company. Only the allotment of New Bonds by the Registrar on behalf of the 
Company to an Applicant, (whether such New Bonds represent all or part of those specified by the Applicant in their 
Application), will result in a binding contract under which the Applicant will be deemed to have agreed to subscribe 
for the number of allotted New Bonds at the Invitation Price, subject to the Articles of Incorporation and the terms 
and conditions set out in this Prospectus. 

8.	 Early Applications will be accepted, but not processed until the Opening Date. All early Applications will be treated 
as having been received at the same time, being 9:00 a.m. on the Opening Date. New Bonds will be allocated after 
close of the Application List when all the valid Applications are received.

9.	 With respect to the New Bonds, if the Invitation is oversubscribed, the Company may take any or a combination of 
the following actions:

(a)	 Elect at any time prior to the closing of the Invitation or on the Closing Date, to upsize by making up to 
US$6,000,000.00 and J$1,250,000,000.00 additional New Bonds available for subscription by Applicants, 
bringing the maximum size of the Invitation to US$17,000,000.00 and J$3,500,000,000.00. In the event that the 
Company exercises its discretion under this paragraph, it shall make reference thereto in any announcement it 
issues, for the purposes of the closing of the Invitation and the publication of the basis of allotment following the 
Closing Date. This is not a guarantee that the Company will exercise the option to upsize.

(b)	 Allot the New Bonds on a pro rata basis; however, if the Invitation is oversubscribed, the Company reserves 
the right (subject to paragraph 16 below) to allot the New Bonds to Applicants on a basis to be determined by 
it, in its sole discretion, for operational efficacy/expedience. In this case, Applicants may be allotted fewer New 
Bonds than those for which they applied.

10.	 Multiple Applications by the same Applicant shall be treated as a single Application for the purpose of allocation/
allotment. For this purpose, Applicants will be regarded as being the same where it is either the same individual or 
corporate Applicant or, in the case of joint Applicants, the joint holders identified for each Application are the same. 
Applications submitted with joint holders must be signed by all the joint holders if the respective JCSD account is 
an “AND” account. In cases where the JCSD account is an “AND/OR” account, only a single joint account holder is 
required to sign.

11.	 New Bonds will be allocated after close of the Application List when all the valid Applications are received. The 
Application List will close on May 26, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. but the Directors reserve the right to close the Application 
List earlier (provided that any such early closure of the Application List  shall  not occur prior to the end of a period 
of seven (7) days following the Opening Date) and may extend the Closing Date in certain circumstances, in either 
case upon giving prior notice. 
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12.	 In the allocation process, New Bonds will be allotted as follows:

(a)	 Reserved Pool Applicants will have first rights to the New Bonds set aside in their respective Pools with any 
excess Applications for New Bonds above the Reserved Pool levels being transferred to the Non-Reserved Pool 
to compete for a second round of allocations;

(b)	 In the event that a Reserved Pool is undersubscribed, the unallocated New Bonds from that Reserved Pool will 
be transferred to the Non-Reserved Pool and Applicants to that Reserved Pool will be allotted the full amount 
of New Bonds subscribed for in their Applications;

(c)	 The aggregate of excess Applications, if any, from the Reserved Pools, and original Applications for New Bonds 
to the Non-Reserved Pool (“Total Non-Reserved Pool Applications”) will be allocated from the Non-Reserved 
Pool;

(d)	 Where the Total Non-Reserved Pool Applications exceed the total number of New Bonds available for allocation 
in the Non-Reserved Pool, then allotment will be undertaken on a prorated basis. Such prorationing may be 
done to allow for some minimum level of allocation with respect to such Applications. For example, allocations 
from the Non-Reserved Pool with respect to such Applications may be up to the first 50,000 New Bonds, the 
subject of an Application and a certain minimum percentage of New Bonds pursuant to Applications in excess 
of 50,000 New Bonds.

13.	 If the Invitation is oversubscribed, a determination will be made as to which Pools will benefit from any upsizing of 
the Invitation and the amount to be allocated to each such Pool, which will be driven by the Application experience. 
Notwithstanding the intention of the Directors to allot New Bonds on the basis outlined herein, the Board of 
Directors reserves the right to allot the New Bonds to Applicants on a basis to be determined by it, in its sole 
discretion as seems justifiable having regard to the Application experience. It is however likely, that in the event of 
an oversubscription, New Bonds may be allocated on a pro rata basis, in which event Applicants may be allotted 
fewer New Bonds than were the subject of their Applications. 

14.	 The Registrar will issue a depository receipt in the name of the Applicant (or in the joint names of joint Applicants) for 
the amount and tranche of New Bonds allotted to the Applicant with respect to each Application which is accepted 
in whole or in part. Each depository receipt will be mailed through the post at the Applicant’s risk to the address of 
the Applicant (or of the primary Applicant) stated in the Application. The depository receipts will be dispatched in the 
mail within ten (10) days after the Closing Date. No paper bond will be issued.

15.	 Amounts to be refunded to Applicants whose Applications are not accepted in whole or in part will be refunded 
based on the instructions given in their Application. Refunds will be made via the Applicant’s preferred refund 
option within ten (10) days after the Closing Date. Where Applicants request that refunds be made electronically, the 
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required details of the account to which refund payments are to be remitted by that method must be provided in the 
Application. The Company does not accept the risk of loss with respect to delays in effecting refunds, provided it 
has initiated the refund using the instructions provided by the Applicant.

16.	 Upon the issue of the New Bonds, it is the intention of the Company to have the issued New Bonds listed on the JSE. 
To this end, the Company intends to apply promptly after the close of the Invitation, for admission of the New Bonds 
to the Bond Market of the JSE, to enable them to be listed. This statement is not to be construed as a guarantee that 
the New Bonds will be listed.  

17.	 This Invitation shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Jamaica.
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SECTION 21: DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board hereby confirms that, after due inquiry by us, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, in the period between September 30, 2024, and the date of this Prospectus:

(a)	 The business of the Company has been satisfactorily maintained;

(b)	 There have not been any circumstances arising which have adversely affected the trading or the value 
of the assets of the Company;

(c)	 The current assets of the Company appear in the books at values that are realizable in the ordinary 
course of business;

(d)	 There are no contingent liabilities that have arisen by reason of guarantees or indemnities given by 
the Company; and

(e)	 There have been no significant changes impacting the financial position of the Company.
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SECTION 22: SIGNATURES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company whose signatures appear below are individually and collectively responsible 
for the contents of the Prospectus and each has signed same pursuant to a resolution of the Directors of the 
Company authorizing the issue of this Prospectus as at the date first hereinbefore stated.

DIRECTOR SIGNATURE

MARK MYERS, CHAIRMAN

PAUL SIMPSON, DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

JAMES GODFREY

DUNCAN STEWART

PHILLIP LEE

CARL DOMVILLE

ROBERT DRUMMOND

JASON CHAMBERS

PETER GOLDSON
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APPENDIX 1
APPLICATION GUIDE

NEW USER SIGN UP
1.	 Go to www.baritaboss.com

2.	 Sign up by clicking either the Start Investing Now 
or Apply Now button

3.	 Click on the “Create Account” button          

4.	 Read and accept the Boss Portal Agreement 
by checking the boxes I Agree to the Terms & 
Conditions, and I Agree to the Privacy Policy then 
click Accept

5.	 Create your Boss Account by selecting personal 
or business account, entering your Name, email 
address, telephone number, create a password

6.	 Check your email provided to activate your BOSS 
account – click the Activate My Account link. 

7.	 Check your email for the link to login

8.	 Login to your Boss Account

9.	 Select the available offer – Click APPLY NOW

10.	 Enter the amount you wish to invest in the invitation/
issue

11.	 Select your tranche. Click on the “Continue” button

12.	 Read the list of what is required to apply and click 
Continue

13.	 Select the correct response to “Would you like to 
use an existing JCSD Number”

14.	 Enter your JCSD Number and Broker details. Click 
on the “Continue” button

15.	 Enter your Details for the application. Click on the 
“Continue” button

16.	 Enter your Banking Details for Interest Mandate. 
Click on the “Continue” button

17.	 Upload a copy of a valid ID (driver’s license/
passport/voter’s ID) and Tax Registration Number 
(TRN). For personal accounts if your ID is a driver’s 
license, a TRN is not required. For business 
accounts a Company TRN is required . Click on the 
“Continue” button 

18.	 Check the box accepting the terms and conditions to 
authorize your application. Click on the “Continue” 
button

19.	 Joint holders over 18 years will receive an 
authorized email that will need to be actioned

20.	 For business accounts download the signature 
form and upload signed and stamped/sealed 
signature form

21.	 Select the correct response Yes or No to “Have you 
already made payment?

22.	 Enter payment verification information & upload a 
copy of payment. Click on the “Continue” button 

23.	 Review your application before submitting

24.	 Click Submit Application

25.	 Check your email for a notification on the status of 
your application 

26.	 Emails will be sent to the email address you provided 
when your application status changes

27.	 You can view and track your Application Status at 
any time by signing into BOSS
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EXISTING BOSS USERS:
1.	 Go to www.baritaboss.com

2.	 Hit the Log In button

3.	 Enter your credentials

4.	 Select the available offer – Click APPLY NOW

5.	 Enter the amount you wish to invest in the invitation/
issue

6.	 Select your tranche

7.	 Click on the “Continue” button

8.	 Read the list of what is required to apply and click 
Continue

9.	 Select the correct response Yes or No to “Would 
you like to use an existing JCSD Number”

10.	 Enter or select your JCSD Number and Broker 
details. Click on the “Continue” button

11.	 Review your existing Details for the application. 
Click on the “Continue” button

12.	 Enter your Banking Details for Interest Mandate. 
Click on the “Continue” button

13.	 Upload a copy of a valid ID (driver’s license/
passport/voter’s ID) and Tax Registration Number 
(TRN). For personal accounts if your ID is a driver’s 
license, a TRN is not required. For business 
accounts a Company TRN is required. Click on the 
“Continue” button 

14.	 Check the box accepting the terms and conditions to 
authorize your application. Click on the “Continue” 
button

15.	 Joint holders over 18 years will receive an 
authorized email that will need to be actioned

16.	 For business accounts download the signature 
form and upload signed and stamped/sealed 
signature form

17.	 Select the correct response Yes or No to “Have you 
already made payment?

18.	 Enter payment verification information & upload a 
copy of payment. Click on the “Continue” button 

19.	 Review your application before submitting

20.	 Click Submit Application

21.	 Check your email for a notification on the status of 
your application 

22.	 Emails will be sent to the email address you provided 
when your application status changes

23.	 You can view and track your Application Status at 
any time by signing into BOSS
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APPENDIX 2
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2024
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APPENDIX 3
LIST OF LOCATIONS FOR LEAD BROKER AND SELLING AGENTS

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED – LEAD BROKER

BRANCH LOCATION ADDRESS

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED – HEAD OFFICE 15 St. Lucia Way, Kingston 5

BARITA INVESTMENTS - MANCHESTER Shop 2A, Manchester Shopping Centre
17 Caledonia Road, Mandeville, Manchester

BARITA INVESTMENTS – WEALTH DIVISION Ground Floor, Panjam Building
60 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5

BARITA INVESTMENTS – FAIRVIEW MONTEGO BAY Shop 5, Fairview Town Centre
Montego Bay, St. James
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SCOTIA INVESTMENTS JAMAICA LIMITED – SELLING AGENT

BRANCH LOCATION

SCOTIA INVESTMENTS – HEAD OFFICE 3rd Floor, Scotiabank Centre Building, 
Corner Duke and Port Royal Streets, Kingston

SCOTIABANK – SPANISH TOWN 6 March Pen Road, Spanish Town, St. Catherine

CONSTANT SPRING FINANCIAL CENTRE 132-132A Constant Spring Road, Kingston 8

SCOTIABANK – HALF-WAY TREE 82-84 Half-Way-Tree Road,  Kingston 10

SCOTIABANK – MANDEVILLE 1a Caledonia Road, Mandeville, Manchester

SCOTIABANK – CHRISTIANA Main Street, P.O. Box 11

SCOTIABANK – OCHO RIOS Main Street, Ocho Rios, St. Ann

SCOTIABANK – BROWNS TOWN Main Street, P.O. Box 35, St. Ann

SCOTIABANK – ST. ANN’S BAY 18 Bravo Steet, St. Ann

SCOTIABANK – SAVANNA-LA-MAR 19 Great George Street
Savanna-La-Mar, Westmoreland

SCOTIABANK – NEGRIL Negril Square, Negril

SCOTIABANK – LIGUANEA 125-127 Old Hope Road, Kingston 6

SCOTIABANK – NEW KINGSTON 2 Knutsford Boulevard, New Kingston, Kingston 5

FAIRVIEW FINANCIAL CENTRE 1 Port Avenue, Bogue, Montego Bay, St. James

SCOTIABANK – MONTEGO BAY 6-7 Sam Sharpe Square, Market Street, Montego Bay 

SCOTIABANK – IRONSHORE Hops #2 & 3 Golden Triangle Shopping Centre, 
Montego Bay
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SCOTIA INVESTMENTS JAMAICA LIMITED – SELLING AGENT

BRANCH LOCATION

SCOTIABANK – HAGLEY PARK ROAD 128 Hagley Park Road, P.O. Box 5

SCOTIABANK – PORTMORE Lot 2, Cookson Pen, Bushy Park,
Greater Portmore, St. Catherine

SCOTIABANK – LINSTEAD 42 King Street, P.O. Box 19

SCOTIABANK CENTRE Corner Duke & Port Royal Streets, Kingston

SCOTIABANK – MAY PEN 36 Main Street, May Pen 

SCOTIABANK – UWI Corner Ring Road & Shed Lane, Kingston 7 

SCOTIABANK – OXFORD ROAD 6 Oxford Road, Kingston 

SCOTIABANK – PORT ANTONIO 3 Harbour Street, P.O. Box 79

SCOTIABANK - JUNCTION 77 Main Street, P.O. Box 20, St. Elizabeth

SCOTIABANK – BLACK RIVER 6 High Street, St. Elizabeth 

SCOTIABANK – SANTA CRUZ 42 Main Street, St. Elizabeth  

SCOTIABANK – PORT MARIA 57 Warner Street, P.O. Box 6, St. Mary 

SCOTIABANK – MORANT BAY 23 Queens Street, P.O. Box 30, St. Thomas

SCOTIABANK – FALMOUTH Trelawny Wharf, Trelawny 
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JAMAICA MONEY MARKET BROKERS LIMITED (JMMB) – SELLING AGENT

BRANCH LOCATION

JMMB – HAUGHTON 5 Haughton Avenue, Kingston 10

JMMB – NEW KINGSTON 11 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5

JMMB – JUNCTION AGENCY Shop 2, Roye’s Plaza, Main Street, Junction, St. Elizabeth

JMMB - MANDEVILLE 23 Ward Avenue, Mandeville, Manchester

JMMB – MONTEGO BAY Suite 1, Fairview Office Park, Alice Eldermire Drive, Montego Bay, St. James

JMMB – MAY PEN Shop 28B, Bargain Village Plaza, 35 Main Street, Clarendon

JMMB– OCHO RIOS Guardian Life Building, 2 Graham Street, Ocho Rios, St. Ann

JMMB - PORTMORE 47-48 West Trade Way, Portmore Town Centre, Portmore, St. Catherine

JMMB – SANTA CRUZ Shop No. 2, Oasis Plaza, Coke Drive, Santa Cruz, St. Elizabeth
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JN FUND MANAGERS LIMITED – SELLING AGENT

BRANCH LOCATION

JN FUND MANAGERS – NEW KINGSTON 2 Belmont Road, Kingston 5

JN FUND MANAGERS -  MONTEGO BAY Lot 2-5 Megamart Complex, Montego Bay, St. James

JN FUND MANAGERS - MANCHESTER Mandeville Plaza, Mandeville, Manchester

JN FUND MANAGERS – HALF-WAY TREE 2-4 Constant Spring Road, Kingston 10

JN FUND MANAGERS – PORTMORE PINES Shop #29, Portmore Pines Plaza, St. Catherine

PROVEN WEALTH – SELLING AGENT

BRANCH LOCATION

PROVEN WEALTH – KINGSTON, HEAD OFFICE 2-4 Gladstone Drive, Kingston 10

PROVEN WEALTH - MANDEVILLE Unit 5B, Cobblestone Professional Centre, 1A Brumalia Road, 
Mandeville

PROVEN WEALTH – MONTEGO BAY Unit 11 Suite B, Fairview II Shopping Centre, Montego Bay
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VICTORIA MUTUAL WEALTH MANAGEMENT LIMITED - SELLING AGENT

BRANCH LOCATION

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT – HEAD OFFICE 53 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT -  DUKE STREET 8 – 10 Duke Street, Kingston

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT - PORTMORE Lot 1 Seagrape Close, Portmore, St. Catherine

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT - MANDEVILLE Shop #3, Manchester Shopping Centre, 
Mandeville

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT – OCHO RIOS 7 Newlin Street, Ocho Rios

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT – MONTEGO BAY Unit No. 33, Fairview Shopping Complex,
Bogue Estate, Montego Bay

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT – SAVANNA -LA-MAR 123 Great George Street, Savanna-La-Mar

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT - LIGUANEA 115 Old Hope Road, Kingston 6

VM WEALTH MANAGEMENT – UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY 237 Old Hope Road, Kingston 6

FHC INVESTMENTS LIMITED – SELLING AGENT

BRANCH LOCATION

FHC INVESTMENTS - HEAD OFFICE 20 Dominica Drive, Kingston 5

FHC INVESTMENTS – MONTEGO BAY 21 Union Street, Montego Bay 
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APPENDIX 4
AUDITOR’S CONSENT
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APPENDIX 5
THE COMPANY’S BORROWING POWERS

THE COMPANY’S BORROWING POWERS ARE DERIVED FROM ITS ARTICLE. THE ARTICLES 
CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING PROVISION:

The Directors may raise or borrow for the purposes of the Company such sum or sums of money as they 
think fit. The Directors may secure the repayment of or raise any such sum or sums as aforesaid and also 
secure the repayment of any sum or sums due or owing by the Company or by any other person by bill of 
sale, mortgage or charge upon the whole or any part of the property and assets of the Company, present 
and future, including its uncalled capital, or by the issue, at such price as they may think fit, of bonds, 
debentures or debenture stock, either charged upon the whole or any part of the property and assets of 
the Company or not so charged, or by bonds, bills of exchange, promissory notes or in such other way as 
the Directors may think expedient.

Article 74.
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GLOBAL BOND
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
TRANCHE I UNSECURED USD FIXED RATE BONDS, DUE ____________, 2027

Issued and Constituted under a Trust Deed dated the [  ] day of [________], 2025

Serial number: ____________ ISSUE DATE: [ ________________, 2025]

AMOUNT: US$[*]				    MATURITY DATE: [ ________________, 2027]  

THIS GLOBAL BOND IS ISSUED TO JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED TO BE HELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
ALL HOLDERS OF TRANCHE I BONDS. THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO, AND HELD ONLY BY, THE TRUSTEE FOR THE 
TIME BEING OF BONDHOLDERS APPOINTED UNDER THE TRUST DEED DATED THE [  ] DAY OF  [_______], 2025 BETWEEN 
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED OR A DEPOSITORY APPOINTED THEREUNDER.  

THIS GLOBAL BOND REPRESENTS A TRANCHE OF BONDS WHICH WERE PUBLICLY ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GUIDELINES FOR ISSUERS OF SECURITIES (GUIDELINES SR-GUID-22/08-0002) AND THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE 
BOND MARKET RULES. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, (the “Issuer”) HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY PROMISES TO PAY to the 
order of JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED (herein called the “Registered Holder”) the principal sum of [* 
UNITED STATES DOLLARS][US$*]] (the “Principal Amount”) on the Maturity Date.

The Issuer further promises to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof for each day during each Interest Period until 
the Principal Amount of this Global Bond is repaid in full on the Maturity Date, at a rate per annum equal to the Agreed Rate. 
Accrued interest shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. Interest at the relevant rate shall accrue from day 
to day (as well after as before any judgment) and be prorated on the basis of a 365-day year (366 in a leap year) for the actual 
number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

This Global Bond (constituted by the Trust Deed) is issued in respect of bonds which represent a purchaser’s proportionate 
interest in the Global Bond. The Issuer intends that this Global Bond shall be impressed with stamp duty in Jamaica and be held 
by the Registered Holder for enforcement in Jamaica, if deemed necessary. Payment of principal and interest to the holders of 
Tranche I Bonds shall pro tanto reduce the Issuer’s obligations under this Global Bond to the extent that the aggregate principal 
obligation of the Issuer to the holders of Tranche I Bonds in respect of their bonds and this Global Bond shall not exceed the 
Principal Amount.

APPENDIX 6
FORM OF GLOBAL BONDS
PART A: FORM OF TRANCHE I BOND
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In the event that any payment due and payable to the Registered Holder is not paid on its due date, interest shall accrue thereon 
at the Default Rate and such interest shall accrue from the said due date until the said unpaid sum and all interest accrued 
thereon are paid in full to the Registered Holder, capitalized with monthly rests. 

If principal or interest becomes due for payment on a day which is not a Business Day, payment thereof shall be made on the 
next succeeding Business Day (unless that day falls in the next calendar month in which event such payment shall be made 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). All payments of principal shall be made upon presentment of this Global Bond 
at the Place of Payment in the Payment Currency. All payments due under this Global Bond shall be made without set-off or 
counterclaim but subject to any withholding tax which the Issuer is obliged to deduct by applicable law. 

This Global Bond is subject to optional prepayment and also, mandatory redemption or repayment as provided for by the Trust 
Deed.  Upon the occurrence of one or more of the Events of Default (as set out in the Trust Deed) all amounts then remaining 
unpaid shall become due and payable, subject to the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. 

This Global Bond is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of the Trust Deed.  All Tranche I Global Bonds issued and 
constituted under the Trust Deed shall, regardless of their issue date, rank pari passu and rateably in all respects.

The Issuer hereby waives notice of dishonour, protest and presentment.
	
This Global Bond is issued and made and shall be payable within the island of Jamaica and shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of Jamaica.

IN THIS GLOBAL BOND:

Capitalized expressions not otherwise defined shall bear the meaning ascribed to these expressions in the Trust Deed and:

“Agreed Rate” means 7.00% per annum.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday and public holidays) on which banks are generally open for 

business in Jamaica.

“Default Rate” means the Agreed Rate plus 2.00% per annum on all unpaid and overdue amounts of principal, interest and fees.

“Interest Payment Date” means any day on which interest falls due on the Tranche I Bonds, being:

i.	 first interest payment due on ____________, 2025, and thereafter interest shall be due on ___________, 
___________, ___________ and ____________ each year until the Maturity Date; provided that the final Interest 
Payment Date shall be the Maturity Date; or

ii.	 the date upon which interest is payable pursuant to acceleration.

“Interest Period” means in the first instance, the period commencing on [________] and ending on and including  the day 
immediately preceding the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and 
ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next Interest Payment Date, but in respect of the last Interest Period, 
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commencing on the penultimate Interest Payment Date and continuing up to but excluding the Maturity Date. 

“Maturity Date” means the Maturity Date set out above on the face of the Global Bond or, if earlier, the date on which, by 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise, the Principal Sum or balance thereof become due on the Global Bond.

“Paying Agent” means JCSD Trustee Services Limited or such other person duly appointed to provide paying agent services 
under the Trust Deed.

“Payment Currency” means USD.

“Payment Date” means the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date, or any other date on which any payment on, or in respect 
of, the Tranche I Bonds falls due for payment whether by acceleration or voluntary prepayment or otherwise as the case may be.

“Tranche I Bonds” means the 7.00% Unsecured USD Fixed Rate Bonds due ____________, 2027.

“Trust Deed” means the Trust Deed dated as of the [  ] day of [________], 2025 between the Issuer and JCSD Trustee Services 
Limited, as trustee.

“USD” or “US$” means lawful currency of the United States of America.

IN WITNESS whereof, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be duly executed manually or in facsimile on its behalf.

             

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED  

By: _________________________________ [seal]
Director/Authorised Signatory

By: __________________________________
Director/Authorised Signatory
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AUTHENTICATED without recourse, warranty or liability.
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

By: ___________________________
	 (Authorised Signatory)

ENDORSEMENTS

(Endorsee should note the transfer restrictions referred to above. An endorsee should register change 
of ownership with the Trustee who maintains a Register of Bondholders.)  

(1) Pay: ________________________________         (2) Pay: ______________________________
            [Name of Transferee]                                                         [Name of Transferee]
                                                                                                                    

    By: _________________________________              By: _______________________________
          Name:                                                                                 Name:
          Title

Further endorsements may be made below or upon an allonge attached hereto.
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PART B: FORM OF TRANCHE II BOND

GLOBAL BOND
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
TRANCHE II UNSECURED USD FIXED RATE BONDS, DUE ____________, 2028

Issued and Constituted under a Trust Deed dated the [  ] day of  [________], 2025

Serial number: ____________ ISSUE DATE: [ ________________, 2025]

AMOUNT: US$[*]				    MATURITY DATE: [ ________________, 2028]  

THIS GLOBAL BOND IS ISSUED TO JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED TO BE HELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
ALL HOLDERS OF TRANCHE II BONDS. THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO, AND HELD ONLY BY, THE TRUSTEE FOR THE 
TIME BEING OF BONDHOLDERS APPOINTED UNDER THE TRUST DEED DATED THE [  ] DAY OF  [_______], 2025 BETWEEN 
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED OR A DEPOSITORY APPOINTED THEREUNDER.  

THIS GLOBAL BOND REPRESENTS A TRANCHE OF BONDS WHICH WERE PUBLICLY ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GUIDELINES FOR ISSUERS OF SECURITIES (GUIDELINES SR-GUID-22/08-0002) AND THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE 
BOND MARKET RULES. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, (the “Issuer”) HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY PROMISES TO PAY to the 
order of JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED (herein called the “Registered Holder”) the principal sum of [* 
UNITED STATES DOLLARS][US$*]] (the “Principal Amount”) on the Maturity Date.

The Issuer further promises to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof for each day during each Interest Period until 
the Principal Amount of this Global Bond is repaid in full on the Maturity Date, at a rate per annum equal to the Agreed Rate. 
Accrued interest shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. Interest at the relevant rate shall accrue from day 
to day (as well after as before any judgment) and be prorated on the basis of a 365-day year (366 in a leap year) for the actual 
number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

This Global Bond (constituted by the Trust Deed) is issued in respect of bonds which represent a purchaser’s proportionate 
interest in the Global Bond. The Issuer intends that this Global Bond shall be impressed with stamp duty in Jamaica and be held 
by the Registered Holder for enforcement in Jamaica, if deemed necessary. Payment of principal and interest to the holders of 
Tranche II Bonds shall pro tanto reduce the Issuer’s obligations under this Global Bond to the extent that the aggregate principal 
obligation of the Issuer to the holders of Tranche II
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 Bonds in respect of their bonds and this Global Bond shall not exceed the Principal Amount.

In the event that any payment due and payable to the Registered Holder is not paid on its due date, interest shall accrue thereon 
at the Default Rate and such interest shall accrue from the said due date until the said unpaid sum and all interest accrued 
thereon are paid in full to the Registered Holder, capitalized with monthly rests. 

If principal or interest becomes due for payment on a day which is not a Business Day, payment thereof shall be made on the 
next succeeding Business Day (unless that day falls in the next calendar month in which event such payment shall be made 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). All payments of principal shall be made upon presentment of this Global Bond 
at the Place of Payment in the Payment Currency. All payments due under this Global Bond shall be made without set-off or 
counterclaim but subject to any withholding tax which the Issuer is obliged to deduct by applicable law. 

This Global Bond is subject to optional prepayment and also, mandatory redemption or repayment as provided for by the Trust 
Deed.  Upon the occurrence of one or more of the Events of Default (as set out in the Trust Deed) all amounts then remaining 
unpaid shall become due and payable, subject to the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. 

This Global Bond is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of the Trust Deed.  All Tranche II Global Bonds issued and 
constituted under the Trust Deed shall, regardless of their issue date, rank pari passu and rateably in all respects.

The Issuer hereby waives notice of dishonour, protest and presentment.
	
This Global Bond is issued and made and shall be payable within the island of Jamaica and shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of Jamaica.

IN THIS GLOBAL BOND:

Capitalized expressions not otherwise defined shall bear the meaning ascribed to these expressions in the Trust Deed and:

“Agreed Rate” means 7.50% per annum.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday and public holidays) on which banks are generally open for 

business in Jamaica.

“Default Rate” means the Agreed Rate plus 2.00% per annum on all unpaid and overdue amounts of principal, interest and fees.

“Interest Payment Date” means any day on which interest falls due on the Tranche II Bonds, being:

i.	 first interest payment due on ____________, 2025, and thereafter interest shall be due on ___________, 
___________, ___________ and ____________ each year until the Maturity Date; provided that the final Interest 
Payment Date shall be the Maturity Date; or

ii.	 the date upon which interest is payable pursuant to acceleration.

“Interest Period” means in the first instance, the period commencing on [________] and ending on and including  the day 
immediately preceding the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and 



B
A

R
I

T
A

 
B

O
N

D
 

O
F

F
E

R
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

U
S

253

ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next Interest Payment Date, but in respect of the last Interest Period, 
commencing on the penultimate Interest Payment Date and continuing up to but excluding the Maturity Date. 

“Maturity Date” means the Maturity Date set out above on the face of the Global Bond or, if earlier, the date on which, by 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise, the Principal Sum or balance thereof become due on the Global Bond.

“Paying Agent” means JCSD Trustee Services Limited or such other person duly appointed to provide paying agent services 
under the Trust Deed.

“Payment Currency” means USD.

“Payment Date” means the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date, or any other date on which any payment on, or in respect 
of, the Tranche II Bonds falls due for payment whether by acceleration or voluntary prepayment or otherwise as the case may be.

“Tranche II Bonds” means the 7.50% Unsecured USD Fixed Rate Bonds due ____________, 2028.

“Trust Deed” means the Trust Deed dated as of the [  ] day of [________], 2025 between the Issuer and JCSD Trustee Services 
Limited, as trustee.

“USD” or “US$” means lawful currency of the United States of America.

IN WITNESS whereof, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be duly executed manually or in facsimile on its behalf.

             

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED  

By: _________________________________ [seal]
Director/Authorised Signatory

By: __________________________________
Director/Authorised Signatory
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AUTHENTICATED without recourse, warranty or liability.
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

By: ___________________________
	 (Authorised Signatory)

ENDORSEMENTS

(Endorsee should note the transfer restrictions referred to above. An endorsee should register change 
of ownership with the Trustee who maintains a Register of Bondholders.)  

(1) Pay: ________________________________         (2) Pay: ______________________________
            [Name of Transferee]                                                         [Name of Transferee]
                                                                                                                    

    By: _________________________________              By: _______________________________
          Name:                                                                                 Name:
          Title

Further endorsements may be made below or upon an allonge attached hereto.
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PART C: FORM OF TRANCHE III BOND

GLOBAL BOND
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
TRANCHE III UNSECURED JMD FIXED RATE BONDS, DUE ____________, 2027

Issued and Constituted under a Trust Deed dated the [  ] day of  [________], 2025

Serial number: ____________ ISSUE DATE: [ ________________, 2025]

AMOUNT: J$[*]				    MATURITY DATE: [ ________________, 2027]  

THIS GLOBAL BOND IS ISSUED TO JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED TO BE HELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
ALL HOLDERS OF TRANCHE III BONDS. THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO, AND HELD ONLY BY, THE TRUSTEE FOR THE 
TIME BEING OF BONDHOLDERS APPOINTED UNDER THE TRUST DEED DATED THE [  ] DAY OF  [_________], 2025 BETWEEN 
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED OR A DEPOSITORY APPOINTED THEREUNDER.  

THIS GLOBAL BOND REPRESENTS A TRANCHE OF BONDS WHICH WERE PUBLICLY ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GUIDELINES FOR ISSUERS OF SECURITIES (GUIDELINES SR-GUID-22/08-0002) AND THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE 
BOND MARKET RULES. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, (the “Issuer”) HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY PROMISES TO PAY to the 
order of JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED (herein called the “Registered Holder”) the principal sum of [* 
JAMAICAN DOLLARS][J$*]] (the “Principal Amount”) on the Maturity Date.

The Issuer further promises to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof for each day during each Interest Period until 
the Principal Amount of this Global Bond is repaid in full on the Maturity Date, at a rate per annum equal to the Agreed Rate. 
Accrued interest shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. Interest at the relevant rate shall accrue from day 
to day (as well after as before any judgment) and be prorated on the basis of a 365-day year (366 in a leap year) for the actual 
number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

This Global Bond (constituted by the Trust Deed) is issued in respect of bonds which represent a purchaser’s proportionate 
interest in the Global Bond. The Issuer intends that this Global Bond shall be impressed with stamp duty in Jamaica and be held 
by the Registered Holder for enforcement in Jamaica, if deemed necessary. Payment of principal and interest to the holders of 
Tranche III Bonds shall pro tanto reduce the Issuer’s obligations under this Global Bond to the extent that the aggregate principal 
obligation of the Issuer to the holders of Tranche III Bonds in respect of their bonds and this Global Bond shall not exceed the 
Principal Amount.

In the event that any payment due and payable to the Registered Holder is not paid on its due date, interest shall accrue thereon 
at the Default Rate and such interest shall accrue from the said due date until the said unpaid sum and all interest accrued 
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thereon are paid in full to the Registered Holder, capitalized with monthly rests. 

If principal or interest becomes due for payment on a day which is not a Business Day, payment thereof shall be made on the 
next succeeding Business Day (unless that day falls in the next calendar month in which event such payment shall be made 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). All payments of principal shall be made upon presentment of this Global Bond 
at the Place of Payment in the Payment Currency. All payments due under this Global Bond shall be made without set-off or 
counterclaim but subject to any withholding tax which the Issuer is obliged to deduct by applicable law. 

This Global Bond is subject to optional prepayment and also, mandatory redemption or repayment as provided for by the Trust 
Deed.  Upon the occurrence of one or more of the Events of Default (as set out in the Trust Deed) all amounts then remaining 
unpaid shall become due and payable, subject to the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. 

This Global Bond is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of the Trust Deed.  All Tranche III Global Bonds issued and 
constituted under the Trust Deed shall, regardless of their issue date, rank pari passu and rateably in all respects.

The Issuer hereby waives notice of dishonour, protest and presentment.
	
This Global Bond is issued and made and shall be payable within the island of Jamaica and shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of Jamaica.

IN THIS GLOBAL BOND:

Capitalized expressions not otherwise defined shall bear the meaning ascribed to these expressions in the Trust Deed and:

“Agreed Rate” means 9.75% per annum.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday and public holidays) on which banks are generally open for 

business in Jamaica.

“Default Rate” means the Agreed Rate plus 2.00% per annum on all unpaid and overdue amounts of principal, interest and fees.

“Interest Payment Date” means any day on which interest falls due on the Tranche III Bonds, being:

i.	 first interest payment due on ____________, 2025, and thereafter interest shall be due on ___________, 
___________, ___________ and ____________ each year until the Maturity Date; provided that the final Interest 
Payment Date shall be the Maturity Date; or

ii.	 the date upon which interest is payable pursuant to acceleration.

“Interest Period” means in the first instance, the period commencing on [________] and ending on and including  the day 
immediately preceding the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and 
ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next Interest Payment Date, but in respect of the last Interest Period, 
commencing on the penultimate Interest Payment Date and continuing up to but excluding the Maturity Date. 

“JMD” or “J$” means Jamaican Dollars.
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“Maturity Date” means the Maturity Date set out above on the face of the Global Bond or, if earlier, the date on which, by 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise, the Principal Sum or balance thereof become due on the Global Bond.

“Paying Agent” means JCSD Trustee Services Limited or such other person duly appointed to provide paying agent services 
under the Trust Deed.

“Payment Currency” means JMD.

“Payment Date” means the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date, or any other date on which any payment on, or in respect 
of, the Tranche III Bonds falls due for payment whether by acceleration or voluntary prepayment or otherwise as the case may 
be.

“Tranche III Bonds” means the 9.75% Unsecured JMD Fixed Rate Bonds due ____________, 2027.

“Trust Deed” means the Trust Deed dated as of the [  ] day of [________], 2025 between the Issuer and JCSD Trustee Services 
Limited, as trustee.

IN WITNESS whereof, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be duly executed manually or in facsimile on its behalf.

             

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED  

By: _________________________________ [seal]
Director/Authorised Signatory

By: __________________________________
Director/Authorised Signatory
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AUTHENTICATED without recourse, warranty or liability.
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

By: ___________________________
	 (Authorised Signatory)

ENDORSEMENTS

(Endorsee should note the transfer restrictions referred to above. An endorsee should register change 
of ownership with the Trustee who maintains a Register of Bondholders.)  

(1) Pay: ________________________________         (2) Pay: ______________________________
            [Name of Transferee]                                                         [Name of Transferee]
                                                                                                                    

    By: _________________________________              By: _______________________________
          Name:                                                                                 Name:
          Title

Further endorsements may be made below or upon an allonge attached hereto.
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PART D: FORM OF TRANCHE IV BOND

GLOBAL BOND
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
TRANCHE IV UNSECURED JMD FIXED RATE BONDS, DUE ____________, 2028

Issued and Constituted under a Trust Deed dated the [  ] day of  [________], 2025

Serial number: ____________ ISSUE DATE: [ ________________, 2025]

AMOUNT: J$[*]				    MATURITY DATE: [ ________________, 2028]  

THIS GLOBAL BOND IS ISSUED TO JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED TO BE HELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
ALL HOLDERS OF TRANCHE IV BONDS. THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO, AND HELD ONLY BY, THE TRUSTEE FOR THE 
TIME BEING OF BONDHOLDERS APPOINTED UNDER THE TRUST DEED DATED THE [  ] DAY OF  [_________], 2025 BETWEEN 
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED OR A DEPOSITORY APPOINTED THEREUNDER.  

THIS GLOBAL BOND REPRESENTS A TRANCHE OF BONDS WHICH WERE PUBLICLY ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GUIDELINES FOR ISSUERS OF SECURITIES (GUIDELINES SR-GUID-22/08-0002) AND THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE 
BOND MARKET RULES. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, (the “Issuer”) HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY PROMISES TO PAY to the 
order of JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED (herein called the “Registered Holder”) the principal sum of [* 
JAMAICAN DOLLARS][J$*]] (the “Principal Amount”) on the Maturity Date.

The Issuer further promises to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof for each day during each Interest Period until 
the Principal Amount of this Global Bond is repaid in full on the Maturity Date, at a rate per annum equal to the Agreed Rate. 
Accrued interest shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. Interest at the relevant rate shall accrue from day 
to day (as well after as before any judgment) and be prorated on the basis of a 365-day year (366 in a leap year) for the actual 
number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

This Global Bond (constituted by the Trust Deed) is issued in respect of bonds which represent a purchaser’s proportionate 
interest in the Global Bond. The Issuer intends that this Global Bond shall be impressed with stamp duty in Jamaica and be held 
by the Registered Holder for enforcement in Jamaica, if deemed necessary. Payment of principal and interest to the holders 
of Tranche IV Bonds shall pro tanto reduce the Issuer’s obligations under this Global Bond to the extent that the aggregate 
principal obligation of the Issuer to the holders of Tranche IV Bonds in respect of their bonds and this Global Bond shall not 
exceed the Principal Amount.

In the event that any payment due and payable to the Registered Holder is not paid on its due date, interest shall accrue thereon 
at the Default Rate and such interest shall accrue from the said due date until the said unpaid sum and all interest accrued 
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thereon are paid in full to the Registered Holder, capitalized with monthly rests. 

If principal or interest becomes due for payment on a day which is not a Business Day, payment thereof shall be made on the 
next succeeding Business Day (unless that day falls in the next calendar month in which event such payment shall be made 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). All payments of principal shall be made upon presentment of this Global Bond 
at the Place of Payment in the Payment Currency. All payments due under this Global Bond shall be made without set-off or 
counterclaim but subject to any withholding tax which the Issuer is obliged to deduct by applicable law. 

This Global Bond is subject to optional prepayment and also, mandatory redemption or repayment as provided for by the Trust 
Deed.  Upon the occurrence of one or more of the Events of Default (as set out in the Trust Deed) all amounts then remaining 
unpaid shall become due and payable, subject to the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. 

This Global Bond is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of the Trust Deed.  All Tranche IV Global Bonds issued and 
constituted under the Trust Deed shall, regardless of their issue date, rank pari passu and rateably in all respects.

The Issuer hereby waives notice of dishonour, protest and presentment.
	
This Global Bond is issued and made and shall be payable within the island of Jamaica and shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of Jamaica.

IN THIS GLOBAL BOND:

Capitalized expressions not otherwise defined shall bear the meaning ascribed to these expressions in the Trust Deed and:

“Agreed Rate” means 10.00% per annum.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday and public holidays) on which banks are generally open for 

business in Jamaica.

“Default Rate” means the Agreed Rate plus 2.00% per annum on all unpaid and overdue amounts of principal, interest and fees.

“Interest Payment Date” means any day on which interest falls due on the Tranche IV Bonds, being:

i.	 first interest payment due on ____________, 2025, and thereafter interest shall be due on ___________, 
___________, ___________ and ____________ each year until the Maturity Date; provided that the final Interest 
Payment Date shall be the Maturity Date; or

ii.	 the date upon which interest is payable pursuant to acceleration.

“Interest Period” means in the first instance, the period commencing on [________] and ending on and including  the day 
immediately preceding the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and 
ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next Interest Payment Date, but in respect of the last Interest Period, 
commencing on the penultimate Interest Payment Date and continuing up to but excluding the Maturity Date. 

“JMD” or “J$” means Jamaican Dollars.
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“Maturity Date” means the Maturity Date set out above on the face of the Global Bond or, if earlier, the date on which, by 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise, the Principal Sum or balance thereof become due on the Global Bond.

“Paying Agent” means JCSD Trustee Services Limited or such other person duly appointed to provide paying agent services 
under the Trust Deed.

“Payment Currency” means JMD.

“Payment Date” means the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date, or any other date on which any payment on, or in respect 
of, the Tranche IV Bonds falls due for payment whether by acceleration or voluntary prepayment or otherwise as the case may 
be.

“Tranche IV Bonds” means the 10.00% Unsecured JMD Fixed Rate Bonds due ____________, 2028.

“Trust Deed” means the Trust Deed dated as of the [  ] day of [________], 2025 between the Issuer and JCSD Trustee Services 
Limited, as trustee.

IN WITNESS whereof, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be duly executed manually or in facsimile on its behalf.

             

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED  

By: _________________________________ [seal]
Director/Authorised Signatory

By: __________________________________
Director/Authorised Signatory
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AUTHENTICATED without recourse, warranty or liability.
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

By: ___________________________
	 (Authorised Signatory)

ENDORSEMENTS

(Endorsee should note the transfer restrictions referred to above. An endorsee should register change 
of ownership with the Trustee who maintains a Register of Bondholders.)  

(1) Pay: ________________________________         (2) Pay: ______________________________
            [Name of Transferee]                                                         [Name of Transferee]
                                                                                                                    

    By: _________________________________              By: _______________________________
          Name:                                                                                 Name:
          Title

Further endorsements may be made below or upon an allonge attached hereto.
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PART E: FORM OF TRANCHE V BOND

GLOBAL BOND
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
TRANCHE V UNSECURED JMD FIXED RATE BONDS, DUE ____________, 2030

Issued and Constituted under a Trust Deed dated the [  ] day of  [________], 2025

Serial number: ____________ ISSUE DATE: [ ________________, 2025]

AMOUNT: J$[*]				    MATURITY DATE: [ ________________, 2030]  

THIS GLOBAL BOND IS ISSUED TO JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED TO BE HELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
ALL HOLDERS OF TRANCHE V BONDS. THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO, AND HELD ONLY BY, THE TRUSTEE FOR THE 
TIME BEING OF BONDHOLDERS APPOINTED UNDER THE TRUST DEED DATED THE [  ] DAY OF  [_________], 2025 BETWEEN 
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED OR A DEPOSITORY APPOINTED THEREUNDER.  

THIS GLOBAL BOND REPRESENTS A TRANCHE OF BONDS WHICH WERE PUBLICLY ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GUIDELINES FOR ISSUERS OF SECURITIES (GUIDELINES SR-GUID-22/08-0002) AND THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE 
BOND MARKET RULES. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, (the “Issuer”) HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY PROMISES TO PAY to the 
order of JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED (herein called the “Registered Holder”) the principal sum of [* 
JAMAICAN DOLLARS][J$*]] (the “Principal Amount”) on the Maturity Date.

The Issuer further promises to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof for each day during each Interest Period until 
the Principal Amount of this Global Bond is repaid in full on the Maturity Date, at a rate per annum equal to the Agreed Rate. 
Accrued interest shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. Interest at the relevant rate shall accrue from day 
to day (as well after as before any judgment) and be prorated on the basis of a 365-day year (366 in a leap year) for the actual 
number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

This Global Bond (constituted by the Trust Deed) is issued in respect of bonds which represent a purchaser’s proportionate 
interest in the Global Bond. The Issuer intends that this Global Bond shall be impressed with stamp duty in Jamaica and be held 
by the Registered Holder for enforcement in Jamaica, if deemed necessary. Payment of principal and interest to the holders of 
Tranche V Bonds shall pro tanto reduce the Issuer’s obligations under this Global Bond to the extent that the aggregate principal 
obligation of the Issuer to the holders of Tranche V Bonds in respect of their bonds and this Global Bond shall not exceed the 
Principal Amount.

In the event that any payment due and payable to the Registered Holder is not paid on its due date, interest shall accrue thereon 
at the Default Rate and such interest shall accrue from the said due date until the said unpaid sum and all interest accrued 
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thereon are paid in full to the Registered Holder, capitalized with monthly rests. 

If principal or interest becomes due for payment on a day which is not a Business Day, payment thereof shall be made on the 
next succeeding Business Day (unless that day falls in the next calendar month in which event such payment shall be made 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). All payments of principal shall be made upon presentment of this Global Bond 
at the Place of Payment in the Payment Currency. All payments due under this Global Bond shall be made without set-off or 
counterclaim but subject to any withholding tax which the Issuer is obliged to deduct by applicable law. 

This Global Bond is subject to optional prepayment and also, mandatory redemption or repayment as provided for by the Trust 
Deed.  Upon the occurrence of one or more of the Events of Default (as set out in the Trust Deed) all amounts then remaining 
unpaid shall become due and payable, subject to the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. 

This Global Bond is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of the Trust Deed.  All Tranche V Global Bonds issued and 
constituted under the Trust Deed shall, regardless of their issue date, rank pari passu and rateably in all respects.

The Issuer hereby waives notice of dishonour, protest and presentment.
	
This Global Bond is issued and made and shall be payable within the island of Jamaica and shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of Jamaica.

IN THIS GLOBAL BOND:

Capitalized expressions not otherwise defined shall bear the meaning ascribed to these expressions in the Trust Deed and:

“Agreed Rate” means 10.50% per annum.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday and public holidays) on which banks are generally open for 

business in Jamaica.

“Default Rate” means the Agreed Rate plus 2.00% per annum on all unpaid and overdue amounts of principal, interest and fees.

“Interest Payment Date” means any day on which interest falls due on the Tranche V Bonds, being:

i.	 first interest payment due on ____________, 2025, and thereafter interest shall be due on ___________, 
___________, ___________ and ____________ each year until the Maturity Date; provided that the final Interest 
Payment Date shall be the Maturity Date; or

ii.	 the date upon which interest is payable pursuant to acceleration.

“Interest Period” means in the first instance, the period commencing on [________] and ending on and including  the day 
immediately preceding the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and 
ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next Interest Payment Date, but in respect of the last Interest Period, 
commencing on the penultimate Interest Payment Date and continuing up to but excluding the Maturity Date. 

“JMD” or “J$” means Jamaican Dollars.
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“Maturity Date” means the Maturity Date set out above on the face of the Global Bond or, if earlier, the date on which, by 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise, the Principal Sum or balance thereof become due on the Global Bond.

“Paying Agent” means JCSD Trustee Services Limited or such other person duly appointed to provide paying agent services 
under the Trust Deed.

“Payment Currency” means JMD.

“Payment Date” means the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date, or any other date on which any payment on, or in respect 
of, the Tranche V Bonds falls due for payment whether by acceleration or voluntary prepayment or otherwise as the case may 
be.

“Tranche V Bonds” means the 10.50% Unsecured JMD Fixed Rate Bonds due ____________, 2030.

“Trust Deed” means the Trust Deed dated as of the [  ] day of [________], 2025 between the Issuer and JCSD Trustee Services 
Limited, as trustee.

IN WITNESS whereof, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be duly executed manually or in facsimile on its behalf.

             

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED  

By: _________________________________ [seal]
Director/Authorised Signatory

By: __________________________________
Director/Authorised Signatory
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AUTHENTICATED without recourse, warranty or liability.
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

By: ___________________________
	 (Authorised Signatory)

ENDORSEMENTS

(Endorsee should note the transfer restrictions referred to above. An endorsee should register change 
of ownership with the Trustee who maintains a Register of Bondholders.)  

(1) Pay: ________________________________         (2) Pay: ______________________________
            [Name of Transferee]                                                         [Name of Transferee]
                                                                                                                    

    By: _________________________________              By: _______________________________
          Name:                                                                                 Name:
          Title

Further endorsements may be made below or upon an allonge attached hereto.
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PART F: FORM OF TRANCHE VI BOND

GLOBAL BOND
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
TRANCHE VI UNSECURED JMD FIXED RATE BONDS, DUE ____________, 2032

Issued and Constituted under a Trust Deed dated the [  ] day of  [________], 2025

Serial number: ____________ ISSUE DATE: [ ________________, 2025]

AMOUNT: J$[*]				    MATURITY DATE: [ ________________, 2032]  

THIS GLOBAL BOND IS ISSUED TO JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED TO BE HELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
ALL HOLDERS OF TRANCHE VI BONDS. THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO, AND HELD ONLY BY, THE TRUSTEE FOR THE 
TIME BEING OF BONDHOLDERS APPOINTED UNDER THE TRUST DEED DATED THE [  ] DAY OF  [_________], 2025 BETWEEN 
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED OR A DEPOSITORY APPOINTED THEREUNDER.  

THIS GLOBAL BOND REPRESENTS A TRANCHE OF BONDS WHICH WERE PUBLICLY ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GUIDELINES FOR ISSUERS OF SECURITIES (GUIDELINES SR-GUID-22/08-0002) AND THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE 
BOND MARKET RULES. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, (the “Issuer”) HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY PROMISES TO PAY to the 
order of JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED (herein called the “Registered Holder”) the principal sum of [* 
JAMAICAN DOLLARS][J$*]] (the “Principal Amount”) on the Maturity Date.

The Issuer further promises to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof for each day during each Interest Period until 
the Principal Amount of this Global Bond is repaid in full on the Maturity Date, at a rate per annum equal to the Agreed Rate. 
Accrued interest shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. Interest at the relevant rate shall accrue from day 
to day (as well after as before any judgment) and be prorated on the basis of a 365-day year (366 in a leap year) for the actual 
number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

This Global Bond (constituted by the Trust Deed) is issued in respect of bonds which represent a purchaser’s proportionate 
interest in the Global Bond. The Issuer intends that this Global Bond shall be impressed with stamp duty in Jamaica and be held 
by the Registered Holder for enforcement in Jamaica, if deemed necessary. Payment of principal and interest to the holders 
of Tranche VI Bonds shall pro tanto reduce the Issuer’s obligations under this Global Bond to the extent that the aggregate 
principal obligation of the Issuer to the holders of Tranche VI Bonds in respect of their bonds and this Global Bond shall not 
exceed the Principal Amount.

In the event that any payment due and payable to the Registered Holder is not paid on its due date, interest shall accrue thereon 
at the Default Rate and such interest shall accrue from the said due date until the said unpaid sum and all interest accrued 
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thereon are paid in full to the Registered Holder, capitalized with monthly rests. 

If principal or interest becomes due for payment on a day which is not a Business Day, payment thereof shall be made on the 
next succeeding Business Day (unless that day falls in the next calendar month in which event such payment shall be made 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). All payments of principal shall be made upon presentment of this Global Bond 
at the Place of Payment in the Payment Currency. All payments due under this Global Bond shall be made without set-off or 
counterclaim but subject to any withholding tax which the Issuer is obliged to deduct by applicable law. 

This Global Bond is subject to optional prepayment and also, mandatory redemption or repayment as provided for by the Trust 
Deed.  Upon the occurrence of one or more of the Events of Default (as set out in the Trust Deed) all amounts then remaining 
unpaid shall become due and payable, subject to the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. 

This Global Bond is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of the Trust Deed.  All Tranche VI Global Bonds issued and 
constituted under the Trust Deed shall, regardless of their issue date, rank pari passu and rateably in all respects.

The Issuer hereby waives notice of dishonour, protest and presentment.
	
This Global Bond is issued and made and shall be payable within the island of Jamaica and shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of Jamaica.

IN THIS GLOBAL BOND:

Capitalized expressions not otherwise defined shall bear the meaning ascribed to these expressions in the Trust Deed and:

“Agreed Rate” means 10.75% per annum.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday and public holidays) on which banks are generally open for 

business in Jamaica.

“Default Rate” means the Agreed Rate plus 2.00% per annum on all unpaid and overdue amounts of principal, interest and fees.

“Interest Payment Date” means any day on which interest falls due on the Tranche VI Bonds, being:

i.	 first interest payment due on ____________, 2025, and thereafter interest shall be due on ___________, 
___________, ___________ and ____________ each year until the Maturity Date; provided that the final Interest 
Payment Date shall be the Maturity Date; or

ii.	 the date upon which interest is payable pursuant to acceleration.

“Interest Period” means in the first instance, the period commencing on [________] and ending on and including  the day 
immediately preceding the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and 
ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next Interest Payment Date, but in respect of the last Interest Period, 
commencing on the penultimate Interest Payment Date and continuing up to but excluding the Maturity Date. 

“JMD” or “J$” means Jamaican Dollars.
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“Maturity Date” means the Maturity Date set out above on the face of the Global Bond or, if earlier, the date on which, by 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise, the Principal Sum or balance thereof become due on the Global Bond.

“Paying Agent” means JCSD Trustee Services Limited or such other person duly appointed to provide paying agent services 
under the Trust Deed.

“Payment Currency” means JMD.

“Payment Date” means the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date, or any other date on which any payment on, or in respect 
of, the Tranche VI Bonds falls due for payment whether by acceleration or voluntary prepayment or otherwise as the case may 
be.

“Tranche VI Bonds” means the 10.75% Unsecured JMD Fixed Rate Bonds due ____________, 2032.

“Trust Deed” means the Trust Deed dated as of the [  ] day of [________], 2025 between the Issuer and JCSD Trustee Services 
Limited, as trustee.

IN WITNESS whereof, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be duly executed manually or in facsimile on its behalf.

             

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED  

By: _________________________________ [seal]
Director/Authorised Signatory

By: __________________________________
Director/Authorised Signatory
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AUTHENTICATED without recourse, warranty or liability.
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

By: ___________________________
	 (Authorised Signatory)

ENDORSEMENTS

(Endorsee should note the transfer restrictions referred to above. An endorsee should register change 
of ownership with the Trustee who maintains a Register of Bondholders.)  

(1) Pay: ________________________________         (2) Pay: ______________________________
            [Name of Transferee]                                                         [Name of Transferee]
                                                                                                                    

    By: _________________________________              By: _______________________________
          Name:                                                                                 Name:
          Title

Further endorsements may be made below or upon an allonge attached hereto.
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PART G: FORM OF TRANCHE VII BOND

GLOBAL BOND
BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

TRANCHE VII UNSECURED JMD FIXED RATE BONDS, DUE ____________, 2035
Issued and Constituted under a Trust Deed dated the [  ] day of  [________], 2025

Serial number: ____________ ISSUE DATE: [ ________________, 2025]

AMOUNT: J$[*]				    MATURITY DATE: [ ________________, 2035]  

THIS GLOBAL BOND IS ISSUED TO JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED TO BE HELD FOR THE BENEFIT 
OF ALL HOLDERS OF TRANCHE VII BONDS. THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO, AND HELD ONLY BY, THE TRUSTEE 
FOR THE TIME BEING OF BONDHOLDERS APPOINTED UNDER THE TRUST DEED DATED THE [  ] DAY OF  [_________], 
2025 BETWEEN BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED OR A DEPOSITORY APPOINTED 
THEREUNDER.  

THIS GLOBAL BOND REPRESENTS A TRANCHE OF BONDS WHICH WERE PUBLICLY ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GUIDELINES FOR ISSUERS OF SECURITIES (GUIDELINES SR-GUID-22/08-0002) AND THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE 
BOND MARKET RULES. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, (the “Issuer”) HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY PROMISES TO PAY to the 
order of JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED (herein called the “Registered Holder”) the principal sum of [* 
JAMAICAN DOLLARS][J$*]]  (the “Principal Amount”) on the Maturity Date.

The Issuer further promises to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof for each day during each Interest Period until 
the Principal Amount of this Global Bond is repaid in full on the Maturity Date, at a rate per annum equal to the Agreed Rate. 
Accrued interest shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. Interest at the relevant rate shall accrue from day 
to day (as well after as before any judgment) and be prorated on the basis of a 365-day year (366 in a leap year) for the actual 
number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

This Global Bond (constituted by the Trust Deed) is issued in respect of bonds which represent a purchaser’s proportionate 
interest in the Global Bond. The Issuer intends that this Global Bond shall be impressed with stamp duty in Jamaica and be held 
by the Registered Holder for enforcement in Jamaica, if deemed necessary. Payment of principal and interest to the holders 
of Tranche VII Bonds shall pro tanto reduce the Issuer’s obligations under this Global Bond to the extent that the aggregate 
principal obligation of the Issuer to the holders of Tranche VII Bonds in respect of their bonds and this Global Bond shall not 
exceed the Principal Amount.

In the event that any payment due and payable to the Registered Holder is not paid on its due date, interest shall accrue thereon 
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at the Default Rate and such interest shall accrue from the said due date until the said unpaid sum and all interest accrued 
thereon are paid in full to the Registered Holder, capitalized with monthly rests. 

If principal or interest becomes due for payment on a day which is not a Business Day, payment thereof shall be made on the 
next succeeding Business Day (unless that day falls in the next calendar month in which event such payment shall be made 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). All payments of principal shall be made upon presentment of this Global Bond 
at the Place of Payment in the Payment Currency. All payments due under this Global Bond shall be made without set-off or 
counterclaim but subject to any withholding tax which the Issuer is obliged to deduct by applicable law. 

This Global Bond is subject to optional prepayment and also, mandatory redemption or repayment as provided for by the Trust 
Deed.  Upon the occurrence of one or more of the Events of Default (as set out in the Trust Deed) all amounts then remaining 
unpaid shall become due and payable, subject to the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. 

This Global Bond is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of the Trust Deed.  All Tranche VII Global Bonds issued and 
constituted under the Trust Deed shall, regardless of their issue date, rank pari passu and rateably in all respects.

The Issuer hereby waives notice of dishonour, protest and presentment.
	
This Global Bond is issued and made and shall be payable within the island of Jamaica and shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of Jamaica.

IN THIS GLOBAL BOND:

Capitalized expressions not otherwise defined shall bear the meaning ascribed to these expressions in the Trust Deed and:

“Agreed Rate” means 10.90% per annum.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday and public holidays) on which banks are generally open for 

business in Jamaica.

“Default Rate” means the Agreed Rate plus 2.00% per annum on all unpaid and overdue amounts of principal, interest and fees.

“Interest Payment Date” means any day on which interest falls due on the Tranche VII Bonds, being:

i.	 first interest payment due on ____________, 2025, and thereafter interest shall be due on ___________, 
___________, ___________ and ____________ each year until the Maturity Date; provided that the final Interest 
Payment Date shall be the Maturity Date; or

ii.	 the date upon which interest is payable pursuant to acceleration.

“Interest Period” means in the first instance, the period commencing on [________] and ending on and including  the day 
immediately preceding the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and 
ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next Interest Payment Date, but in respect of the last Interest Period, 
commencing on the penultimate Interest Payment Date and continuing up to but excluding the Maturity Date. 

“JMD” or “J$” means Jamaican Dollars.
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“Maturity Date” means the Maturity Date set out above on the face of the Global Bond or, if earlier, the date on which, by 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise, the Principal Sum or balance thereof become due on the Global Bond.

“Paying Agent” means JCSD Trustee Services Limited or such other person duly appointed to provide paying agent services 
under the Trust Deed.

“Payment Currency” means JMD.

“Payment Date” means the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date, or any other date on which any payment on, or in respect 
of, the Tranche VII Bonds falls due for payment whether by acceleration or voluntary prepayment or otherwise as the case may 
be.

“Tranche VII Bonds” means the 10.90% Unsecured JMD Fixed Rate Bonds due ____________, 2035.

“Trust Deed” means the Trust Deed dated as of the [  ] day of [________], 2025 between the Issuer and JCSD Trustee Services 
Limited, as trustee.

IN WITNESS whereof, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be duly executed manually or in facsimile on its behalf.

             

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED  

By: _________________________________ [seal]
Director/Authorised Signatory

By: __________________________________
Director/Authorised Signatory
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AUTHENTICATED without recourse, warranty or liability.
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

By: ___________________________
	 (Authorised Signatory)

ENDORSEMENTS

(Endorsee should note the transfer restrictions referred to above. An endorsee should register change 
of ownership with the Trustee who maintains a Register of Bondholders.)  

(1) Pay: ________________________________         (2) Pay: ______________________________
            [Name of Transferee]                                                         [Name of Transferee]
                                                                                                                    

    By: _________________________________              By: _______________________________
          Name:                                                                                 Name:
          Title

Further endorsements may be made below or upon an allonge attached hereto.
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